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Financial and Operational Highlights
B REBZRE

Revenue Profit for the year attributable
KA to owners of the Company
FLFREENEERT
Currency unit: Renminbi in millions Currency unit: Renminbi in millions
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Financial and Operational Highlights

M REFRE
Currency unit: Renminbi in millions BEREN - AEARK
2018 2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
“B-\f  ZTtF  ZERE  EE  ZE-nf ZEME
(restated) (Unrestated) (Unrestated) (unrestated)
(E51) (R&E31) (RE51) (RE51)
For the year ended note 10 note 11 note 12 note 12
31 December BET-A=t-HLEE fizE10 [iak izt 12 MiEE12
Revenue and profit WARRF
Revenue WA 105,470 88,706 70,400 69,616 33,558 37,659
Profit before income tax expense B FTE R B BATET 11,985 11,480 6,291 6,067 3,971 9,372
Profit for the year ERER 8,213 7,949 3,091 2,923 1,870 6,957
Profit for the year attributable to ARAIRREREEER
owners of the Company 4,634 4,760 666 581 110 4,397
Core proft before income BRETEHBRAZL
tax expense SR 13,279 11,659 10,618 10,394 5,691 9,468
Core proft attrioutable to owners &2 AR AL aA ™
of the Company " 5,885 4,906 4,279 4,194 1,839 4,491
Adjusted earnings before interest,  ZFRFE « HIE - FER
taxes, depreciation and #EE BT (EBITDA) 1
amortisation (EBITDA) ™ 20,303 18,244 16,660 16,073 10,231 13,905

Assets and liabilities

BERAR

Non-current assets FnBEE 109,930 107,663 99,711 94,731 75,160 77,672
Current assets MEEE 30,657 32,895 29,223 28,570 15,477 15,531
Non-current liabilties ErREak 31,352 35,482 22,099 22,099 14,691 14,960
Current liabilties REaE 39,141 39,451 44,940 42,302 16,972 19,401
Net assets BEZE 70,004 65,625 61,895 58,900 58,974 58,842
Capital and reserve R
Share capital BA 65 65 65 65 65 65
Reserve B8 17,217 14,680 15,951 14,588 19,501 19,828
Equity attributable to owners ARRREE L ER
of the Company 42,704 40,025 37,852 36,324 41,195 41877
Non-controlling interests S 27,390 25,600 24,043 22,576 17,779 16,965
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 Miit: R=—Z—\F—F— B ' AEECOHEAES

January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Please see Note 3(z) in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

B HEERFEIF NEBUHHREERIE155 -
RIBATERBIE A ATHRENALEED) - 35
2 AV BRERMEZMEED) -
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Financial and Operational Highlights
B REBZRE

For the year ended

31 December

BEt-A=1T—BHLEFE

—E-N\F

2018 2017

TE—tF

Increase/
(Decrease)
Financial indicators BigIgHE #, GR)
Net profit margin SERER O 7.79% 8.96% (1.17)
Return on total assets (ROA) @ 48 E B3R (ROA) @ 5.84% 5.90% (0.06)
Return on capital FEAREHRE (ROCE) © 12.64% 12.28% 0.36
employed (ROCE) ©
Liabilities-to-EBITDA ratio @ B EY EBITDAZEL @ 3.47 4.11 (0.64)
Debts-to-net assets ratio © FEEABXO 55.27% 68.09% (12.82)
Gearing ratio © BERBERO 35.60% 40.51% (4.91)
Debts-to-assets ratio BEAERD 27.56% 31.79% (4.23)
Average finance cost ©® ) FE K S © 3.89% 3.65% 0.24
Earnings per share (Basic) GRERZN(ARE D) 57.41 58.97
(RMB cent)
Dividend per share RS
— (RMB cent) © — (ARED)© 23.0 21.0
Dividend payout ratio K BB 40.06% 35.61%

Notes:
(1
@
)

an

(12

(13)

(14)

Net profit margin is profit for the year divided by revenue.

Return on total assets is profit for the year divided by average total assets.
Return on capital employed is the ratio of profit before income tax expense
and interest divided by total assets less current liabilities.
Liabilities-to-EBITDA ratio is the ratio of total liabilities divided by adjusted
EBITDA.

Debts-to-net assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing
borrowings, convertible bonds and obligations under finance leases
divided by total equity.

Gearing ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings,
convertible bonds and obligations under finance leases divided by the
total equity, interest-bearing borrowings, convertible bonds and obligations
under finance leases.

Debts-to-assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings,
convertible bonds and obligations under finance leases divided by total
assets.

Average finance cost is the ratio of aggregated amount of each category of
borrowing multiply by its interest rate divided by the total borrowing.

The dividends payable shall be paid in HKS.

Due to business combinations under common control completed in 2017,
the financial information of the Group has been restated to include the
financial position and results of operation of PetroChina Jingtang LNG Co.,
Ltd. (“dingtang Co.”) on a combined basis.

The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. as the directors consider that the unrestated
financial information is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of
the change in the Group’s business operation.

The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. and PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd. (“Kunlun
Gas”) as the directors consider that the unrestated financial information
is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of the change in the
Group’s business operation.

Core profit before income tax expense is defined as profit before
income tax expense excluding impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, accounts and other receivables and
exchange loss/gain.

Core profit attributable to owners of the Company is defined as profit
attributable to owners of the Company excluding impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, accounts and other
receivables and exchange loss/gain attributable to owners of the Company
and its related tax effect.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as profit before income tax expense, excluding
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, impairment loss on
intangible assets, impairment loss on accounts and other receivables,
exchange loss/gain, interest and depreciation, depletion and amortisation.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. Please see Note 3(z) in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Financial and Operational Highlights
M REFRE

2018 2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E I “ERE ZERE 1% “Z-E
(restated) (Unrestated) (unrestated) (unrestated))

(Z31) (RE5) (RE30) (RE5)

For the year ended note 1 note 2 note 3 note 3

31 December BE+t-B=t-HILEE i3 MizE2 BizE3 R
Sales volume of products EmEEE
Sales volume of crude oil RAHEsR

(10,000 barrels) (B#) 1,327 1,306 1522 1,522 1675 1,688

City gas Vil 147 118 9 92 21 2

CNG CNG 26 26 25 25 13 15

NG NG 42 38 29 29 23 20

Others 2 5 6 6 6 8 9

Sales volume of natural gas RRRHER
(100 million cubic metres) (BIAR) 220 188 152 152 65 68

Sales volume of crude oil
FRHBES

Unit: 10,000 barrels

B R
2,000

1,688 1,675

1,522
1,500
1,306 1,327

1,000
500

0

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Sales volume of natural gas
XRRHEE
Unit: 100 million cubic metres
B BTk
250
220
200 188
152
150
100
68 65
50
0

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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Financial and Operational Highlights

I REGEE

2018 2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
“B2-\§ T+ T 2 CEZ-1Ff CET-MF
(restated) (unrestated) (Unrestated) (unrestated)
(E31) (RE7) (RE7) (RE5I)
For the year ended note 1 note 2 note 3 note 3
31 December BET-A=t-HLEE izE MizE2 fizE3 R
Sales volume of LPG LPGHEE
(10,000 tonnes) (Bm) 700 658 638 638 13 13
LNG gasification volume INGRILE 189 128 066 49 35 48
LNG entrucking volume INGEEE 28 21 9 8 5 3
LNG processing volume INGIITE 16 11 5 5 7 9
LNG processing and terminal ~ LNG I TSR EE
(100 million cubic metres) (BaAK) 228 160 80 62 47 60
Natural gas pipeline transmission X fA% &8
(100 million cubic metres) (BuAA) 529 417 357 357 340 307
Stations in operation CESUY
CNG stations CNG 4 561 543 540 540 342 338
LNG stations NGk 609 603 680 680 849 960
LNG plants INGIH 15 14 12 12 12 12
LNG terminals LNGH Mt 3 3 3 2 2 2
Notes: MI3E
1) Due to business combinations under common control completed in 2017, (1) ARt FEREREH THERAH  AREN

the operating information of the Group has been restated to include the
operation data of Jingtang Co.

2 The operating information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. as the directors consider that the unrestated
operating information is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of
the change in the Group’s business operation.

) The operating information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. and Kunlun Gas as the directors consider that
the unrestated operating information is more appropriate for year-on-year
comparison of the change in the Group’s business operation.
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Sales volume of LPG
LPGHHESE

Unit: 10,000 tonnes
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MBREGRE

LNG processing and terminal
LNGInTHRGHER

Unit: 100 million cubic metres
By BIUAK
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Sales volume of natural gas in 2018
—E-\FEXARMEE

Unit: 100 million cubic metres
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Locations of Natural Gas Business
RIARBEBE S HE

Compressed Natural Gas Stations.
BER AR

Liguefied Natural Gas Stations and Plants
TRAL KR Rk R T &

Liguefied Natural Gas Terminals.
TRAL K AR $2 Uk

Xinjiang
i
CNG station and
LNG station in LNG Terminal in
operation LNG Plant in operation
Province EEZ CNGI K operation 2EZLNG
“#H LNG 4 2EZLNG TK R g
. Xinjiang #7548
. Hebei/A/1b
. Shandong IR
. Henan 47
. Shanxi 178
. Sichuan 2211
. Inner Mongolia A5
. Jiangsu /L&
. Liaoning &%
. Shaanxi PeEa
. Tianjin X%
. Hubei i1t
. Ningxia £ &
. Guangdong X
. Hainan &7
. Guizhou &M
. Yunnan =
. Chongajing Z&
. Zhejiang #1T
. Gansu H&ER
. Qinghai 5 /&
. Beijjing 3t
Jilin & AR
. Shanghai £/&
. Anhui
. Hunan 178
. Guangxi &8
. Heilongjiang A= #e/T
. Jiangxi T 78
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Locations of Crude Qil Exploration and Production Business
FUhMBR R EEERBE D HE
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Locations of Crude 0il Exploration and Production Business
FhBRE R EEERBE D HE

-@ Kazakhstan
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The revenue of the Group reached RMB105,470 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 18.90%; the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB4,634 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.65%; earnings per
share (basic) were RMB57.41 cents.

AEBEBERHERAEAREA1,054.70187T + FILLILK 18.90%
NN AR R A s R B 15 A R ¥ 46.34 BT - AL 4 2.65%
FREN (EXR) RARKSE7.415 -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) seized the opportunities
to expand in the natural gas industry, made full use of the
advantages in its business structure and continued to increase its
corporate values.

ANNUAL RESULTS

In 2018, the macro economy of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) remained stable and the environmental policies
facilitated the rapid development of the natural gas market. The
government of the PRC implemented various environmental
policies, continuously propelled the air pollution prevention and
control work and strengthened the coal-to-gas conversion for
residential use, heating and industrial use in key areas, through
which national natural gas consumption recorded rapid growth
and continually maintained double-digit growth. The Company
focused on quality development, grasped the favourable
opportunities arising from the strong demand for natural gas, and
continued to push through reforms and innovations, thus achieved
remarkable operating results. The Company was awarded China
Gas Association 30th Anniversary Outstanding Contribution
Award and the Best Listed Company of China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Awards.

During the year, with the joint efforts of all employees, the revenue
of the Group reached RMB105,470 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 18.90%; the profit attributable to owners of
the Company was RMB4,634 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 2.65%; earnings per share (basic) were RMB57.41
cents. Excluding the impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, accounts and other receivables and
exchange loss and gain, core profit attributable to owners of the
Company and core earnings per share (basic) were RMB5,885
million and RMB72.91 cents respectively, representing an
increase of 19.96% and 19.96% respectively when compared
with last year. In order to reward our shareholders, a final dividend
of RMB23.0 cents per share and RMB1,858 million in total was
proposed. The dividend payment ratio was 40.06%.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
// Annual Report 2018
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EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

During the year, the sales volume of crude oil in the exploration
and production business reached 13.27 million barrels,
representing a year-on-year increase of 1.61%. During the
year, there was an increase in the international oil price when
compared with last year, and the average realised crude oil selling
price of the Group increased by US$13.67/barrel to US$60.30/
barrel as compared with last year. Sales of crude oil for the year
was RMB2,068 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
37.41%; and profit before income tax expense was RMB1,250
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 52.44%.

NATURAL GAS SALES

During the year, total sales volume of natural gas was 21,994
million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year increase of
17.16%, among which the city gas sales volume reached 14,712
million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year increase of
24.41%, and 890,000 residential users and 5,680 industrial and
commercial users were newly developed, among which, the
natural gas sales volume of Hebei, Gansu, Shandong and Jiangsu
exceeded 2,000 million cubic metres. During the year, the sales of
natural gas products was RMB87,100 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 20.79%; the profit before income tax expense
was RMB2,942 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
39.43%.

The Group adhered to the strategy of stimulating retail sales
with the construction of branch pipelines, and hence during the
year, the Group constructed branch pipelines with length of 528
kilometres. The Group commenced the operations of 5 branch
pipelines, including Chuxiong-Panzhihua and Wafangdian-
Changxingdao, and completed major construction for 11 branch
pipelines. The Group has entered into 89 project cooperation
framework agreements, and commenced operations of
projects including Beijing Shunyi and Ningxia Wuzhong Taiyang
Mountain Development Zone Projects and Shandong Angiu Gas
Project. Zhoukou Power Plant was equipped with the capability
for commercial operations, and the Group pushed forward
Zengcheng Power Plant Project and Chengdu Tianfu International
BioTown Distributed Energy Resources Project as planned.

Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The pace of LPG sales transformation accelerated and the sales
volume during the year reached a record high of 7.00 million
tonnes, among which, the Group purchased 453,000 tonnes of
imported resources, representing a year-on-year increase of 41%,
and the retail sales volume had a year-on-year increase of 21.7%.
The Group commissioned 19 end-users projects, and the sales
capacity increased by 118,000 tonnes.

LNG PROCESSING AND TERMINAL

The Group maximised its overall benefits of the industrial
chain, pushed forward the implementation of the integrated
development of LNG terminals, processing plants and
CNG/LNG refilling stations. During the year, the sales volume
of LNG processing and terminal of the Group was 22,779
million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year increase of
42.41%. Revenue was RMB9,456 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 37.66%. Profit before income tax expense
was RMB4,057 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
108.48%.

1. LNG Terminal

During the year, the annual unloading volume of the LNG
terminals of the Group reached 15.13 million tonnes,
representing a year-on-year increase of 45.2%; and the
volume for gasification and entrucking reached 21,234
million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year increase
of 42.49%, in which both achieved record highs. The
terminal utilisation rate reached 79.6%, representing a
year-on-year increase of 24.7 percentage point, and the
turnover of storage tanks increased by 5.6 times when
compared with last year, with each of the control indices
higher than the average national level. The unloading
volume of Jiangsu LNG exceeded 6.50 million tonnes for
the first time, thus achieving full operating capacity, and
succeeded in unloading the first vessel of the Yamal project
supplying LNG to the PRC. The Group commenced roof
lifting work for two storage tanks of Tangshan LNG and the
expansion work of Jiangsu LNG.
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2. LNG Processing

During the year, the Group operated 15 LNG processing
plants for the full year, reaching an average workload
capacity of 35.9%, which represented a year-on-year
increase of 6.4 percentage point, while the fluid production
was 1.06 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year
increase of 16.9%, which exceeded 1 million tonnes for
the first time in recent years. Relying on the plant layout
and the capacity of gas storage peak-regulating in each
region, the Group completed the feasibility review of the
construction projects of LNG gas storage peak-regulating
facilities in 6 regions. The Group accelerated the progress
of the “Gasification of Yangtze River” and completed the
development plans of the “Gasification of Yangtze River”
project of Hubei province and Jiangsu province. The Group
organised the world’s first China-Europe international
transport corridors natural gas engine fuel vehicles event
with high quality, which promoted the application of LNG
in the transportation field under the “The Belt and Road
Initiative”.
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NATURAL GAS PIPELINE KAREHE

During the year, the natural gas pipeline transmission volume was AT E + KA R B E XK B R E A529.458 L7
52,945 million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year increase oK * [AILEIE &R 27.00% : BEBRBABAREE97.06 &
of 27.00%. Revenue was RMB9,706 million, representing a year- 7T * R 9.75%  BRFTSH BRI RF AAR
on-year decrease of 9.75%. Profit before income tax expense % 50.21187T * [ALLE A 25.43% ©

was RMB5,021 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of

25.43%.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

According to the energy development plan in the PRC, the
percentage of natural gas consumption to primary energy
consumption structure in China is expected to reach 10% by
2020. It will reach approximately 440.0 billion cubic metres by
2025. The government of the PRC persists in promoting green
development, constructing ecological civilisation, frequently
implementing a series of policies, facilitating the transformation
and upgrading of industries and actively and gradually fostering
natural gas as one of the major energies in the contemporary
clean energy system. With increasing efforts in the implementation
of environmental policies, the demand of natural gas will maintain
a robust growth momentum, and the demand will continue to
exceed supply in the short run. In 2018, the government of the
PRC issued the “Several Opinions on Promoting Coordinated
and Stable Development of Natural Gas”, speeded up the
construction of a system for the production, supply, storage and
sales of natural gas, and facilitated the coordination and stable
development of natural gas. The relevant authorities successively
released documents such as the “Circular on Straightening the
Gas Station Price of Natural Gas Used for Residential Purpose”
and “Opinions on Accelerating the Construction of Gas Storage
Facilities and Improving the Market Mechanism of Gas Storage
and Peaking Auxiliary Services”, further promoted the reform
of natural gas market, and at the same time, implemented the
“Three-Year Action Plan for Defending the Blue Sky”, hence
further facilitated the expansion of the natural gas market. The
Ministry of Transport issued the “Administrative Regulations on the
Safety Supervision of Hazardous Goods Shipment” and published
the “Opinions on Further Advancing the Application of LNG in the
Waterborne Transportation Industry (Draft for Comment)”, which
specified the policy for the use of natural gas in the waterborne
traffic, thus greatly promoting the Group’s “Gasification of Yangtze
River” and LNG utilisation of offshore vessels. The aforementioned
favourable policies and the broad prospects for development of
the above industry lay a solid foundation for relevant policies and
development opportunities for the Group to continually and rapidly
expand its natural gas business.

In 2019, the Group will endeavour to seize opportunities in
developing China’s natural gas market, focus on retail sales
development, continue to enhance its corporate values in order to
get more returns to its shareholders.
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Fully enhance the natural gas retail sales scale. The Group
will continue to adopt the combined strategy of developing
new markets and exploring the existing market, and it will also
continue to expand the scale of retail market. It will also actively
discover and expand into new markets, high-end market,
profitable markets and emerging markets, and put more efforts
in acquiring high-quality users including residential, industrial and
public service sectors. It will promote the merger and acquisition
of city gas projects and push forward the plan of developing high-
potential quality natural gas generator projects and distributed
energy projects.

Actively promote the branch pipeline constructions to
drive the development of retail sales markets. The Group will
continue to promote the branch pipeline constructions to drive
the development of retail sales, and it will construct 7 branch
pipelines including Guizhou Duyun-Kaili, Yunnan Honghe, Hunan
Xinhua during 2019, and strive to simultaneously carry out the
construction of branch pipelines and the development of retail
markets.

Continue to enhance the LNG industry chain value. The
Group will make full use of its advantages in the integration
of “terminals + processing plants”, coordinate the allocation
of resources, continue to optimise the operation efficiency of
LNG terminals and to enhance the operation capacity of LNG
processing plants. The Group will increase its efforts in promoting
the application of natural gas in the transportation field and
optimizing the distribution of gas refilling stations.
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Facilitate the transformation and upgrade of LPG sales in
a stable manner. The Group will expand the scale of imported
resources as well as explore and optimize the resource channels.
It will intensify the marketing management and retail markets
development, refine the logistics system, continuously extend the
industry chain, accelerate the pace of sales transformation and
upgrade, and strive to attain quality development.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB23.0 cents per share (2017: RMB21.0 cents per share) to
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s register
of members (the “Shareholders Register”) on 20 June 2019
(Thursday) subject to the approval at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company (the “2019 AGM”). The payment will be made
on or before 30 June 2019. The proposed 2018 final dividend
amounts to a total of approximately RMB1,858 million and 2017
dividend of RMB1,742 million was paid in 2018. The payout ratio
for 2018 (dividend per share divided by basic earnings per share)
was approximately 40.06% (2017: 35.61%).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2019 AGM will be held on 6 June 2019 (Thursday). The
Notice of the 2019 AGM, which constitutes part of the circular
to shareholders, will be sent together with the 2018 Annual
Report. The Notice of the 2019 AGM and the proxy form will also
be available on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

REBKBDLPGHEBRAR - RIDEQERAE
MRERMEBICERRE - 88 HEIEMR T I55H
B BICMRES  FELERR - NREEE
BARLK  BNERSEEER -

RHEARZ B

EEgEZAN - NAF A+ H(2EHM)
B AR AFRR LM ((REREAM]) £E2REIRS
RKHBREFR2BOARED(ZE—LF: K
210 ARED)  EERARRREBFRE ([=
T-NEFREBAFKRE]) LEHE - RNRE[EA
ZE-NFANA=ZTHSZE c - N\FEZ
HII BB ARK188EETL —T—+FA
R¥1 74288 TREERZZE—NFIEN - =F
—N\FREXR(SBRBREBANSRELRRT) LB
40.06% (ZZ—+%F : 35.61%) °

IRREFXE

“E-NFRRBFAGHR T -NFNANA
(EH) 817 - —F-NFRRAFASBEERN
BBRABERHA - WERK T~ NFFR)—H
FETRR - —E-NFRRAFRGBEERAR
RERBBEHINRAR R NBBHARZMERA
B (B2 1) 480 o



CLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2019 AGM, and entitlement to the final dividend,
the Shareholders Register will be closed. Details of such closures

are set out below:

(i) For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2019

AGM:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

Closure of Shareholders
Register

Record date

4:00 p.m. on
31 May 2019
(Friday)

from 3 June 2019
(Monday) to

6 June 2019 (Thursday)
(both dates inclusive)

6 June 2019 (Thursday)

(ii) For determining entitiement to the final dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

Closure of Shareholders
Register

Record date

4:00 p.m. on
14 June 2019
(Friday)

from 17 June 2019
(Monday) to

20 June 2019 (Thursday)
(both dates inclusive)

20 June 2019 (Thursday)

Chairman’s Statement

FEHRE
iR IBRER
BREETRRLE—ZT—NERERFASTAE
ERE I ﬁX%HMM%ﬂ R 15 i@ = &
EEH% f’ﬁﬂ’jﬁi ﬁ?@ui' %X@JHD—F
0] ABREERELFE T —NFREBAFAST

RN FIRENER :
*@%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ —E-NEF
LMEZE RE B & I R HFA=1+—H
(E8H)
T O
FEIRAR (D 1B P —EF-NF
B SNA=ZB(28—)
E-FT-NF
SNANH(EfHmM)
(BEMABIEEAN)
08k B HA —E-NEF
7NA7NB (28M)

(i) RTEE IR IER R HAR B Ry ER) -

*@%Fﬁﬁiﬁ —E-NEF
LMEZE RE B 1E I R NATIUHE
(E8H)
T O
FEIRAR (D 1B P —EF-NF
B NATtB(EH—)
E-TF-NF
NAZTHB(E8M)
(BEMABIEEAN)
08k B HA —E-NEF

NAZTR(EHM)

WV
EmERARLH
“E-)N\FFERE \




24

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM,
and to qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s Branch Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than the
aforementioned latest time.

The Group’s success was attributable to the steadfast support
of all its customers, business partners and shareholders and the

dedicated efforts of all employees. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to extend sincere thanks to them.

By order of the Board

Ling Xiao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 19 March 2019
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Management Discussion
and Analysis
B BT 5 T

Kunlun Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries continued to develop its
natural gas business segment during the year ended 31 December 2018. Profit
before income tax expense of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB11,985
million, representing an increase of 4.40% as compared with RMB11,480 million
for the last year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately RMB4,634 million, representing a decrease of 2.65% as compared
with RMB4,760 million for the last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) continued to develop
its natural gas business segment during the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Year”). Profit before income tax expense
of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB11,985 million,
representing an increase of 4.40% as compared with RMB11,480
million for the last year. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year was approximately RMB4,634 million,
representing a decrease of 2.65% as compared with RMB4,760
million for the last year.

Revenue

Revenue for the Year was approximately RMB105,470 million,
representing an increase of 18.90% as compared with amount of
RMB88,706 million for the last year. The increase was mainly due
to the expansion of natural gas business.

The Group’s revenue was mainly derived from the Natural Gas
Sales segment, LNG Processing and Terminal segment and
Natural Gas Pipeline segment, which in aggregate accounted for
98.04% (2017: 98.30%) of the Group’s total revenue amounting
to approximately RMB103,402 million (2017: RMB87,201 million).

Other losses/gains, net

Other losses, net for the Year was approximately RMB259 million
(2017: gains of RMB1,335 million). The losses were mainly due
to the exchange loss of RMB758 million (2017: exchange gain of
RMB609 million) recognised as a result of depreciation of RMB
against US$ during the Year.

Interest income

Interest income for the Year was approximately RMB295 million,
representing an increase of 39.81% as compared with amount of
RMB211 million for the last year. The increase was mainly due to
the increase in average balance of interest-bearing assets such as
loans to an associate and joint ventures.

Purchases, services and others

Purchases, services and others were approximately RMB78,249
million for the Year, representing an increase of 21.99% as
compared with amount of RMB64,145 million for the last year. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in purchase volume and
price of natural gas which was generally in line with the increase in
sales of Natural Gas Sales segment.
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Employee compensation costs

Employee compensation costs of the Group was approximately
RMB4,845 million for the Year, representing an increase of
11.92% as compared with amount of RMB4,329 million for the
last year. This increase was mainly due to the increase in average
salary resulting from improved business performance as well as
economic inflation during the Year.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation for the Year was
approximately RMB6,189 million, representing an increase of
9.52% as compared with amount of RMB5,651 million for the last
year. The increase was mainly attributable to No.4 Shaanxi-Beijing
Pipeline which was put into operation at the end of 2017.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amounted
to RMB420 million for the Year, representing a decrease of
30.46% as compared with that of RMB604 million for the last
year. Impairment loss recognised during the Year was mainly
attributable to a LNG processing plant and certain CNG/LNG
stations whose carrying amounts exceeded the recoverable
amounts.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the Year were
approximately RMB3,389 million, representing a decrease of
1.71% as compared with amount of RMB3,448 million for the last
year. Selling, general and administrative expenses remained fairly
stable during the Year.

Taxes other than income taxes

Taxes other than income taxes for the Year was approximately
RMB468 million, representing an increase of 6.12% as compared
with amount of RMB441 million for the last year. Taxes other than
income taxes remained fairly stable during the Year.
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Interest expenses

Interest expenses for the Year was approximately RMB1,130
million, representing a decrease of 1.31% as compared with
amount of RMB1,145 million for the last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in average balance of interest-bearing
borrowings in 2018.

Total interest incurred for the Year was approximately RMB1,684
million of which RMB554 million was capitalised as construction-
in-progress.

Share of profits less losses of associates

Share of profits less losses of associates for the Year was
approximately RMB858 million, representing an increase of
11.86%, as compared with amount of RMB767 million for the last
year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in realised crude
oil selling price during the Year that in turn led to the increase in
the shared operating result from CNPC-Aktobemunaigas Joint
Stock Company (“Aktobe”).

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures for the Year was
increased by 38.84% to approximately RMB311 million (2017:
RMB224 million). The increase was mainly due to the share of
profits from the joint ventures acquired at the end of 2017.

Profit before income tax expense

Profit before income tax expense for the Year was approximately
RMB11,985 million, representing an increase of 4.40% as
compared with amount of RMB11,480 million for the last year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the Year was approximately RMB3,772
million, representing an increase of 6.83% as compared with
amount of RMB3,531 million for the last year. The effective tax
rate for the Year was 31.47%, which remained fairly stable as
compared to that of 30.76% for the last year.
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Profit for the Year and profit attributable to owners of the
Company

The profit for the Year of the Group was approximately RMB8,213
million, representing an increase of 3.32% as compared
with amount of RMB7,949 million for the last year. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately RMB4,634 million, representing a decrease of
2.65% as compared with amount of RMB4,760 million for the last
year.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of total assets of
the Group was approximately RMB140,587 million, representing
an increase of RMB29 million or 0.02% as compared with
RMB140,558 million as at 31 December 2017.

The gearing ratio of the Group was 35.60% as at 31 December
2018 compared with 40.51% as at 31 December 2017,
representing a decrease of 4.91%. It is computed by dividing
the sum of interest-bearing borrowings, convertible bonds
and obligations under finance leases of RMB38,744 million
(2017: RMB44,682 million) by the total equity, interest-bearing
borrowings, convertible bonds and obligations under finance
leases of RMB108,838 million (2017: RMB110,307 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has total borrowings of
RMB35,235 million which will be repayable as follows:
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Within one year —FR 7,072 11,805
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Between two to five years MERF 13,559 20,410
After five years AFMUE 5,428 4,455
35,235 41,101
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The functional currency of the Company and most of its
subsidiaries is RMB. As such, the Group is exposed to exchange
rate risks arisen from borrowings denominated in other currencies
raised by the Company or these subsidiaries. The Group will
incur exchange gain/loss from such foreign currency borrowings
when RMB appreciates/depreciates against other currencies.
The details of the Group’s financial risk factors (including foreign
exchange rate risk) are summarised under Note 4.1 in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other financial risk
factors are summarised in Note 4.2 and Note 4.3 in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the Year, no share option (2017: none) has been exercised
by the senior executives of the Company as all share options were
lapsed.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB8,484 million. Notwithstanding the net current liabilities
of the Group at 31 December 2018, the Group’s consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis because the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
of the opinion that the Group would have adequate funds to meet
its obligation, as and when they fall due, having regard to the
following:

(i) the Group expects to obtain credit facility from China
Petroleum Finance Company Limited (“CP Finance”). On 7
March 2019, the Group obtained a credit facility of RMB20
billion from CP Finance covering a period ending 31 March
2020;

(ii) the Group expects to generate operating cash inflows in
the future; and

(iii) the Directors consider that the Group could obtain
financing from various sources of funding.

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Use of Proceeds
Interest Paid

The Group paid interest of RMB1,821 million (2017: RMB1,438
million) during the Year.

Dividend Paid

2017 final dividend of RMB21.0 cents per share amounting to
RMB1,742 million (2017: 2016 final dividend of RMB6.5 cents per
share amounting to RMB522 million) was distributed to owners of
the Company during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i ERE )

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no short-term
or long-term borrowings were secured by property, plant and
equipment or advance operating lease payment.

New Investment in Major Projects

PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd. (“Kunlun Gas”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into acquisition agreement
dated 28 September 2017 with PetroChina Company Limited
(“PetroChina”), pursuant to which PetroChina has conditionally
agreed to sell and Kunlun Gas has conditionally agreed to
purchase 51% equity interest in PetroChina Jingtang LNG
Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang Co.”) at a consideration of approximately
RMB1,547 million subject to adjustment on gain or loss of
Jingtang Co. during the transition period, as defined in the
acquisition agreement. This acquisition will help the Group
avoid the horizontal competition between the Group and
PetroChina, which will generate synergies among the Group’s
businesses, enhance operational efficiency and increase
market competitiveness. In the fourth quarter of 2017, Kunlun
Gas obtained all the necessary approvals of the government
authorities of the acquisition and Jingtang Co. has become a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon the completion
of acquisition. The final consideration was RMB1,906 million,
including the gains during the transition period amounting to
approximately RMB359 million.

Material Investments

Material investments of the Group are its investments in
associates and in joint ventures.

The Group’s major investment in associates are mainly in its
Exploration and Production segment. The Group has invested
in an associate, Aktobe, located in the Republic of Kazakhstan
with an effective equity interest of 15.072%, the detailed financial
information of which is summarised in Note 18 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

There is no single material joint venture which significantly affects
the results and/or net assets of the Group. Details of the Group’s
investments in joint ventures are summarised in Note 19 in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employee

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 42,278
employees globally (excluding the employees under entrustment
contracts) (2017: 41,835 employees). Remuneration package
and benefits were determined in accordance with market terms,
industry practice as well as the duties, performance, qualifications
and experience of the employees.

Final Dividend

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMB23.0 cents (2017: RMB21.0 cents) per share. The
proposed dividend will be paid on or before 30 June 2019 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s register of
the members on 20 June 2019 (Thursday), subject to the approval
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted written guidelines on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transaction.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors, and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model

Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

By the Order of the Board

Zhao Yongqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 19 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report
TEELRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) and certain recommended best practices (the
“Recommended Best Practices”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions throughout the Year.

The Company has also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements
of the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its
Board in providing effective leadership and direction to Company’s
business, and in ensuring transparency and accountability of
Company’s operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board fully supports the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management shall report
back and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company.

The Company adopted written terms established on division
of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEELRE

Composition

The Board has the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
There is a strong element of independence in the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Board
comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) (appointed on 12 January 2018)
Mr Zhao Yongaqi (Chief Executive Director)
Mr Zhao Zhongxun
Mr Zhou Yuanhong (appointed on 12 January 2018)
Mr Miao Yong (appointed on 12 January 2018
and appointed as Chief Financial Officer
on 6 November 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committeg)

Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committeg)

Mr Sun Patrick (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12
January 2018, Mr Huang Weihe, Mr Wu Enlai, Mr Ding Shilu and
Mr Zhang Yaoming resigned as executive Directors with effect
from 12 January 2018, as Mr Huang, Mr Ding and Mr Zhang had
reached their respective age of retirement and Mr Wu had work-
related reasons.
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each Independent Non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, serving on Board committees, scrutinising
the Company’s performance and monitoring performance
reporting, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

Under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination committee
(or the board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board
members, and shall disclose the policy or a summary of the policy
in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has adopted a
Board Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) to align the
board diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
criteria, including but not limited to, skills, knowledge, gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, length of services and other qualities of candidates.
Board appointments will be made on meritocracy and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of the diversity on the Board.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each Non-executive Director has entered into a formal letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to the retirement and re-election in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after their appointment. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company which provide that
every Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
during the Year shall retire at the next general meeting and every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years. Code
Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 have been fully complied.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws Article 97, Mr Zhao
Zhongxun, Dr Liu Xiao Feng and Mr Sun Patrick will retire by
rotation at the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“2019 AGM”). Mr Zhao Zhongxun, Dr Liu Xiao Feng and Mr Sun
Patrick are eligible and will offer themselves for re-election at the
2019 AGM.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.
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During the Year, each of the Directors has attended various in-
house briefings and internal or external seminars/trainings, and
has read internal or external newsletters, updates and other
reading materials covering topics such as business of the
Company, corporate governance, industry knowledge, regulatory
updates, finance and management. The training records of the

Directors in 2018 are set out belows:
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Reading
materials
relating to the
Attending seminar/ Group, daily
meeting/forum/ business or
giving lecture responsibilities
at seminar of Directors
HE MEEH
1578+ Vi 58 HE
Wi,/ 88 EBRES
BHEER BESEMR
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) RELE(LE) Yes 524 Yes &
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=F—)\F—AT=-HEZHE)
Mr Zhao Yongaj (Chief Executive Officer) KR (7T #R) Yes 28 Yes B
Mr Zhao Zhongxun fichioN- Iy Yes B2 H Yes EHiE
Mr Zhou Yuanhong [AE%xE Yes B2 H Yes BHE
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=F—\F—AT=-HEZHE)
Mr Miao Yong BREAE Yes B2 Yes B¥iE
(appointed on 12 January 2018 (R=ZF-N\F—H1T-HEZ(F
and appointed as Chief Financial Officer IR=F-NFE1—AHEZF
on 6 November 2018) HHEE
Mr Huang Weine FhREE N/A TR N/A TiEFR
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—-F—H1T=HFF)
Mr Wu Enlai RERESE N/A i N/A TE A
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—\F—F+ZAFF)
Mr Ding Shilu TTERE N/A TNE N/A TNEH
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=FE—-NF—HT=HFF)
Mr Zhang Yaoming RIBREAE N/A g N/A TE A
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—\F—F+ZAFF)
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FRERAE Yes B2 Yes B¥iE
Dr Liu Xiao Feng Fill=lcai i Yes B2 H Yes EHiE
Mr Sun Patrick FEELE Yes B2 H Yes BHE
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code Provision A.1.1 stipulates that regular Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals for reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.

During the Year, 4 Board meetings, 3 Audit Committee meetings,
1 Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee

meeting were held.

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out below:
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EBNEREENHIEE

RBETANRXAIARE - & Hedrss

BRZLIR - RKEBF—IR L‘A%Eﬂl%ﬁt/ﬁﬁﬁk
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

i/ SRR
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EE EEE BERZEE yMzEe REZES
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr Ling Xiao ABRE 3/3 - - -
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=E-NF—HT=HEZ(F)
Mr Zhao Yonggi HKEEE 4/4 - - -
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEEEE 3/4 - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FEBLE 2/3 - - -
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=E-NF—HT-HEZ(F)
Mr Miao Yong BELYE 3/3 - - -
(appointed on 12 January 2018 (R=F-/\F—H1T-HEZF
and appointed as Chief Financial TRZF-)NNEF—AAEZE
Officer on 6 November 2018) HFEE)
Mr Huang Weihe BRNLE 1/1 - - 1/1
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (RZE-\EF—HT_HEH)
Mr Wu Enlai RERESE 01 - - -
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (RZF-1E—H+_A#)
Mr Ding Shilu Tk W - - -
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R-E-\E—HT_HEH)
Mr Zhang Yaoming SRR L 01 - - -
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (RZF-1E—H+_A#)
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV TEE
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE 2/4 3/3 11 11
Dr Liu Xiao Feng ZEEEL 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 2/4 3/3 17 1
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings and reasonable notice
is generally given for other Board meetings. For committee
meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required
notice period stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors/
committee members at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary will attend Board and committee
meetings, when necessary, to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary. Minutes are prepared after each
meeting and the final version is signed by the Chairman or the
chairman of the relevant committees (as the case may be) and
confirmed by the Board in the following Board Meeting or by the
relevant committee in the following committee meeting (as the
case may be). The confirmed minutes are kept for future reference
and Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at
a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.
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The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are held by different individuals during the Year.
Mr Huang Weihe was the Chairman of the Board from 1 January
2018 to 12 January 2018 and Mr Ling Xiao was the Chairman
from 12 January 2018. Mr Zhao Yongqi acted as the Chief
Executive Officer throughout the Year. There is no relationship
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

There are written terms on the general division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the senior management,
the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes
for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
the members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors (including one Independent
Non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). Mr Sun Patrick was the Chairman of the
Audit Committee throughout the Year. None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
independent auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by independent
auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the independent auditor
by reference to the work performed by the independent
auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the independent auditor; and

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings, to
review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the report on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes and the
appointment of the independent auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from
the Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the independent auditor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors throughout the Year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, making
recommendations to the Board for approval of the remuneration
policy and structure and making recommendation or determining
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Company Secretary is responsible for collection and administration
of the human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company.
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The remuneration paid to the senior management by band for the

Corporate Governance Report
tEELRE

AEREXNTRAEREABZFHHRBES 10

Year is set out as below: N
Senior Management emolument SREBABZHE
Year 2018
—E-N\F
RMB1 - RMB1,000,000 AREE1 7TE AR 1,000,000 7T 1
RMB1,000,001 — RMB2,000,000 AER# 1,000,001 ;T2 AR # 2,000,000 7T 1
RMB2,000,001 — RMB3,000,000 AR# 2,000,001 7t 2= AR % 3,000,000 7T 1
3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised of four
members including three Independent Non-executive Directors
and the Chairman of the Company throughout the Year.
Mr Huang Weihe was the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
from 1 January 2018 to 12 January 2018 and Mr Ling Xiao was
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee from 12 January
2018.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

3. to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;
4, to make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executives;
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5. to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities; and

6. to do such other things to enable the Nomination
Committee to discharge its powers and functions conferred
to it by the Board.

In performing its duties, due regards would be given to the Listing
Rules and the associated guidance.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to
review Board composition, proposal for Directors’ re-election
on retirement, the appointment of new Director as well as the
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance functions as required under the CG Code:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

- adoption of corporate governance functions under the CG
Code;

- review the usage of annual caps on continuing connected
transactions of the Group;

- review the compliance with the CG Code; and
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- review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management systems of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Code Provision A.6.4 stipulates that directors must comply with
their obligations under the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and, in addition, the Board
should establish written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in
the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors, and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) in respect of the dealings in
the Company’s securities by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 76 to 82.
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During the Year, the fees charged by KPMG for the audit of
the Company and its subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB13 million (2017: RMB20 million). In addition, approximately
RMB2 million (2017: RMB4 million) was charged by KPMG for
non-audit services. The non-audit services mainly consist of
taxation services, interim review, advisory and other professional
services. The fees charged by other auditors of the Group
for audit services during the Year amounted to approximately
RMB12 million (2017: RMB10 million).

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

U

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as
the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting will be taken by poll except where the
Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. Details of the
poll procedures are included in all notices/circulars to
shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings
of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company subsequent to the close of
the shareholders meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

During the Year, one general meeting was held on
24 May 2018. The attendance records of the Directors to
the 2018 general meetings are set out below: —
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Directors Attendance
= HESERE
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) EBRE(FRE) 11
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=ZF—NF—H+=ARZF)
Mr Zhao Yongqj (Chief Executive Officer) B (7T ARET) i
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEEEE 1/1
Mr Zhou Yuanhong (appointed on 12 January 2018) BE®TE 0/1
(R=ZF—-N\F—F+=HEZF)
Mr Miao Yong (appointed on 12 January 2018 BEAE(R=ZF—\F—HTZHEZF 1/1
and appointed as Chief Financial Officer PR=F-NF+—HANHEZF
on 6 November 2018) A EE)
Mr Huang Weihe (resigned on 12 January 2018) BRENEE(R=F-NE—F+=H -
FHINTEE)
Mr Wu Enlai (resigned on 12 January 2018) RERAE(R=_F-NNFE—F+=H -
FHIHNTEE)
Mr Ding Shilu (resigned on 12 January 2018) TTREE(R=F—/IF—HA+=H -
FHIHTTEE)
Mr Zhang Yaoming (resigned on 12 January 2018) RERALE (R =F-NF—HA+=H -
FHIHNTTEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEHERE 0/1
Dr Liu Xiao Feng B EE T 1/1
Mr Sun Patrick FEELLE 11

Rights of Shareholders to Convene Special General
Meeting

A special general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the registration not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company which as at the date of
the deposit carries the voting right at general meetings
of the Company deposited at the registered office of
the Company in Bermuda (Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) and the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong (39/F, 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong) for the attention of the
Board.

The written requisition shall specify the objects of the
special general meeting and signed by the requistionist(s).
If the Board does not, within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the written requisition, proceed duly to convene
the special general meeting the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the special general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which special general meeting may be convened by
the Board, provided that any special general meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the date of deposit of the written requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports,
annual reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders
in a timely manner and are also available on the website
of the Company. The Company’s website provides the
shareholders with the corporate information, such as
principal business activities and latest development of the
Group, as well as the share price and dividend history of
the Company. Also, it provides information on corporate
governance and corporate social responsibilities of the
Group as well as the compositions and functions of the
Board and the committees. For efficient communication
with shareholders and in the interest of environmental
protection, arrangements were made to allow shareholders
to elect to receive corporate communications of the
Company by electronic means through the Company’s
website.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to
make any query that they may have with respect to the
Company. They can also send their enquiries to the Board
through these means.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website at http://www.kunlun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders investment and the Company’s assets. The internal
control system of the Company comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. The Company also has an internal audit department,
which is responsible for monitoring the internal governance of the
Group and overseeing the risk management and internal control
system of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system which
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management of the Company.
Having reviewed the assessment report issued by an external
advisory firm, the Board considers that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

The Group has been attaching great importance to internal
control and risk management. The Company continued to
facilitate the building of its internal control system, gradually built
and improved a comprehensive risk management system, and
effectively promoted its operation in compliance with the laws
and regulations. It actively pushed forward the integration of risk
management and business and gave full play to the guiding role
of risks in its management.

MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL IN
2018

In 2018, the Board received a confirmation from the management
on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems.

During the Year, the risk management of the Company focused
on monitoring material risks, improving the level of basic
management and strengthening compliance management in order
to reorganise the Company under its current situation. Through
strengthening the internal supervision and inspection, carrying
out annual material risk assessment, planning, supervising and
implementing the risk management and control strategies, these
measures further enhanced the Company’s risk prevention
capabilities and safeguarded its ability to operate stably and
develop sustainably. In 2018, the Company established a synergy
mechanism for risk minimisation and elimination. It adhered to
the prioritising compliance values, established a more systemic
and coordinated risk prevention and control system as well as
achieved the integration of ongoing supervision and independent
assessment. The Group reports on the risk management and
control as follows:
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MARKET RISK

The Group enhanced the protection on the operations of the
natural gas market, achieved a balance between the demand
and supply of resources, closely followed the promulgated
policies, promoted the smooth progress of natural gas business,
coordinated and carried out orderly market development
and continued to optimise its customer structure. The Group
strengthened its upstream and downstream coordination,
refined the plans for LNG unloading, gasification and entrucking
and enhanced the operating capacity of plants, and thus fully
demonstrated the emergency peaking capability of terminals.

The Group broadened the resource procurement channels for
the liquified gas market and expanded its business scale. It
also actively developed the import business, and the import
volume grew rapidly. The Group strengthened its efforts in the
construction of terminal network. It improved its communication
and coordination as well as market research and analysis, and
comprehensively implemented the all-level pricing strategy
and benchmark management based on the classification of
product groups, mode of transport, sales regions and customer
differentiation. The Group placed emphasis on the guidance of
implementing market strategies and obtained satisfactory results,
which effectively enhanced its capability to expand the market.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT RISKS

The Group set up a construction management committee and
joined the China Association of Petroleum Engineering and
Construction (I BIA B TI2EZLHE). It prepared 15 procedural
documents, 68 operation documents, 74 document templates,
achieved the “construction unit checklist management”, carried
out two-level checklist inspection and assessment, and organised
two specialized trainings and five project on-site conference
trainings. The Group also formed a major construction project
management centre, improved the team of construction experts,
redeployed experts of and outside the field and the quality
supervision station to participate in thorough inspection of
construction works, hence effectively improved the quality of
construction projects.
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION RISKS

The Group entered into safety and environmental protection
responsibility agreements at various levels, promoted the
compliance of the safety production responsibilities, and
strengthened the employees’ ability to perform safety and
environmental protection responsibilities. It introduced the leader
coordination mechanism, in which leaders have the responsibility
to carry out on-site supervision and assessment. The Group
also developed and introduced eight management systems and
promoted root problem solving approaches. The Group enhanced
efforts in the monitoring of hazardous operations and improved
the risk checklist and risk management and control measures.
In 2018, a capitalised investment plan for the tackling of safety
and environmental potential issues had been fully completed and
a monthly reporting mechanism has been established in order
to actively construct a prevention dual-mechanism for potential
issues tackling and risk prevention and control.

RISK OF PRODUCTION INTERRUPTION AND
PRODUCTION CAPACITY MISMATCH

The Company continued to strengthen daily superintendence
management, promoted professional management and control.
During the year, the Group supervised the policing and inspection
of major sites through video surveillance for 2,325 times, and
the important production and operation monitoring ratio reached
100%; the dispatch ratio of emergencies reached 100%; and
the execution rate of dispatch orders reached 100%; and the
Group also strengthened the pipeline integrity management.
Moreover, the Group activated 11 second-level units and carried
out the integrity management for 44 pipelines. The Group
set up a process equipment management HSE committee to
provide assurance on organisational system for the prevention of
production interruption and production capacity mismatch.

INVESTMENT RISK

The Group was committed to regulating the project approval
system. In line with the principles of tempo control, management
regulation, risk regulation and prevention and progress amidst
stability, the Group will not undertake and invest in projects
which fail to meet the company efficiency standards. The Group
vigorously developed the market and carried out multiple on-site
project investigations to ensure the target market of the projects.
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RISK OF HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group instructed the corresponding units to promote the
project manager training schemes, established a project manager
talent pool and selected potential project managers. The Group
focused more on the productivity of young cadres and ensured
effective control of the head count of mid-level management,
hence through which, the professional structure and age structure
improved significantly.

Regarding the material risks of 2019 confirmed in our
assessments, all centralised management departments of the
Company integrated the arrangements of major operations, set
objectives and specified responsibilities for management and
control, identified and ensured key business areas and important
management sessions, refined management and control
measures and actively promoted the implementation of material
risk management.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review of the results of each business segment of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), major risks
and uncertainties facing the Group’s business operations, and
the Group’s business prospects are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 15 to 24 of this annual report.

M

Business Strategy

According to the energy development plan in the PRC, the
percentage of natural gas consumption to primary energy
consumption structure in China is expected to reach 10%
by 2020. It will reach approximately 440.0 billion cubic
metres by 2025. The government of the PRC persists in
promoting green development, constructing ecological
civilisation, frequently implementing a series of policies,
facilitating the transformation and upgrading of industries
and actively and gradually fostering natural gas as one
of the major energies in the contemporary clean energy
system. With increasing efforts in the implementation of
environmental policies, the demand of natural gas will
maintain a robust growth momentum, and the demand
will continue to exceed supply in the short run. In 2018,
the government of the PRC issued the “Several Opinions
on Promoting Coordinated and Stable Development of
Natural Gas”, speeded up the construction of a system for
the production, supply, storage and sales of natural gas,
and facilitated the coordination and stable development of
natural gas. The relevant authorities successively released
documents such as the “Circular on Straightening the Gas
Station Price of Natural Gas Used for Residential Purpose”
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and “Opinions on Accelerating the Construction of Gas
Storage Facilities and Improving the Market Mechanism
of Gas Storage and Peaking Auxiliary Services”, further
promoted the reform of natural gas market, and at the
same time, implemented the “Three-Year Action Plan
for Defending the Blue Sky”, hence further facilitated
the expansion of the natural gas market. The Ministry
of Transport issued the “Administrative Regulations on
the Safety Supervision of Hazardous Goods Shipment”
and published the “Opinions on Further Advancing the
Application of LNG in the Waterborne Transportation
Industry (Draft for Comment)”, which specified the policy for
the use of natural gas in the waterborne traffic, thus greatly
promoting the Group’s “Gasification of Yangtze River” and
LNG utilisation of offshore vessels. The aforementioned
favourable policies and the broad prospects for
development of the above industry lay a solid foundation
for relevant policies and development opportunities for the
Group to continually and rapidly expand its natural gas
business.

In 2019, the Group will endeavour to seize opportunities in
developing China’s natural gas market, focus on retail sales
development, continue to enhance its corporate values in
order to get more returns to its shareholders.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business are mainly operated by its
subsidiaries in the PRC and overseas, which in their
businesses should abide by the relevant laws and
regulations, including those relating to exploration,
production and sales of crude oil, gas operation and
service, gas facilities protection, prevention and handling of
gas safety accidents, price determination regime of natural
gas, environmental protection, and labour security. The
Group has also obtained the requisite business licenses,
qualifications, approvals and permits which are necessary
for conducting its operations in the PRC and overseas.
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During the Year, to the best of the knowledge and
information of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Group has complied with the relevant laws,
regulations and other applicable requirements that have a
significant impact on the Group and there have not been
any illegal or non-compliant acts which would materially
impact the Group's normal and continuing operations.

Key relationships with stakeholders

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to its healthy growth and strives to maintain
effective communication with its stakeholders, including
its Shareholders, investors, employees, customers and
suppliers. This has facilitated the Group’s sustainable
development in various aspects, including its business
operation, environmental protection and work environment.

Corporate communications are provided to the
Shareholders of the Company in a timely manner. The
Directors participated in the general meetings held during
the Year to enable effective communication with the
Shareholders. The Company also continues to enhance
communications and relationship with its investors.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the development of the Company.

The Group adheres to the principle of fair recruitment and
treatment of its employees, and has established sound
occupational health and safety policies to create a desirable
work environment to its employees. Remuneration
package and benefits of the employees are determined in
accordance with market terms, industry practice as well
as duties, performance, qualification and experience of the
employees.

(&)
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The Group adopts a market-oriented approach to closely
monitor the demand for its products and coordinate its
production, transmission and marketing activities with
an aim to provide greater value to its customers. The
Group has established long-term relationship with its
major customers, including PetroChina Company Limited
(“PetroChina”) and other independent third-party customers
which are primarily industrial users of the Group's gas
products. The ageing analysis and further details of the
Group's accounts receivable are set out in Note 24 in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Group did not rely on any major customer during the Year,
and will continue to adopt multiple measures to develop
users and expand marketing channels.

At the same time, the Group adopts scientific approach
in managing its supply chain and controlling costs of raw
materials. The Group has also received strong support
from its largest supplier, PetroChina, in maintaining stable
supply for its midstream and downstream natural gas
business. The Group has maintained a good relationship,
and did not have any significant disputes, with its major
customers and suppliers during the Year.

The Group has upheld its mission of “Low-Carbon
Economy Green Development” in its long-term business
strategy. It has placed a great emphasis on environmental
protection by promoting energy conservation and emission
reduction with a view to contributing to the sustainable
development of the environment and maintaining long-term
growth of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Republic of
Kazakhstan, the Sultanate of Oman, the Republic of Peru, the
Kingdom of Thailand, the Republic of Azerbaijan, and the sales
and distribution of natural gas, LNG processing, LNG terminal and
transmission of natural gas in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 83
and 84.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of
RMB21.0 cents per share amounting to approximately RMB1,742
million was paid during the Year. The Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of RMB23.0 cents per share for the
Year, totalling approximately RMB1,858 million.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 87 and 88, and Note 28 in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 27 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY AT oI5k iR
The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders ZE-NEFERZZE—+FF+ZA=F+—H AR
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were as follows: TT#“/)KT%{%ZZDT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREBAETL

Contributed surplus BEHR% 109 109
Retained earnings 17 B 14,340 15,477
14,449 15,586

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the HEBRE—NN\—FREVEKIEE]) » ARBIZE
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for %?K”ﬁ%ﬁ%—ﬁ LETTDIR © AT+ NAEE NHIER
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a SEEHRBTERIRNRE  SEED
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if: 7[& :

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its () HE
liabilities as they become due; or JAE

BEIHMRELEE  SEHIRNIRE
ERE %

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be lessthan (b)) EEBEZAJZREEEANHEEEREEITR
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital KR @B HFE -
and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BcHE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the ARBZHARIREREEEIIEESLRERMDETR
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda would oblige the & 3URE AR &) BILLL FIRIIR A R ZHITHAR
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES BA - HESEBEEKGS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, AR EISHETAHNBERARNAFEMEREA - HE
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the ol HE B AR A RIEfAI D ©
Year.

7\

60 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

\\\/ Annual Report 2018



DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year are:

Executive Directors:
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) (appointed on 12 January 2018)
Mr Zhao Yongai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Zhao Zhongxun
Mr Zhou Yuanhong (appointed on 12 January 2018)
Mr Miao Yong (appointed on 12 January 2018
and appointed as Chief Financial Officer
on 6 November 2018)
Mr Huang Weihe (resigned on 12 January 2018)

Mr Wu Enlai (resigned on 12 January 2018)
Mr Ding Shilu (resigned on 12 January 2018)

Mr Zhang Yaoming (resigned on 12 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12
January 2018, Mr Huang Weihe, Mr Wu Enlai, Mr Ding Shilu and
Mr Zhang Yaoming resigned as Executive Directors with effect
from 12 January 2018, as Mr Huang, Mr Ding and Mr Zhang had
reached their respective age of retirement and Mr Wu had work-
related reasons.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

During the Year, the Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising
out of corporate activities.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman)

Aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director on 12 January
2018, and served as the Chairman from 12 January 2018.

Mr Ling is currently vice president of PetroChina Company Limited
(Stock Code: 00857.HK), chairman of the board of directors of
PetroChina Pipelines Company Limited (P AMAEBAREEITA
7)) (“PetroChina Pipelines”). Mr Ling is a professor-level senior
engineer and has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese
petroleum and natural gas industry.

From June 2001, Mr Ling was deputy director of CNPC Xinjiang
Petroleum Administration. From August 2004, he had been
chairman of the board of directors, executive director and
president of Western Pipeline Company Limited (FEEIEEH
FR & LA 7R]). From March 2009, Mr Ling was president of the
Western Pipeline Branch Company. From November 2013, he
was president of PetroChina West-East Gas Pipeline Branch
Company (FF B/A i 78 5 528 B 38 5 /2 7)) and president of West-
East Gas Sales Branch Company (78R3 &i$5E 92 7l). From
March 2016, Mr. Ling was vice president of PetroChina Natural
Gas and Pipelines Branch Company and vice president of Natural
Gas Sales Branch Company. From September 2016, he was vice
president of Natural Gas Sales Branch Company and president
of PetroChina Pipelines. Since December 2017, he has been
serving as the vice president of PetroChina and the chairman of
PetroChina Pipelines.
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Mr Zhao Yonggqi (Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 58, was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer in December
2013, appointed as an Executive Director in June 2014 and
appointed as a President in March 2016.

Mr Zhao serves as the president of PetroChina Natural Gas Sales
Branch Company and as the executive director and president
of China Petroleum Hong Kong (Holding) Limited. Mr Zhao is a
professor-level senior economist and he has over 30 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry in China. Mr Zhao became
the vice president of PetroChina North China Sales Company
in December 1999, the president of PetroChina Inner Mongolia
Sales Company in October 2004. He became the president of
China Marine Bunker Co., Ltd. in November 2009, the president
and an executive director of PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd.
in August 2011. He became the vice president of PetroChina
Natural Gas Sales Branch Company (Natural Gas and Pipeline
Branch Company) in November 2017. He has been serving as
the president of PetroChina Natural Gas Sales Branch Company
since October 2018. Mr Zhao was elected a representative to the
11" National People’s Congress of the PRC in January 2008.

Mr Zhao Zhongxun

Aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in May 2016.

Mr Zhao is currently the vice president of department of planning
and programming of China National Petroleum Corporation
(“CNPC”) and PetroChina. Mr Zhao is a professor-level senior
economist. He has nearly 30 years of working experience in the
oil industry in China. Mr Zhao was appointed as the vice president
of department of planning and programming of PetroChina since
October 20086, the deputy director general of department of
planning and programming of CNPC and the vice president of
department of planning and programming of PetroChina since
June 2007, the vice president of department of planning and
programming of CNPC and PetroChina in May 2011.
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Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director on 12 January
2018.

Mr Zhou is currently vice president of M&A Department of
CNPC and PetroChina and director of investee companies of
CNPC and PetroChina. From May 2002, he was deputy head of
finance division of PetroChina Natural Gas and Pipelines Branch
Company. From August 2003, he was deputy head of equity
management office under M&A Department of PetroChina. From
April 2006, Mr Zhou was head of equity management office
under M&A Department of CNPC and PetroChina. From July
2008, he was a full-time director and full-time supervisor of M&A
Department of CNPC and PetroChina. From October 2016, Mr
Zhou has been vice president of M&A Department of CNPC
and PetroChina and director of investee companies thereof. Mr
Zhou is also a director of CNPC Capital Company Limited (Stock
Code: 000617.SHE), a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. He has been serving as the president of Strait Energy
Industry Fund Management (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (/& 5 & J& &= %
HEEE(EPT) AR AR and the executive president of Strait
Energy Limited since November 2018.

Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer)

Aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 12 January 2018 and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
on 6 November 2018.

Mr Miao is currently chief accountant of Natural Gas Sales Branch
Company. Mr Miao was appointed to the aforementioned position
in July 2017. Mr Miao, being a senior accountant, has over 20
years of working experience in the oil and gas industry in China.
From July 2009, he was deputy chief accountant of Finance
Department of PetroChina. From June 2012, he was chief
accountant of PetroChina Southwest Pipelines Branch Company
(FF R A A PERGE 8 5 A Bl). From December 2016 to July 2017,
he was Chief Accountant of PetroChina Pipelines.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey

Aged 69, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1998.

Mr Li is chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited, a Hong
Kong based investment firm, and has over 35 years’ experience in
merchant banking and commercial banking. He is a non-executive
director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, an independent non-
executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, Kowloon
Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development
Company Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International Limited. He
was an independent non-executive director of China Everbright
International Limited until 24 May 2017. Mr Li has a Master of
Business Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor
of Science in Civil Engineering from Brown University.

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 16 April 2004.

Dr Liu has more than 23 years of experience in corporate finance
and has worked in various international financial institutions
since 1993, including N.M. Rothschild & Sons, NM Rothschild &
Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, JP Morgan Chase, DBS Asia Capital
Limited, China Resources Capital Holdings Company Limited. He
was an independent non-executive director of Haier Electronics
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1169) since June 2007 up
to June 2014, an independent non-executive director of Hisense
Home Appliances Group Company Limited (stock code: 921)
since September 2017 up to August 2018, an independent non-
executive director of Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 196)
since January 2008 and an independent non-executive director
of Cinda International Holdings Limited (stock code: 111) since
July 2016, the independent non-executive director of Sunfonda
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1771) since May 2017 and
the independent non-executive director of AAG Energy Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2686) since August 2018, the issued
shares of all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also currently an
independent director of UBS Securities Co., Ltd. Dr Liu obtained
a Master’s degree and a Ph.D. from the Faculty of Economics,
University of Cambridge in 1988 and 1994 respectively, a Master
of Science degree in Development Studies from the University
of Bath, England, in 1987, and a Bachelor of Economics degree
from Southwest University of Finance and Economics, China
(previously known as Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics,
China) in 1983.
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Mr Sun Patrick

Aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 February 2016.

Mr Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of
Trinity Limited, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. and
China NT Pharma Group Company Limited, all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive
director of CRRC Corporation Limited and China Railway
Construction Corporation Limited, both of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is a vice-
chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies and
was its chairman from 2013 to 2015.

Mr Sun was an independent non-executive director and non-
executive chairman of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(2004-2015) and an independent non-executive director of China
Railway Signal & Communication Corporation Limited (2015-
2018), both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong. Before
that, he was the senior country officer and head of investment
banking for Hong Kong of JP Morgan Chase, group executive
director and head of investment banking for Greater China at
Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited. He was a member of the
Takeovers & Mergers Panel and the Takeovers Appeal Committee
of the Securities and Futures Commission, deputy convenor of the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange and a council member
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania, the United States, with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Economics in 1981. Mr Sun also completed the
Stanford Executive Program of Stanford Business School, the
United States, in 2000. Mr Sun is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the United Kingdom, and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Company Secretary

Mr Cheng Cheng (Vice President, Company Secretary)

Aged 51, was appointed as the Company Secretary on 11 July
2016. He served as an Executive Director from June 2004 to May
2016 and is currently a Vice President of the Company.

Mr Cheng is a senior economist and has over 30 years experience
in the oil and gas industry in China including 3 years in Canada
as vice president of CNPC International (Canada) Limited.
Mr Cheng served as the vice president of Natural Gas Sales
Branch Company since October 2018.

Chief Financial Officer
Mr Miao Yong

Aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 12 January 2018 and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
on 6 November 2018. Mr Miao’s biography is set out on the page
64.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and
in which a Director of the Company or any entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Commencement of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director and chief executive of the Company is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are set out
below.

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 Each of the Company

ESEn

RZZ2E—\F+ZA=+—H ARRZTESKE
ZITBABRA RGBS HEAREEE (EXRF
HFREEGO([FHERBEGD ) EXVE) 2%
7 RGO RESHT  #HE : QBBREFRHPE
RPIEXVEE T K8 EEME RN E] REFAFT 2
En kB (BRIERIEES KEE RO 2 G E
EHERARREMESEREBITHAEHRE &
mIORR) 5 Bk (0)IRIKFEFH K EIE 1505 352 {5k 7E
PARRNBIFE 2 ZRMAZERSIAR © 3K(0)
REBE R Prag s EARRI ([ EARRI D) T2 Eme
TAESETEFRZ2BRETRARNG AR R
BT B BOR B SN AT o

AREEREEOOI B ZEER

Capacity and Percentage
Nature of of Issued
Number of Interests Shares
Name Shares Sk (hEeBTRe
HE BB B EEME 2B
Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (note) B2 (M) 1,000,000  Beneficial owner 0.012%
EmEEA
Note: PEE -

The interests held by Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey represent long position in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries and
its holding companies a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 2 June 2012, there
were no outstanding share options that remain exercisable by
the Directors and/or employees of the Company under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.

No new share option scheme was adopted after the expiration of
2002 Share Option Scheme on 2 June 2012. No new option was
granted for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and no
share option was outstanding as at 31 December 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO, showed that the
Company has been notified of the following interests, being 5%
or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the directors
and the chief executive of the Company.
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% 336 IFRMEMARAIFEZ EBRRECMAT
R ARBCEBATNIIEEZRREBARACHE
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NRAEERTBITRABMBEENINZ S -

Percentage of the
total number of

Number of Shares B3 48
BHEE Shares in issue
Name Direct Interest Indirect Interest 1EE 1T
S=g HiEZER EiEEE Bokk
Sun World Limited (“Sun World”) @ 4,708,302,133 (L) - 58.33%
(I'Sun World ]) 4,708,302,133 (1)
PetroChina Hong Kong Ltd.
(“PetroChina Hong Kong”) - 4,708,302,133 (L) 58.33%
(['PetroChina Hong Kong |) 4,708,302,133 (4F)
PetroChina - 4,708,302,133 (L) 58.33%
REAm O 4,708,302,133 (4F)
Fairy King Investments Ltd. @ 277,432,000 (L) - 3.43%
277,432,000 (#F)
CNPC International Ltd.(“CNPCI”) @ - 277,432,000 (L) 3.43%
(TCNPCIL]) @ 277,432,000 (£F)
CNODC @ - 277,432,000 (L) 3.43%
277,432,000 (£F)
CNPC M@ - 4,985,734,133 (L) 61.76%
FEAHEE 4,985,734,133 (4F)
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Notes:

m Sun World is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PetroChina Hong
Kong, which in turn is wholly-owned by PetroChina. PetroChina is
owned as to 86.47% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to
have interest in the 4,708,302,133 (L) shares held by Sun World.
Mr Zhao Yongai, an Executive Director of the Company is also the
director of Sun World, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

@ Fairy King Investments Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CNPCI, which in turn is wholly-owned by CNODC, which is in turn
owned as to 100.00% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed
to have interest in the 277,432,000 (L) shares held by Fairy King
Investments Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any
person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company were not aware of any person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than share options and the issuance of RMB3,350 million
in aggregate principle amount of 1.625% USD settled convertible
bonds due 2019 with conversion price of HK$6.80 per share
set out in Note 31 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31
December 2018 and there had been no other exercise of
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
Year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules, are as follows.
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Annual cap
Amount incurred for 2018 for 2018
Nature of transactions Details —E-N\EE4EVEE —E-\E
RHME #iE EELR
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBET AREBET
(i) Provision of products by the CNPC Group As disclosed in Company’s 32,913 37,945
to the Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
PHRER RS BR Mt ERD and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARRBHA-E—tF+—A=T/AB
LAERZE—tE+=A—H
ZRHPRE
(il Provision of services by the CNPC Group As disclosed in the Company’s 4,432 11,495
to the Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
Pl R ERRE BR IR and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARRBHA-E—tF+—A=T/AB
ZRER_F—tET_A—-H
ZRHPRE
(i) Provision of products by the Group to the As disclosed in the Company's 4,477 7,217
CNPC Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
FEERTREERAER and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARRBHA-E—tF+—A=T/AB
ZRER_F—tET_A—-H
ZRHPRE
(iv) Provision of services by the Group As disclosed in the Company’s 16,058 16,547
to the CNPC Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
FEERTBEERARSE and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARFRBHA-T—+E+—A-1thA
ZRERZF—tET-A-A
ZRRPRE
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered
into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the independent auditor of the Company to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued its letter containing its following
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 225 to 228 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

Nothing has come to the independent auditor’s attention that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;
(ii) are not in accordance with the pricing policies of the

Company if the transactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group;

(iii) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcement
dated 29 November 2017 and circular dated 1 December
2017 with respect to the aggregated amount of each
transaction involved.

A copy of the auditor’s report has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Group has entered into certain entrustment management
contracts in relation to the management and operation of the
Leng Jiapu Contract and PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co.,
Ltd.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers

48%

52%

19%

23%

PetroChina, a listed subsidiary of CNPC, is the Group’s largest
supplier and customer.

Save for the above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the close directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company)
has an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to RMB1,248,778.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRES

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and the employees of the
Company are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 19 March 2019, none of the
Directors and their respective associates had any interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the businesses of
the Group (as would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules if each of them were a controlling shareholder).
Nature of interest

Name of Director Name of company

FENBUR

AEERBEERMNFHBROEFTHE ESRER
BZRHR  BERABESIE

ARREFERBETINMEhFMEESLERAR
AR EEE  BEENEARBMALETISHIE
ETEHYMESSFHHERRZS

RIAATEIXE

BREBEEFEAFREESHNENMAEE  EFHR
REFARBEFEERITRAR 25% 2 2 AR

BHEE -
PR R

BTAAMBEESN - RZE-AF=FTAA &
EERHSE QL BREALBEREARERES G

HAREABRFLEGTHRETARS (HEEFER
PERURCR - RIZBIRIE EMAR A8 10K T LARER)

Nature of competing business

EEMA GRS ERME BRERME
Ling Xiao PetroChina Vice President Exploration, development and product and
&EE A LA BB marketing of crude oil and natural gas
B RRAR R - RAERAERTS
=
Zhao Zhongxun PetroChina Vice President Exploration, development and product and
ity R EIAH of Department of marketing of crude oil and natural gas

Planning and
Programming

RO R RRR 2 B R ~
HER

PR EAE N5

98I B R T
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Name of Director Name of company Nature of interest

Directors’ Report
EEEHRESE

Nature of competing business

EEHA NGRS s BRERME

Zhou Yuanhong PetroChina Vice President Exploration, development and product and

BRI R EIAH of M&A Department marketing of crude oil and natural gas
BB PRI Ese JRA R RARZ BIER - FEEEE LTS

HEE
Miao Yong Natural Gas Sales Chief Accountant Marketing of natural gas
FE] Branch Company BEETHED KARTIGHEE
RARIEED AR

As the Board is independent of the board of the above entity, HRARRESEBYR LARFTESE - ALK

the Company has therefore been capable of carrying on its ARIRESBIU A Ll EKIE A FRAELSHE KRG %E

businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the above 7 °

business.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE STATEMENT OF BiFSiRRTBHEEE

FINANCIAL POSITION

This is no significant event affecting the Company after the date of
the statement of financial position.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Messrs KPMG, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for reappointment of Messrs KPMG
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhao Yongqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 19 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIZHETRE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Kunlun Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kunlun
Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 245, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZRHETRE

FASERTEIR

RET FRERBERMNEXHAE - RREAH
REMBHRANEARAEENTIR - BLFHEE
ERMFABESAMBEREI IO AR RRETRE
B - AT ELEREHEBNER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants

FERIER AR (TLNG D) in TR AR E

The key audit matter
BEETEE

In view of the volatile LNG prices, management considered
that there were indicators that the Group’s property, plant
and equipment attributable to different LNG processing
plants may be impaired as at 31 December 2018.
HRINGERKE  EEERRR_T—-N\F+_H
=t—H BXELNGINIHmNYE  BERREHHFE
BIERE -

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised impairment of RMB126 million in respect
of construction in progress, in one of the Group’s LNG
processing plants.
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HBHLLFE  BEEEH—H
LNG N THrER TIRERREARK 126 AE T

Management performs impairment assessments of the
Group’s LNG processing plants whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of these assets may not be recoverable.

HeERERE T EEE NG I IRNEREEE
FEEWER - BEEGHEETRENR -

Y

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)(ii) on pages 131 to 133.
BRI A MFEIRENT L 16 RE 131 F 133 B /15 3(m)(i) Y2 5HEUR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RPN ETNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of LNG
processing plants included the following:

FAIFLEHE LNG il TRRERER T EF B A MER ¢

° assessing management’s identification of cash-
generating unit (“CGU”), the allocation of assets to
each CGU and the methodology adopted in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts
with reference to our understanding of the Group’s
LNG processing business and the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

. BEEME S5EINGINIESNERREHEE
FHEAESK - FfE EEERSEABM (RS
EEBU])NRTE BSEEEERSELBMN M
A EARKANFTRBEERELEEEE

° assessing management’s cash flow forecast for
each CGU by comparing the key assumptions
adopted by management, in particular, forecast
LNG selling prices, forecast production costs and
expenses and the discount rate applied, with our
understanding, experience and knowledge of the
Group’s LNG processing business and the LNG
industry in general;

. RESERERAORR  BRERKINGIHE
B £EXANERRKAONIE X - EHM
# BEEBEINGIMIEBMINGITRAIERETT

& HERSEABUMNTRRESTERIEL T

il ;

p

EatRARAT
—E \FEEEHE \

:

\

7



Independent Auditor’s Report
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Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants

AHERE R AR (TLNG 1) hn T H R {E

The key audit matter

BERENSEE

Each LNG processing plant operated by the Group
has been identified as a separate CGU for impairment
assessment purposes. Management compares the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment allocated to
each CGU with respective recoverable amount, which is
estimated by preparing a discounted cash flow forecast,
to determine the amount of impairment loss, if any. The
preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement in
determining the relevant inputs to the discounted cash flow
forecasts and the assumptions adopted therein, including
forecast LNG selling prices, forecast production costs and
expenses and the discount rates applied.
EETRERHE - B2 E&SSELNG NIRRT ABL
WIRESEEEN  WEHLEYE  BEEREBHOREE
EEFTIRREREEEE LA E & 5B R EEE
(WE)  EERNRRERERNBEF  EREFHE
HEARBRMNEE (2EEARKINGHEES - £EK
RMEMELERALKANITIRE) ERE R

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)(ii) on pages 1317 to 133.
BRI E MFEIRENE 16 K E 131 F 133 M5 3(m)(i) B9 B 5TER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAPWETOAEEZEE

° comparing the forecast LNG selling prices with
external market data;

. HOREDRI L R Y FERIR SR LNG $HE B 1% BT 5 8UE
EITHE

° comparing key financial data, including revenue,
production costs and expenses, in the cash flow
forecasts with the budgets approved by the board
of directors;

. FORE RIS P MO RA B2 BUR (B WA - A ERCAH
ER) BREFESANTEETNEURETILE ¢

o assessing whether the discount rates applied in the
cash flow forecasts were within the range of those
adopted by other companies in the same industry;

. FHERER AT RANTREELRHERITEANA L
NERANSEEERN

comparing the actual results for the current year with
management’s estimates in their cash flow forecasts
prepared in the previous year to assess the historical
accuracy of the management’s forecasting process;
. BAFENERERE F—FEENRENFRT D
EEBMETHER - U HATERERANE
T

7\
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We identified assessing impairment of LNG processing | e
plants as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments involve the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting LNG
selling prices, production costs and expenses and in
determining appropriate discount rates, all of which could
be subject to management bias in their selection.
HPNRERNHTEEREELERHE - LHRHHARK
LNGIHEEBHE - £EKFMEH a’;%@@ﬂu&%ﬁ%‘%%
BE - QibEAREREAEXIIEREERANTZE

B APIRRE AT LNG I LB BB RN F YRR =T F 18 o

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)(ii) on pages 1317 to 133.
SRR A IR E N 16 R 131 2 133 E AT 3(m)i) BY 251 B &

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEETER BN FTNMEEZEE

performing sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions adopted by management, including
forecast LNG selling prices, forecast production
costs and expenses and the discount rates applied,
to assess what changes thereto, either individually
or collectively, would result in a different conclusion
being reached and assessing whether there were
any indicators of management bias in the selection
of key assumptions; and
HREANSATERERANSEARRE  BEKR
RLNG SHE B - £EMRANE B A REKBRIFE
?A; EITBURME DT - AT AR RER H e B K
i)éﬁ»ﬁﬂﬁ AIRERNTENEET XIAMRE
{E REAETESFEEAEERERANTR : &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of LNG processing plants with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

RIFRITEHERNENR - 5HE ERBEHEETE
&P AR LNG I THORE RS A HEE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

FEMBRRREBETRELIMER

BEAREFAHEMEEAR - AMEEBETIH
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wilson Wai Shun Lee.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GeazZmikiER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—tF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
P ARBEERT ARKBET
Revenue WA 6 105,470 88,706
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib (&E) /s 58 7 (259) 1,335
Interest income FLEWA 8 295 211
Purchases, services and others g - BRI R EHAMD (78,249) (64,1495)
Employee compensation costs 1B Bl & A 9 (4,845) (4,329)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation WE - BREREE (6,189) (5,651)
Impairment loss on property, VI - B KRR
plant and equipment REEE 16 (420) (604)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 5% « —RIEMEEER (3,389) (3,448)
Taxes other than income taxes BRETSBELAINZ FiIE (468) (441)
Interest expenses FEZH 10 (1,130) (1,145)
Share of profits less losses of: FEAG = R R B 1R -
— Associates B d=UNC| 858 767
— Joint ventures -5&ME 19 311 224
Profit before income tax expense BRPF1S B & A AR A 11 11,985 11,480
Income tax expense Frigii & A 13 (3,772 (3,531)
Profit for the year FREF 8,213 7,949
Other comprehensive income: Hp 2wk -
ltem that will not be reclassified TAIEMHEEER
to profit or loss: ZIER :
— Fair value loss on other financial assets -Hive@EE A FE
(non-recycling), net of tax B8 (AT [E
Zi8%) - WREIEE (127) -
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HEgraEHmofisEn
to profit or loss: ZIER :
— Exchange differences on translation - BEmEBmE
of financial statements, net of nil tax, of: pd i
MBRTHIAE -
— Subsidiaries -MWEAA 120 9
— Associates - Bt N (68) (18)
— Joint ventures -BEE 63 (66)
— Fair value loss on available-for-sale -MHEESRMEEY
financial assets (recycling), NHEEE (ATER EExm) -
net of tax MR IAE - (139)
Other comprehensive income for the year £ REMZEKE (12) (214)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHEW AL 8,201 7,735

EmEERARLH 83

“TNEERES \_



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
P ARBEERT ARKBET
Profit for the year attributable to: FAREMLRF
— Owners of the Company S N/NC ) 4,634 4,760
— Non-controlling interests — FEfE 1 e 3,579 3,189
8,213 7,949
Total comprehensive income for the year FARGEEEKREE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company B N/NC ) ) 4,654 4,601
— Non-controlling interests — FERE 1 R 3,547 3,134
8,201 7,735
Earnings per share for profit attributable RARIRRELEF] 2
to owners of the Company R & A 14
— Basic (RMB cent) -ER(ARES) 57.41 58.97
- Diluted (RMB cent) -#E(ARED) 54.68 56.21

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 izt : R=F—/\F—A—H ' ASBEBIFEREHE

January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 3(z2).

The notes on pages 91 to 245 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to owners of the

IR E LR FER R EBU B HRELERNFE 1555 o

RBFIERBIETE - AILLREMAE/ED - F

2B 3() °

Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

15.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GZEUMBIRAFE

As at 31 December 2018 R=_Z— N\F+_-_HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E—-N\F —E—+tF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B RE ARBEERT AREKBET
Assets EE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B K& 16 95,933 95,735
Advanced operating lease payments TR EEHER 17 3,872 3,782
Investments in associates REEZNE) 2184 18 4,124 3,515
Investments in joint ventures REBLHEZRE 19 2,870 1,918
Intangible and other non-current assets BERHMIERBEE 21 1,889 1,525
Deferred tax assets EET IR B B 32 1,242 1,188
109,930 107,663
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 1,865 1,559
Accounts receivable FEUTBR 5K 24 2,459 2,846
Prepaid expenses and other current assets R REMREEE 25 5,859 6,640
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 26 20,474 21,850
30,657 32,895
Total assets WEE 140,587 140,558
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable ARFREEMBRR
to owners of the Company e
Share capital %N 27 65 65
Retained earnings EIEE T 28 25,362 25,280
Other reserves Hh 28 17,277 14,680
42,704 40,025
Non-controlling interests FEEHI R = 27,390 25,600
Total equity R 70,094 65,625

— =
—=
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEMBIRAR

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z— \F+=F=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B RE AREBEERT ARKBET
Liabilities =V
Current liabilities REBAME
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities EREBRR KR ETEE 29 27,355 26,569
Income tax payable FE FTSHR 32 794 495
Other tax payable HEAMpERTRIR 464 424
Short-term borrowings HHIEE 30 7,072 11,805
Convertible bonds A EEHA(E 25 31 3,306 =
Obligations under finance leases BB ERIE 150 158
39,141 39,451
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Long-term borrowings RHEE 30 28,163 29,296
Convertible bonds A[ER(E S 31 - 3,230
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMIBRE 32 1,292 1,075
Obligations under finance leases BB EAE 53 193
Other liabilities HihafE 1,844 1,688
31,352 35,482
Total liabilities HaE 70,493 74,933
Total equity and liabilities ERREBEHEE 140,587 140,558
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (8,484) (6,556)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 101,446 101,107
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZE—NWF=A+ L BEZEESH AL RET)
19 March 2019. o
Zhao Yongqi Miao Yong
kR 25
Executive Director H1iTEE Executive Director H1iTEE
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 M : R=T—N\F—A—H  A&EEOTEAEE

January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

The notes on pages 91 to 245 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BATREES Non-
Share Retained Other controlling Total
capital earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity
Rx  RERAN  HtRG IGE O FERMER  BREE
Note RMB'million  RMB'million  RMB'million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million

ik ARBEERT ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARWEET ARWAER

Balances at 1 January 2017

R-E—+5—f—BkH

65 21836 16,951 37,802 24043 61,89

Changes in equity for 2017: “E-LEERSE .

Proft for the year ER T - 4,760 - 4,760 3,189 7,949

Other comprehensive income Ath2ENE - - (159) (159) (55) (214)
Total comprehensive income EmEENRLE

for he year : 4760 (159) 4601 3134 77%
Transfer between reserves FfEHes - (833) 833 - - -
Final divicend for 2016 ZENERERE 15 - (522) - (522) - (522)
Lapsed share options EANERE - 39 (39) - - -
Acquisition of PetroChina Jingtang ~~ WERARRERIAAR

LNG Co,, Ltd. (ingtang Co." ERAA(TREAR) 2b) - - (1,906) (1,906) - (1,906)
Acquistion from non-controling [BEEEE k2 ST

interests - - - - (16) (16)
Dividend to non-controling interests ~ BAER SIS 2 R 8 - - - - (3,029) (3,029)
Capital contributions from FirbitER TR

non-controling interests - - - - 1,634 1,634
Disposal of subsidiaries RENELA - - - - (166) (166)

: 1319 (19 pay 1§ 400

Balances at 31 December 2017~ W=F-tE+-A=t-Rf#H 65 25,280 14,680 40,025 25,600 65,625
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAARFELN Non-
Share Retained Other controlling Total
capital earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity

ks REBR iRk NOFEHMER  BRAE
Note RMB’million  RMB'million  RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB’million  RMB'million

it ARBEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARWEER ARWAER

Balances at 1 January 2018 Notg) ~ R=F—/\E—B— B (Hiz) 65 25,280 14,680 40,025 25,600 65,625
Impact on intial applcation of EANBREEANENT

HKFRS 9 FERER T2 3 - (234) - (234) - (234)
Adjusted balances at 1 January 2018 A =F—/\E—F—B&R (F%%) 65 25,046 14,680 39,791 25,600 65,391
Changes in equity for 2018; ZE-\FERSE.

Proft for the year Emgf - 4,634 - 4,634 3579 8213

Other comprehensive income Eth 2 AN - - 2 2 (32) (12)
Total comprehensive income EnzEbELE

for the year - 4,634 2 4,654 3,547 8,201
Transfer between reserves RiEHER - (2,576) 2576 - - -
Final dividend for 2017 “E-tERERE 15 - (1,742 - (1,742) - (1,742
Acquistion from non-controling [BEEaEE 2l

interests - - - - (20) (20)
Dividend to non-controling interests ~ BAEESIER 2 RS - - - - (2,891) (2.891)
Capital contributions from FiEtER  TE

non-controling interests - - - - 1,878 1,878
Disposal of subsiciaries RENBAA - - - - (724) (724)
IssLie of shares upon conversion ESELERATEERE 31

of convertible bonds - - 1 i - 1

- 4319 2571 a74) (75 (34%9)

Balances at 31 December 2018~ W=Z-\F+-A=+-B&#H 65 25,362 17,211 42,704 21,390 70,094

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 [ist : R=Z—\F—F— B ' XAEEEILZEAES

January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative B 7 R 5 A R B 05 M BB B TS s EBI 551558 ©
information is not restated. See Note 3(z). RIBEFMEMNBES A JLBRERTESY] - &

ZBIEE3(2) ©

The notes on pages 91 to 245 form part of these financial 5 91 & 245 B WM i E @K AB FERER 2 — 35 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note RMB’million RMB’million
P ARBEERT ARKBET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBFMEBZRERE
Profit for the year F @Al 8,213 7,949
Adjustments for: FEE -
Income tax expense Fri5HiE A 3,772 3,531
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation e  BRENREE 6,189 5,651
Share of profits less losses of associates FE(GEE =R Rl m R E E (858) (767)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures EhEaERFRTBER (311) (224)
Impairment loss on property, Vs~ BB R
plant and equipment BIEBE 16 420 604
Impairment loss on intangible assets EmEAERBERBE 21 103 -
Net losses on disposal of property, HEME  BERK#E L
plant and equipment i b 10 —
Net losses on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 EIEFE 2 -
Net exchange losses/(gains) [EHEE (Kes) F8E 758 (609)
Interest income FIEUWA (295) 211)
Interest expense FEZ 1,130 1,145
Changes in working capital: LEEESH
Accounts receivable JE U BR X (170) 112
Prepaid expenses and other current assets TR FARE M REEE 33 (580)
Inventories FE (379) (317)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ERERRETAE 1,654 997
Other tax payable H AT 40 (256)
Cash generated from operations REELCHE 20,311 17,025
Income tax paid ERETEH (3,293) (3,738)
Net cash generated from operating REEEEE RS TE
activities 17,018 13,287

7\
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GFEHSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-\F T
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BRE ARBEERT ARKBEER
Cash flows from investing activities REXEKFBzRERE
Dividends received from associates BHE A RUWER 2 iR B 470 329
Dividends received from joint ventures BEEREWEZ KRS 259 160
Acquisition of subsidiaries U Bt B A7) - (1,547)
Acquisition of joint ventures W& B (325) (637)
Capital contributions to associates MBtERNFNEE (442) (207)
Capital contributions to a joint venture A—EeARXFE (7) -
Proceeds from disposal of advance HEBRMEERERZ
operating lease payments FrS s IE 63 139
Proceeds from disposal of associates RSN T Y S SR 53 10
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries S B A A Z TS 508 68 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’iiﬁ%% BERBEY
plant and equipment FrfS s Ia 604 422
Decrease/(increase) in amount due FELU R RS RE A B B
from an intermediate holding company B, (3En) 549 6)
Capital expenditure B (8,458) (12,330)
Interest received BRI E 267 185
Loans to an associate J \T)\% B =/NE] (128) (173)
Loans repaid by third parties FE=FEEER 27 162
Net cash used in investing activities RAXBAAREFE | (7,000)| (13,499
Cash flows from financing activities RMEETHME2HSRE
Capital contributions from non-controlling FEIEFI MR EE
interests 1,726 1,433
Dividends paid to owners of the Company. ENARAIRERE 15 (1,742) (522)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [RANE 2 e ey s (2,800) (5,205)
Increase in borrowings E e 13,811 26,377
Repayment of borrowings EBEEE (20,348) (17,182)
Interest paid B E (1,821) (1,438)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid ENmEREREe A (145) (146)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid ~ EffEEEHEH S F 230D (16) (24)
Acquisition from non-controlling interests M FEE S MR e S (20) (16)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (FTA) ELE
_financing activities ZBREF® | (11,385) 8277
(Decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁlﬁ Bz
cash equivalents W) /8 (1,337) 3,071
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January EA H HzRER
ReZEER 21,850 19,165
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREE) o5& (39) (386)
Cash and cash equivalents RTZA=+—H2ZHER
at 31 December REe%HEER 26 20,474 21,850

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 FffsE -
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

RZZB-N\F—H—B AEEEOLER

B

M EER BT R EEMEIMEERIE155 -
RIBATERBIEE  ATHLRENALEED - F

287 3() °

The notes on pages 91 to 245 form part of these financial 5591 &= 245 B RN E A ANB 753 R 3% 2 — 209

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its ultimate holding
company is China National Petroleum Corporation
(“CNPC”) which is a company established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The immediate holding
company of the Company is Sun World Limited (“Sun
World”), which is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. On 18 December 2008, PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”), a subsidiary of CNPC,
acquired 100% equity interest in Sun World. Since then,
PetroChina has become an intermediate holding company
of the Company. As at 31 December 2018, PetroChina
indirectly owned 58.33% (2017: 58.33%) equity interest in
the Company.

The address of the Company’s principal office and
registered office are 39/F, 118 Connaught Road West,
Hong Kong and Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are the exploration and production
of crude oil and natural gas in the PRC, the Republic
of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”), the Sultanate of Oman
(“Oman”), the Republic of Peru (“Peru”), the Kingdom
of Thailand (“Thailand”) and the Republic of Azerbaijan
(“Azerbaijan”), the sales of natural gas, liquefied natural gas
(“LNG”) processing and terminal business and transmission
of natural gas in the PRC.

—RAN

ERERERAT(AAA D REREET
ek RERRBRAR - MERKOERS
BARZAERAR LT - ARG HRKIE
BArBFEABRAREERRAR ([F
BEARERE])  —HRPEARLMEH(F
B 1)K ZAR e RARZEEERARR
Sun World Limited ([ Sun World|) * 5% A &
A—HRRBREZESIMK L AR - B
—EEN\F+-A+N\B " FEARHEEZ
B ARFBEARRKARKO AR AR ([H
B A |) U BE Sun World 2 100% % #E » It
% RBIAAKARRAR P HEERAT -
R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H +EEHH
BEHBEANNTZ258.33% (T —+4F:
58.33%) °

ARGz EEMEREREAMPEE LU D
R &% T #8178 11858 3948 X Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda °

ARRAPRBIEERADR] - KRR 2 EEM
BAR BMEARRAELECETERK
LR R B - e B 5e HTE L AN B ([ re & 5 T
B MeHABE(HE])  WEBHNE
(T&]) - FER([3EE ) - FEFELM
B (TP =8 |) Bk S AL EE UM e R AR, -
ARRPEBEERAR  HEBRIERAR
(TLNG ) b T B2 {58 75 R BA R AR, ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) had two (2017: two)
major production sharing arrangements, located in the
PRC and Azerbaijan respectively. On 30 December 1997,
the Group entered into an oil production sharing contract
(the “Leng Jiapu Contract”) to develop and produce crude
oil in Liaohe, Liaoning Province, the PRC. In 2002, the
Group acquired another production sharing arrangement
to develop and produce crude oil in Azerbaijan. Further
details in relation to the Leng Jiapu Contract and the
Group’s share of results and net assets in this arrangement
are shown in Note 34.

The oil operations in the PRC are conducted through
production sharing arrangements with PetroChina,
whereas the oil operations in Azerbaijan are conducted
through production sharing arrangements with both
PetroChina and a third party. The Group is entitled to a
fixed percentage of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of those oil operations in accordance with the respective oil
production sharing contracts entered into with PetroChina
and the third party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3(z)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for other financial assets which are stated
at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 3(h).

2 (RREE
(@) +EREHSA

ZEVBRRERBER LGS
(IFEEtMAg ) BEMZMEER
ZEBUHHEERN (BB BRE
R MRS - ZSEEREMAER
ZER BT BHREER - BEE
ER([FEGTER ) ket FE
RRBERARBBRRGIIHKER
o WEMBHREANMT BT AR
ZFERARES EMAR( EMR
Al]) 2R WERRS - RERERAH
EZSAHERN T XHE -

BEEGHMASERANAEEZ K
AT ER B R A R AT R R IR A Y
BT HR 2 BB BREER ML E
2B mELER - YR ERZ
FRAEEAR B EWHRE LR
Fol B E R RAE ST B 5K
REH CRERRZFVBHRRA
BRAEMIIENIES(>) -

(b) MBRREREE

HE-_Z—\F+-_BA=1+—H8ItF
B2 FEMEmRBIEANER KA
EERBE RN NEBERE IR -

RURHBRROREERE LN
A% - BTFFINAFEARL Kb
AR IR 5N (B 3 3(0) AT BLZ B3 IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2

7\

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB8,484 million. Notwithstanding the
net current liabilities of the Group at 31 December
2018, the Group’s consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis
because the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) are of the opinion that the Group would
have adequate funds to meet its obligation, as and
when they fall due, having regard to the following:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

(i) the Group expects to obtain credit facility
from China Petroleum Finance Company
Limited (“CP Finance”). On 7 March 2019,
the Group obtained a credit facility of RMB20
billion from CP Finance covering a period
ending 31 March 2020;

(ii) the Group expects to generate operating
cash inflows in the future; and

(iii) the Directors consider that the Group could
obtain financing from various sources of
funding.

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

On 28 September 2017, PetroChina Kunlun
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Kunlun Gas”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
acquisition agreement with PetroChina. Pursuant
to the acquisition agreement, Kunlun Gas agreed
to purchase and PetroChina agreed to sell 51%
equity interest in Jingtang Co. at a consideration of
approximately RMB1,547 million. The consideration
would be settled in RMB and subject to adjustment
by the gains or losses during the transition period,
as defined in the acquisition agreement.
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2

3

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The acquisition was completed on 14 December
2017 and Jingtang Co. has become a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group since
then. As PetroChina and the Group are ultimately
controlled by CNPC, the acquisition of Jingtang
Co. was regarded as business combination under
common control. To consistently apply the Group’s
accounting policy for common control combination,
the acquisition has been accounted for based on
the principles of merger accounting as set out in
Accounting Guideline 5, Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations (“AG 5”) issued
by the HKICPA. The financial statements of the
Group have been prepared using the merger basis
of accounting as if the current Group structure had
been in existence throughout the periods presented.
The final consideration was RMB1,906 million,
including the gains during the transition period
amounting to approximately RMB359 million.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 3(p) and 3(q) depending on the nature of the
liability.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 3(h)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (see Note 3(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 3(m)(ii)).

A listing of the Group’s principal subsidiaries is set
out in Note 40.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate or
joint venture that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised
as profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised as other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with any other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 3(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses. Impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
(see Note 3(mj(ii)).

Listings of the Group’s principal associates and
joint ventures are shown in Notes 41 and 42,
respectively.
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(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Accounting for production sharing contracts

Production sharing contracts constitute joint
operations. The Group shall recognise in relation to
its interest in joint operations:

(i)

(V)

(v)

its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any
liabilities incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operations;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operations; and

its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

Foreign currencies

(i)

(i)

Functional currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

(i)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date
is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are
translated into presentation currency at
the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into presentation currency at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTFHHR (E)
(CONTINUED)
(€) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% BERRME

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties (Note 3(f)) and construction in progress,
are initially recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost where it is probable that
they will generate future economic benefits. Cost
represents the purchase price of the asset and other
costs incurred to bring the asset into existing use.
For construction in progress, cost comprises direct
costs of construction as well as interest charges,
and foreign exchange differences on related
borrowed funds to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest charges, during the
periods of construction. Construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when
the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.
Subsequent to their initial recognition, property, plant
and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion and amortisation (including
any impairment) (see Note 3(m)(ii)).

Depreciation to write-off the cost of each asset,
other than oil and gas properties (Note 3(f)), to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives is
calculated using the straight-line method.

The Group uses the following useful lives for
depreciation purposes:
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- Natural gas 10-30 years - RAREE 10-304F

pipelines

- Equipment and ~ 4-30 years - BB ES 4-304F

machinery

- Motor vehicles ~ 4-14 years - B 4-144F

= Others 5-12 years - HA 5-124F

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until the assets are completed and ready
for use.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values and useful lives of assets are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment are determined by reference to their
carrying amounts and are recorded in profit or loss.

Interest and other costs on borrowings to finance
the construction of property, plant and equipment
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Costs for repair and maintenance
activities are expensed as incurred except for
costs of components that result in improvements
or betterments which are capitalised as part of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
their useful lives.
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(CONTINUED)

)

Oil and gas properties

The successful efforts method of accounting is used
for oil and gas exploration and production activities.
Under this method, all costs for development
wells, support equipment and facilities, and proved
mineral interests in oil and gas properties are
capitalised. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed when incurred. Costs of exploratory wells
are capitalised as construction in progress pending
determination of whether the wells find proved
oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil and
natural gas, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable
certainty to be economically producible from a given
date forward, from known reservoirs, and under
existing economic conditions, operating methods,
and government regulation before the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expire,
unless evidence indicates that renewal is reasonably
certain regardless of whether the estimate is a
deterministic estimate or probabilistic estimate.
Existing economic conditions include prices and
costs at which economic producibility from a
reservoir is to be determined. The price shall be the
average price during the 12-month period before
the ending date of the period covered by the report,
determined as an unweighted arithmetic average
of the first-day-of-the-month price for each month
within such period unless prices are defined by
contractual arrangements, excluding escalations
based upon future conditions. The cost shall be that
prevailing at the end of the period.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(f)

Oil and gas properties (Continued)

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major
capital expenditure are evaluated for economic
viability within one year of completion of drilling.
The related well costs are expensed as dry holes
if it is determined that such economic viability is
not attained. Otherwise, the related well costs are
reclassified to oil and gas properties and are subject
to impairment review (Note 3(m)(ii). For exploratory
wells that are found to have economically viable
reserves in areas where major capital expenditure
will be required before production can commence,
the related well costs remain capitalised only if
additional drilling is underway or firmly planned.
Otherwise the related well costs are expensed as
dry holes. The Group does not have any significant
costs of unproved properties capitalised in oil and
gas properties.

The Ministry of Land and Resources in China issues
production licenses to applicants on the basis of the
reserve reports approved by relevant authorities.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised
at the field level based on the units of production
method. Units of production rates are based on oil
and gas reserves estimated to be recoverable from
existing facilities based on the current terms of the
Group’s production licenses. The Group’s oil and
gas reserves estimates include only crude oil and
condensate and natural gas which management
believes can be reasonably produced within the
current terms of these production licenses.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(9) Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment (see Note 3(m)
(ii)). Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed.

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3

KU

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(9)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired
by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 3(m)(ii)). Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while
their useful lives are assessed to be
indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life
of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of
change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite
lives as set out above.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set
out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see Note 4.3. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see Note 3(s)(v)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 ESEE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(h) Other investments in debt and equity securities (h)
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Investments other than equity investments
(Continued)

- fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) — recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- FVPL, if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(h) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income
in accordance with the policy set out in Note
3(s)(iv).

FEEHBER (R)

(h) REBRRAZFHEARE (E)

(A)

BE-E-NF—HA—HEEH
ZIBE ()

RARE

RIEARE S Z WE WD BRIR
NFHER AR - BRIFZBR
REVIIFNXFRENFAER
RUITERRER - KEBEIE
BRI EE - HERE
BB AFEF AR M2 E WS
(TrRIEEE18aE) - Bt - BE
BOAFEZESHNEMEER
MR - RFEEUEET
AERERFL - BESERT
ARBRBE MR 2 EEHN
B TS « tEHZRER
REMEEREANRAZEHE
DR EBE R FERE(TA
BEERDE) AEEZKRE
HE - REER - RAFER
w(TrEmEEs) AR Z
SREARGFEN  Bred
EEfm - RABHFREEL
ZEE(TwmoBERERATE
APABmEIE A EF AR
2| W) A5 R IE M 3()(v)
PREUB R R E U st i 1R 28

EmEERARLH

—E)N\FFEERE \

111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading
were classified as financial assets measured
at FVPL. Any attributable transaction costs
were recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair
value was remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had
the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity were classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities were
stated at amortised cost (for impairment
see Note 3(m)(i) — policy applicable prior to
1 January 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any of
the above categories were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the fair value reserve (recycling). Dividend
income from equity investments and interest
income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in Notes 3(s)(iv) and
3(s)(v), respectively. Foreign exchange gains
and losses arising from debt securities were
also recognised in profit or loss. When the
investments were derecognised or impaired
(see Note 3(m)(i) — policy applicable prior to
1 January 2018), the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity was reclassified to profit
or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write-off the cost
or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in Note 3(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 3(m)(ii). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of lease term.

Inventories

Inventories include natural gas, liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG”), compressed natural gas, materials
for natural gas pipelines and crude oil which are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories is primarily determined by the
weighted average cost method, which comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads, but excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the cost of completion and selling
exXpenses.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 3(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 3(m)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see Note 3(1)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(s)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see Note 3())).

ITEE

(k)

st BUR (48)

BRNEERGHNARE

EARSEAREEGRTERS WM
SR E AT RER WA (R HTEES(s))
RBRRANEE - ANEERME
M) AR FAEEEEE (178
HEEER]) E1TRHE - LERER
MR B EGHRER DB ERWKKIA
(RHEES())

7 55 B 7 SR AR B U A ( R BT 52 3(s))
Al BHBEBEREFPZAREIRE
KRR o IS B A SRR R
7N 5= B 1 SR AR B LA BT B AT AR [B14X
B AEeRaBEreRR - Ez55E
T - MU FRIB IR T RER (R
FE3() °

EmEERARLH

115

STNEERES \_ )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(k)

U

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, contract balances were
recorded for construction contracts at the net
amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit less
recognised losses and progress billings. These net
balances were presented as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or
the “Gross amount due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable, under “Non-
current other liabilities” or “Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities” on a contract-by-contract basis.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer were
included under “Accounts receivable”. Amounts
received before the related work was performed
were presented as “Advances from customers”
under “Accounts payable and accrued liabilities”.
These balances have been reclassified on 1 January
2018 as shown in Note 29 (see Note 3(z)(ii)).

Accounts receivable

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see Note 3(k)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 3(m)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEEHEK(E)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) FEEBENEERE
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) KRELHBTARESHEEN S
and contract assets V-7 7
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A BZZE-NF—-—H—H
B HE
The Group recognises a loss NER B R iR S A AN AT
allowance for ECL on financial assets ELCMEEZLESRE
measured at amortised cost (including EEERREERE
cash and cash equivalents, accounts (BIERE MRS EEE

and other receivables and loans to
an associate and joint ventures) and
debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling).

Financial assets measured at fair
value, including equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling), are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

A

Annual Report 2018

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For undrawn loan commitments,
expected cash shortfalls are
measured as the difference between (j)
the contractual cash flows that would
be due to the Group if the holder of
the loan commitment draws down on
the loan and (i) the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive if the loan is
drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
accounts and other
receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the
items to which the ECL model
applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

A

// Annual Report 2018

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for accounts
receivable, lease receivables and
contract assets, are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EZ:HK(4H)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) EEEBEMEEREGE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () HKRELBIARSHEENE
and contract assets (Continued) BE7E (E)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A B-ZFE-NF-HA—H

(Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

—NFET_A=+—HILFE

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates ;

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration in a
financial instrument's external
or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
and

— existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability
to meet its obligation to the
Group.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument's credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at
FVOCI (recycling), for which the
loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

A

// Annual Report 2018

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with Note 3(s)(v) is
calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such
as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

= significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because
of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an "incurred
loss" model was used to measure
impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at FVPL
(e.g. accounts and other receivables
and available-for-sale investments).
Under the "incurred loss" model, an
impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:

- significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such
as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
// Annual Report 2018

FEEHBER (R)

FEBERNEERE (&)

() FKELBTARSHEENE
BER (&)

B R=-F-—/NIF-—H—FH
AIAE 2 R

R-—F—/\$—HA—H
Al RDBERAF
Bt ABGZZE®E
2= (20 8 iR 3R Ko H Atb
JE W R IR N Al i
BIRIEELEER| &R
AFEREEBR &
[BELEE] EXT
REEBEENTH IR
BB ERER - BE
ZEBERBR

= BEHABHER
FATSIREE

= ENEMN - R
BN ST B AT
MEHAE

- EB AR S
WESKETTEA
BIRSEAR

= B M5 &
B SOREIRIR H
HBEANEEME
B AELETH

B/ 48R .
572N

= WRATAREEY
DR BEKEK
FETREER
HKAME



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEHBUER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) EEEBEMEEREGE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () HKRELBIARSHEENE
and contract assets (Continued) BE7E (E)

B R-F-NF—H—H
B2 B % ()

HWEFEREEE  $i&

impairment loss was determined and AT 75 2R 5E R HERRR

recognised as follows: BEE :

- For accounts and other - R AR AR
receivables and other financial 2 FEW AR 7 e B
assets carried at amortised it & W 5K 18 2 B
cost, impairment loss was fth & B0 & B 2R
measured as the difference BEE REE
between the asset's carrying AR T B B 5T R
amount and the present %fﬁimbiiﬁﬁ
value of estimated future LEBEETE W
cash flows, discounted at TR & g% =
the financial asset's original AN AZe@E
effective interest rate, where ERRERF =
the effect of discounting was BhIR - Mt E &
material. This assessment was BEERBEEL

made collectively where these
financial assets shared similar
risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and
had not been individually

R a0
BUB ISR &
WAREBHFE S
BAE - RIA R

mERBET-

assessed as impaired. Future SR EREZ
cash flows for financial assets EEEEZARNK

which were assessed for
impairment collectively were
based on historical loss
experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively
to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that
it did not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EESHBR(E)

(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) FEEBSENEEREE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) KEZHBTARSHEENS
and contract assets (Continued) BEE (&)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January B) R—FE—/F—H—H
2018 (Continued) BB 2 B R (&)
When the recovery of a trade i A DA #8 85 B AR
debtor or other financial assets AI| B Y JE U BR 5K
carried at amortised cost was S EMEREE
considered doubtful but not I gEI
remote, associated impairment REATER M
losses were recorded using JETRF-H A% - Al
an allowance account. When EHERREEE
the Group was satisfied that DA 5 BR AER ©
recovery was remote, the i 7 5= B FE RR 1]

amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against the gross
carrying amount of those assets
directly. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in
the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off
directly were recognised in profit
or loss.

For available-for-sale
investments, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised
in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of
the cumulative loss that was
recognised in profit or loss
was the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities were not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such
assets was recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities were reversed
if the subsequent increase in fair
value could be objectively related
to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances were recognised
in profit or loss.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- oil and gas properties;

- advanced operating lease payments;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the investment’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
ready for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

132

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY
// Annual Report 2018

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —=F

(CONTINUED)

(m)

(n)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss in respect of
assets other than goodwill is reversed
if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted into
ordinary shares at the option of the holder, where

the number of shares to be issued is fixed, are

accounted for as compound financial instruments,
i.e. they contain both a liability component and an
equity component.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value based
on the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the prevailing market rate of interest
for similar non-convertible instruments. The equity
component is the difference between the initial
fair value of the convertible bonds as a whole
and the initial fair value of the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible bond equity reserve
until either the bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bond
equity reserve, together with the carrying amount of
the liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds are
redeemed, the convertible bond equity reserve is
released directly to retained earnings.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, deposits held with banks and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(m)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

)

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has unconditional rights to defer
settlements of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

Taxation

Income tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(r)

Taxation (Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date
in the countries where the Group, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from initial recognition of
goodwill. The deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

r)

(s)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

The Group also incurs various other taxes and levies
that are not income tax. “Taxes other than income
taxes”, which form part of operating expenses,
primarily comprise resource tax, urban construction
tax, education surcharges and business tax.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group's assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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3

KU

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Rendering of services

The Group's revenue from rendering of
services is primarily attributable to provision
of natural gas pipeline transmission services
and LNG gasification and unloading services.
Revenue from the rendering of these services
is recognised in the profit or loss when
control over these services is transferred
to the customer upon transmission of the
natural gas or the gasification or unloading of
LNG.

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by
the Group as a construction contract when
the contract relates to work on assets under
the control of the customer and therefore
the Group’s construction activities create
or enhance an asset under the customer's
control.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be reasonably measured, revenue from
the contract is recognised progressively over
time using the cost-to-cost method, i.e.
based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning
contractual bonuses for early completion
or suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in making
these estimates, such that revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.

Revenue for construction contracts
was recognised on a similar basis in the
comparative period under HKAS 11.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment
is established.

- Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see Note

3(m)(i)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE
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(CONTINUED)

®

Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary
assets or non-monetary assets that the Group
receives from the government, excluding capital
injection by the government as an investor. Special
funds such as investment grants allocated by the
government, if clearly defined in official documents
as part of “capital reserve” are dealt with as capital
contributions, and not regarded as government
grants.

Government grants are recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group is able to comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Government grants
in the form of monetary assets are recorded based
on the amount received or receivable, whereas non-
monetary assets are measured at fair value.

Government grants received in relation to assets
are recorded as deferred income, and recognised
evenly in profit or loss over the assets’ useful lives.
Government grants received in relation to revenue
are recorded as deferred income, and recognised
as income in future periods as compensation when
the associated future expenses or losses arise; or
directly recognised as income in the current period
as compensation for past expenses or losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: (i) the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events;
(ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and (iii) reliable
estimates of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Retirement benefit plans

The Group contributes to various employee
retirement benefit plans organised by PRC
municipal and provincial governments under which
it is required to make monthly contributions to these
plans at prescribed rates for its employees in the
PRC. The relevant PRC municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of existing and future retired
employees of the Group in the PRC. The Group has
similar retirement benefit plans for its employees
in its overseas operations. Contributions to these
PRC and overseas plans are charged to expense
as incurred. The Group currently has no additional
material obligations outstanding for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement benefits of
employees in the PRC or overseas other than the
monthly contributions described above.
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(CONTINUED)

(w)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price); excluding the
impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save). Non-market
performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital for the shares issued.
When the options expire or are lapsed, the equity
amount recognised in the employee share-based
compensation reserve is released directly to retained
earnings.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(x) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family,

U

(i)

(i)

(b) An enti

is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.

ity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

0

(i)

7\
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The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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(CONTINUED)

()

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and Executive Directors for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTEHHR (E)
(CONTINUED)
(z7  Changes in accounting policies (2 BTBEREH
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The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to
the Group’s financial statements:

FEGMASERONAKRELS
IR B R AR BORFTR] BB R 7
W 2R BB B REERNERT
7R o B o 51 R BN SR B O B 75
WA

o HKFRS 9, Financial instruments . BT BRELERZE IR
[2F A |
o HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with o BB HREYERZE 1558
customers [ 2B EF&a A |
. HK(FRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions . % (BRI BmERE

and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement.
It sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell
non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively to items that existed at
1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information continues to be
reported under HKAS 39.

e
RER)BREFE 2
(90X 5 R FET1E ]

AREE W ERBEARAS 5 BE =
REMRFTEL HERE o

() BEUBHEREZEREIN £
BTA/

FREV B mEENFIFRIMA
BEETENER (2@ T
A ERRAE] WERE
JeMEE RABNRIES
FERIBRSNEBENRER
FTEENK -

AEERBBIERTEEHER
BEREVBHREENFIRN =
- N\F-RA—HREFEH
BHE - AEECHIERER
MEBFHEERR T \F
—A—BRERZHE -
It RIEE B ST ERE 3955
B2 WLLBER -



3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

@

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings
and reserves and the related tax impact as at

FEEHBER (R)
@ SFEXR25#E)
() BEUBHREZEREIR £
BTA /&)

TERBABEEREMERE
FERFEIREN T —N\F—
A—RZ8GFBMNN#E 2

1 January 2018. ZAREAMBTE -
RMB’million
AREBEET
Retained earnings BEEF
Recognition of additional LB U AR R HERR BRI
expected credit losses TEEMEEEE
on accounts receivable (810)
Related tax FERETIE 76
Net decrease in retained earnings RZE—-\F—H—H
as at 1 January 2018 LBRGFRIB A FEE (234)
Fair value reserve (recycling) AR ERE(TEEREER)
Transferred to fair value reserve R=E—\F—H—H
(non-recycling) relating to ERZENRATES A MEEKRE
other financial assets 2 H A e Eh & ZE A
now measured at FVOCI 2N FEREE
as at 1 January 2018 (] sEE £182) (167)
Fair value reserve (non-recycling) 2 FE&E(FAEEEEE)
Transferred from fair value reserve R-_Z— N\F—H—H&EH
(recycling) relating to ERRATEFAEMEEKETE
other financial assets 2 B & EE A R
now measured at FVOCI 2 NFEFEE
as at 1 January 2018 QL IEES ) 167

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition approach are set out below:
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

(@)
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Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets
into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortised
cost, at FVOCI and at FVPL. These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of
held-to-maturity investments, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS
9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics.

Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the
host is a financial asset in the scope
of the standard are not separated
from the host. Instead, the hybrid
instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

The following table shows the original
measurement categories for each
class of the Group’s financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the
carrying amounts of those financial
assets determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 to those impacted by
and determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9.
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—NFH+ZA=T—HLHFE

EFTBR ()

(CONTINUED)
(z7  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (2) EBEECREE (&)
(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (i) EEHBIREERFIN £
(Continued) AT HE|(4E)
(a)  Classification of financial assets and (@ EFHEERTHEER
financial liabilities (Continueqd) IR (&)
HKAS 39 carrying HKFRS 9 carmying
amount as at amount as at
31 December 2017 1 January 2018
RF—tF RZF-N%
tZA=+-H2 —A-BES
BheE Reclassfication Remeasurement psse=
F305HAR BHNE EFiE F9FEEE
RVB'milion RMB'million RMB'million RMB'milion
AREEET AREEET AREEET AREBET
Financial assets carried REHARTIR
atamortised cost JEREE
Accounts receivable U 2,846 - (310) 253
Financial assets measured BAVETAR2 ElE
at FVOCI (non-recyclable) TEZEREE
(FUBEZEH)
Other financial assets (note) AoepaE (HE) - 352 - 352
Financial assets classified REEAETER
as available-for-sale under £0%AIER
HKAS 39 (note) L ESRER (i) 32 (32) - -
Note: Under HKAS 39, equity securities sk« RIBEBRBSFER]
not held for trading were classified 395 - I?H%{’E
as available-for-sale financial BEERBZIRAFE
assets. These equity securities are SofaRnHHE
classified as at FVPL under HKFRS TREE - RIEF
9, unless they are eligible for 7S B 15 3k & 25 Al
and designated at FVOCI by the O ZFERA
Group. As at 1 January 2018, the BHEDERERTF
Group designated other financial Bat N2 0 BRIE
assets at FVOCI (non-recycling), as ZERABHEFTE
the investment is held for strategic Ei& B B AEE S

purposes. The amounts have
been included in the consolidated
statement of financial position
under “Intangible and other non-
current assets”.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

(@)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial
assets and recognises related gains
and losses under HKFRS 9, see
respective accounting policy notes in
Notes 3(h), (I), (M)(i) and (o).

The measurement categories for all
financial liabilities remain the same
and the carrying amounts for all
financial liabilities at 1 January 2018
have not been impacted by the initial
application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-
designate any financial asset or
financial liability at FVPL at 1 January
2018.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

(b)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with the ECL
model. The ECL model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than
under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL
model to financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, accounts and other
receivables and loans to an associate
and joint ventures).

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see Note 3(m)(i).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

(b)

Credit losses (Continued)

The following table reconciles the
closing loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKAS 39 as at 31
December 2017 with the opening loss
allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.

FEEHBER (R)

(2 EFBESH(E)

(i) BB BEHREERFEIN £
B@TA (&)

b) I1FEER(E)

TRINFR_F—1F
TZA=t—HAREE
e ERF3RERE
MERE R R EER
Z-\FE—-A—ARE
BAMBHRELERE
SR R RV E R

LR ©
RMB’ million
ARBBETT
Loss allowance as R_E—+tF+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2017 BIBEREA G ERZE 395
under HKAS 39 EERBEEE 181
Additional credit loss recognisedas ~ RZ=ZT—/\F—H—H
at 1 January 2018 on BLAE W AR AR R AY
accounts receivable EIMz EEE 310
Loss allowance as R_ZE—/\F—H—H
at 1 January 2018 BB E BN RS 4R
under HKFRS 9 FORETENEERE 491
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resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9 have been applied retrospectively,
except as described below:

- Information relating to

comparative periods has not
been restated. Differences
in the carrying amounts of
financial assets resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9
are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at 1
January 2018. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under
HKAS 39 and thus may not be
comparable with the current
period.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EZ:HK(4H)
(CONTINUED)
(z7  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (2 BTBE2E (&)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (i) EBUEHREERFIN £
(Continued) AT A (&)
(c)  Transition © B
Changes in accounting policies BB RS ER
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(Continued)

()

Transition (Continued)

The following assessments
have been made on the basis
of the facts and circumstances
that existed as at 1 January
2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group):

- the determination of the
business model within
which a financial asset
is held; and

— the designation of
investments in equity
instruments not held for
trading to be classified
as at FVOCI (non-
recycling).

If, at the date of initial
application, the assessment
of whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition would
have involved undue cost or
effort, a lifetime ECL has been
recognised for that financial
instrument.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

// Annual Report 2018

FEEHBER (R)

BT BR2E (F)

BB BHRESEANEIR £
B TA (&)

©  EE(HE)

- AN R TR B
—F-NF—H
—B(X&EE
RERBEYH
HEERFEIR
EH)MNEER
BIIE

= BERE
TREE
B R 1R
=W

- 7 I I +5
FEEHM
Edl N
7 7 2
BEER
/NS ]
AAEAM
2 H K=
(TEEE [

=85H) °

- fiei & 70 B R FE R
ZB - FHEEE
2 e £ Y] 4R FE AR
& 2B BEIEN
RELEBZH
A S A - Bl
Lz Bt T A%
REEFERE
HEEREE -



3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue and
some costs from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covered revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

@) Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from
construction contracts and provision
of services was recognised over time,
whereas revenue from sale of goods
was generally recognised at a point
in time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods had passed
to the customers.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(@)

Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. This may be
at a single point in time or over time.
HKFRS 15 identifies the following
three situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded
as being transferred over time:

A. When the customer
simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity
performs;

B. When the entity’s performance
creates or enhances an asset
(for example work in progress)
that the customer controls
as the asset is created or
enhanced;

C. When the entity’s performance
does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to
date.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these
3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for
the sale of that good or service at
a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership is only one
of the indicators that is considered
in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not
have a significant impact on how the
Group recognises revenue.

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust
the transaction price for the time value
of money when a contract contains
a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received
significantly in advance of revenue
recognition or significantly deferred.

Previously, the Group only applied
such a policy when payments were
significantly deferred, which was not
common in the Group’s arrangements
with its customers. The Group did not
apply such a policy when payments
were received in advance.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(b)

()

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Significant financing component
(Continued)

It is not common for the Group to
receive payments significantly in
advance of revenue recognition in
the Group’s arrangements with its
customers. The financing component
would not be significant to the
contract.

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration.
If the Group recognises the related
revenue (see Note 3(s)) before
being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather
than a payable, is recognised when
a customer pays consideration,
or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue. For
a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net
basis (see Note 3(k)).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

()

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Previously, contract balances were
presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position under
“other liabilities” or “accounts payable
and accrued liabilities”.

To reflect these changes in
presentation, the Group has made the
following adjustments as at 1 January
2018, as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 15:

A. “Advances from customers”
and “deferred income”
amounting to RMB8,481
million and RMB400 million
respectively, which were
previously included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities
are now included under
“contract liabilities” in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities;
and

B. “Deferred income” amounting
to RMB763 million, which was
previously included in non-
current other liabilities is now
included under “non-current
contract liabilities” in non-
current other liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

@

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii)

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction” for
the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it)
arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date
of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or
liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt
should be determined in this way. The
adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and
the financial result of the Group.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1

Financial risk factors

Exposure to foreign exchange rate risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

Risk management is carried out by the management
of the Group under policies approved by the Board
of Directors. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to the risks mentioned above or the
manner in which it manages and measures the
risks.

HEEGEERSMTAATE

4.1

B E B EZE
$E B —MEKBER 5&&9%@@
fEERR - RBE SRR &FIE

RAHE Kil%%ﬁxﬁﬂ 2 Y 1
/R&ZIK%IEHECAIEEZQHEME’J%?%
R EIEBR M B AN T

REERERASEEREEREESS
BECHRET EREEENER
ZERR - DATER KRB B A
HE 2K o Ll AEBAEER R
BRARE R REERR 2 A
&) o

BREBERAT
—E\EEERE \

161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
rate risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currency giving rise to this
risk is primarily United States dollar (“US
dollar”). The Group is also exposed to
foreign exchange rate risk in respect of the
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
which are denominated in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) and US dollar.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date.
Differences resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 ARG EERERI TRAAFEE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIEEEE (E)
(a)  Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued) (a MERE ()

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)

NeER
(MAREHT)
2018 2017
-\ Tt
US dollar HK$ US dolar HK$
EY) BT I BT
RMB’million RMB’million RVB'milion RMB'milion
AE®BER AE®EER AREBET ARERET
Accounts receiableand  FERERER
other cument assets Hfrn8azE - 10 5 9
Cash and cash equivalents  B&RBESEEE 314 3 360 216
Accounts payable and ERGHR
acorued liabilties Eitaf (29) (10) (100) (14)
Borrowings fEg (7,676) (4,859) (7,249) (3.229)
(Gross exposLre arising ERZEER
fomrecognised assets  BEEE
and liabilties 2BER (7.291) (4.826) 6984 B011)
The Group did not enter into any hedge REBWERNERAZIIFEE
contracts during any of the years presented R ETSLAE A & 49 DA S5 R
to hedge against its foreign exchange rate FER - AT BEEERYE
risk. However, management monitors the iR INE R - WA NE
related foreign currency exposure closely R R P E RN R o

and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 BB EREERESMTIAEATE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIEEREE (E)
(a)  Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued) (a) MERE ()
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRIRHAEBR RS ER
change in the Group’s profit after tax HHERERAEZRRZB E
(and retained earnings) that would arise if REBE - AEEMBRTIEE
foreign exchange rates to which the Group F(RRmFRF) # BN # &)
has significant exposure at the end of the (RZ P A E b [ b 2 B 155
reporting period had changed at that date, TE) -
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in increase in
Increase/ profit for the Increase/ profit for the
(decrease) year and (decrease) year and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rates RMB’million rates RMB’million
FRaFlk FREM &
RERF BT EF
fE = (R2) /% i CRD) /i
tH/ () ARBEER EA/(TR) AREBET
US dollar T 5% (370) 5% (349
(5%) 370 (5%) 349
HK$ BT 5% (241) 5% (151)
(5%) 241 (5%) 151

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after tax and retained
earnings measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —=F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a

(b)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a
counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk arises
primarily from accounts receivable.

A substantial portion of the Group’s cash at
bank and time deposits is placed with state-
owned banks and financial institutions in
the PRC and management believes that the
credit risk is low.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Depending on market conditions,
debtors with balances that are past due over
a certain period would be requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivable at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases and
separate the customer bases into the related
parties and third parties. The management
considered that the credit risk associated
with accounts receivable from related parties
is low, taking into account the financial
position, past experience and other factors
of the related parties. The expected credit
loss rate for accounts receivable from
related parties is immaterial under lifetime
ECLs method. Thus, no loss allowance for
accounts receivable from related parties was
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 HBEKREERESMTAATE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIEEEE (E)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) ~EFEREEE)
The following table provides information TERREREBFEAAEER T
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk —N\F+ZA=+—H5EK
and ECLs for accounts receivable from third RREZ 2 EERR RBEHBE
parties as at 31 December 2018: EFEECER
Provision on
Gross carrying individual Loss
amount basis ECL rates ECLs allowance
RMERIER EHRE
REAE HERE BEZ REGEFE BERE
RMB’'million  RMB’million RMB’million ~ RMB’million
AREEER AR%EER % AREEET ARWEER
Within 1 year —ER 1,655 (50) 2.99% (48) (98)
Between 1 to 2 years —EWER 271 ©) 22.72% (59) (68)
Between 2 to 3 years WE=FR 92 2 33.40% (30) (32)
Between 310 4 years —EmER 133 79 48.14% 6) (105)
Between 4 to 5 years NERFR 70 (12) 65.43% (38) (50)
Over 5 years BENE 143 (18 100.00% (125) (149)
2,364 (170) (326) (496)

ECL rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past five years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment
loss was recognised only when there was
objective evidence of impairment (see
Note 3(m)(i) — policy applicable prior to
1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017,
trade receivables of RMB181 million were
determined to be impaired.

Accounts receivable that were neither past
due nor impaired related to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Accounts receivable that were past due
but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believed that
no impairment allowance was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had
been no significant change in credit quality
and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

4.1

Movement in the loss allowance account in

B EbRE & ()

=EERE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

MHEBEREERSMTAAFE(R)

EW IR R B B E 2 B 1R

respect of accounts receivables and contract HEIRNFAZEEINT
assets during the year is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\§ —T+F
RMB’million RBMB’million
ARBEER ARBEBET
Balance at 31 December under REEEGTERIFE 395
HKAS 39 N+ A=+—B4%&% 181 19
Impact on initial application of BAMBREENENRIAE
HKFRS 9 (Note 3(2)() BAER 22 (FE3)) 310 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—R—B&&% (FARE) 491 19
Amounts written off sy 5B @®) (1)
Impairment losses recognised RZAEEE 13 163
Balance at 31 December R+-A=1+—R#&&% 496 181
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, other
receivables, amounts due from related parties
and loans to third parties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk. No other financial assets carry a
significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s liquidity risk management
involves maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. Management prepares monthly
cash flow budget to ensure that the Group
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group arranges and negotiates financing with
financial institutions and maintains a certain
level of standby credit facilities to reduce the
Group’s liquidity risk.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
net current liabilities of RMB8,484 million.
The Group will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its
liquidity position in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Given the low level of gearing and continued
access to funding, the Group believes that its
liquidity risk is not material.

Analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities
based on the remaining period at the date
of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity dates are
presented in Notes 29, 30 and 31.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile
as monitored by management is set out in
below.

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 ARG EERSR T AAFEE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIEEREE (E)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued) (d) FIEREE(E)
2018 2017
= It —Ttf
Effective Effective
interestrate  RMB’million interest rate RMB’million
ERAZE AREEER ERFIER AREBETL
Fixed rate borrowings: EEfEE:
Bank loans BITER 4.55% 7,451 4.42% 7,384
Loans other than bank loans BREFITER
PAONZ EFR 4.05% 24,823 4.32% 32,285
Convertible bonds AEBRES 4.03% 3,306 4.03% 3,230
Obligations under finance lease B & E&IE 5.27% 203 5.27% 351
35,783 43,250

Variable rate borrowings: FEEE:

Loans other than bank loans BRIRITER

N2 ER 4.08% 2,961 2.86% 1,432
Total borrowings BEsE 38,744 44,682
Fixed rate borrowings as EREERAREE
a percentage of total Bott
borrowings 92.36% 96.80%

7 2\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit for the year and
retained earnings by approximately RMB25
million (2017: RMB12 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit for
the year and retained profits that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate borrowings
of the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as
2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, optimise returns for owners and to
minimise its cost of capital. In meeting its objectives
of managing capital, the Group may issue new
shares, adjust its debt levels or the mix between
short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is calculated as the sum of
interest-bearing borrowings, convertible bonds and
obligations under finance leases divided by the
sum of total equity, interest-bearing borrowings,
convertible bonds and obligations under finance
leases. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2018 is
35.60% (2017: 40.51%).

There were no changes in the management’s
approach to capital management of the Group
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3

Fair value estimation

4.3

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HLFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HEEREERSMTIRAATE ()

(CONTINUED)
4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3 ADFEMEE (&)
(a)  Financial assets measured at fair value (a) HAFEFNEZLHEEHE)
(Continued)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2018 categorised into 31 December 31 December 2017 categorised into
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017 Level Level2 Level3
RN R=$-NEtZA=t-A RZE—tE W_E-tE+-f=1-A
+tZB=t-A WALEHRAEA +ZA=1+-A HATEEAEA
Z0YE -4 b =8 PN E 24 220
RMB'million ~ RMB'millon ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'millon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion
AE®EEr ARMBER ARMEER ARMEER AR¥AEn ARERET ARMBET AREEET

Recurringfairvalue ~ BEHAFEHE

measurements
Oterfancidlassets ~ EHEREE
- Listed -tm 121 127 -

Avalableforsale TEESHEE
financial assets
- Listed -t - - -
- Unlsted -F L - - -

During the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occurred.

Information about fair value measurements

As at the date of the statement of financial
position, all the listed equity securities are
stated at fair values, which have been
determined by reference to bid prices quoted
in the respective stock exchanges. As at 31
December 2017, equity securities in the PRC
of RMB74 million are stated at cost. These
securities do not have quoted market price in
an active market and their fair values cannot
be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3

(a)

(b)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

The movements during the year in
the balance of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

4 HMBERBREEREMIRATEEGE)

4.3

(a)

DNFEME (F)

BAFETEZEHEE (&)

AEENE=MATEL B
2 BB :

RMB’million
ARBBEET
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-—FE—+&F—HF—QH - 74
and 1 January 2018 T+t F+-A=+—-BR
—E-\%—A—H
Disposal EE 74

At 31 December 2018

RZF-N\F+ZA=1+—H -

There were no gains or losses from Level 3
fair value measurements recognised in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 are not
materially different from their fair values.

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value
(Continued)

The fair values of long-term borrowings
are based on discounted cash flow using
applicable discount rates based upon the
prevailing market rates of interest available
to the Group for financial instruments
with substantially the same terms and
characteristics at the dates of the statement
of financial position. Such discount rates
ranged from 4.35% to 4.90% (2017:
4.35% to 4.90%) per annum as at 31
December 2018 depending on the type of
the borrowings. An analysis of the carrying
amounts of long-term borrowings is
presented in Note 30.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated by the
Group, based on historical experience and other factors
which include expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and judgement are
described as follows:

(a)

Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves

Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are key
elements in the Group’s investment decision-making
process. They are also an important element in
testing for impairment. Changes in proved oil and
natural gas reserves, particularly proved developed
reserves, will affect unit-of-production depreciation,
depletion and amortisation recorded in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for property, plant
and equipment related to oil and gas production
activities. A reduction in proved developed reserves
will increase depreciation, depletion and amortisation
charges. Proved reserve estimates are subject to
revision, either upward or downward, based on new
information, such as from development drilling and
production activities or from changes in economic
factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Estimation of impairment of non-financial
assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
was suffered any impairment. Property, plant
and equipment, including oil and gas properties,
are reviewed for possible impairments whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Determination as to whether and how much an
asset is impaired involves management estimates
and judgements such as future prices of crude oil
and natural gas, discount rate used in discounting
the projected cash flows and production profile.
However, the impairment reviews and calculations
are based on assumptions that are consistent with
the Group’s business plans. Favourable changes
to some assumptions may allow the Group to
avoid the need to impair any assets in these years,
whereas unfavourable changes may cause the
assets to become impaired.

Legal contingencies

The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as
well as the named party in other proceeding. While
the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or
other proceeding cannot be determined at present,
management believes that any resulting liabilities will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position or financial performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6 REVENUE 6

Revenue mainly represents revenue from the sales of
crude oil, the sales of natural gas, LNG processing and
terminal business and pipeline transmission of natural gas.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

A

WATREREBHERE  HERAR
LNG In TR E RS R EBREARAR I
A REFEPEHZWAREBER LR
BRI

by major products or service lines is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —FT—tF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
Disaggregated by major products B ZEmakREERNA S
or service lines
— Sales of natural gas products - HEXARE MW 86,087 71,203
— Sales of crude oil - SHERM 2,068 1,505
- Revenue from pipeline - BEEwmARBLA
transmission service 9,690 10,746
— Revenue from LNG processing, —LNGINTI - |fbRiEeE
gasification and entrucking service BRAS U A 7,625 5,252
105,470 88,706

The Group’s revenue are mainly derived from the sales of
goods to customers in the PRC and recognised point in
time.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
is disclosed in Note 36.

AEEZWAEZZREARTREFEESR - I
R — ISR B HERR ©

KAEEP AL WA TN TE 36 AIKE -

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Hib(E518) s B8
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+tF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARBBHET
Net exchange (losses)/gains EH (&) W F5 (758) 609
Rental income WA 70 93
Government grants S HERL 44 272
Others HAh 385 361
(259) 1,335

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

INTEREST INCOME 8 FIBKA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARKBET
Interest income on: FIEZ M BHA -
— Amounts due from related parties — PR A 75 50E 107 58
- Bank deposits - IRITFHK 188 153
295 211
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION COSTS 9 [EEMERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT AREBET

Salaries, wages and allowances e TERER 4,364 3,889

Retirement benefits scheme RIS FTEIMEK
contributions 481 440
4,845 4,329

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for
its staff. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 20% of
the salaries, bonus and certain allowances of its staff. The
Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits associated with these plans beyond
the annual contributions described above. The Group’s
contributions for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
RMB481 million (2017: RMB440 million).

RBFBEERZRE  AEELEALRK
MABAREAEE TERNSEEREER
RINGTEl - AEBBRZHEETH S - AR
BT R Z14% E 20% AR K 5T &) 1E H 4
oo B bz FEEDIN - REBEEBEAE
HZEHE AR HMRREANRERE
F-BEz_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILHF
B AEBHZABARKIBIBEL(ZE
—+tF : ARBE440FET) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

10 INTEREST EXPENSES 10 FIRxZH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBEER
Interest expenses on: FHEZFMEZH :
Bank loans IRITER 298 400
Senior notes BERE 228 234
Convertible bonds (Note 31) AERES (3E31) 131 128
Other loans, from: HiEZR > B :
— An intermediate holding company - — AP EIERR A F] 30 17
— An immediate holding company - —EEEZER AT 177 107
— CP Finance - R 748 678
— Fellow subsidiaries - R RKB AT 59 143
Finance charges on obligations under ~BEMREREZBMEER 8 :
finance leases, from:
— A fellow subsidiary - —ERRKB AT 7 13
— A third party -—%FE=7 6 8
Less: Amounts capitalised B B bLERE (554) (583)
1,130 1,145

Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are
attributable to the construction of qualifying assets. The
average interest rate used to capitalise such borrowing
cost was 4.19% (2017: 4.08%) per annum for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11

ltems charged in arriving at the profit before income tax

expense include:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

R P15 51 & A i

FRETSIEAANEF 2 ERIA NER -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBEET
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET &
— audit services - ZERTS 25 30
- non-audit services - IEZERTS 4 4
Cost of inventories recognised ERRRAZ 2 FERA
as expense 78,487 64,322
Operating lease expenses KEAERT 454 450
Depreciation and depletion of property, #1% - BE M & 2 ITE RIBRE
plant and equipment 6,025 5,487
Amortisation of advanced operating FENEEHERREREE 2
lease payments and intangible assets 164 164
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation #7& - 185 K # 4 6,189 5,651
EmeeRERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

12

N\

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 ESRETIZNE
EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of directors for the years ended HE-Z—\GEER-ZT—+tF+-A=+—
31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: HIEFERESZMeFBNT -
2018
—2-N\F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2018
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
R 1 BRIk —B-NE
EEZHe REEEA B HE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®Tn AR®Tn AR%TR AR%Tx
Directors: I
Mr Ling Xiao AERE(RZT-NE
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —AtZBEZE) - - - - -
Mr Zhao Yongg [z ihine - 72 - 23 795
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEEEE - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FEBxE (RZE—\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —AtZBEZE) - - - - -
Mr Miao Yong BEEE(RZZ-N\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —A+-REZMA) - - - - -
Mr Huang Weihe BENEE(RZE-NE
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+ZHEME) - - - - -
Mr Wu Enlai REREE(RZT-N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) — A+ HEHE) - - - - -
Mr Ding Shilu TTERE(RZE-N\E
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+ZHEME) - - - - -
Mr Zhang Yaoming RIRALE (RS- N\E
(resigned on 12 January 2018) — A+ HEHE) - - - - -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FTEELE 257 - - - 257
Dr Liu Xiao Feng 2EEEL 215 - - - 215
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 215 - - - 215
687 72 - 23 1,482
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 ESRETIZEME (8)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2017
“EtF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2017
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e R RIK Tt F
EERe  RAEEEAN Mg STEIEER masr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETn AR%Tn
Directors: %
Mr Huang Weihe ERAGE (RS- N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+=REE) - - = = -
Mr Wu Enlai REEEE(RZT-N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —At-B#fA) - - - - -
Mr Zhao Yongg izh) 4 ke = 642 - 51 693
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEELE - - - - -
Mr Ding Shilu TIERE(RZE-N\E
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —At=-B#fA) - - - - -
Mr Zhang Yaoming RRALE (RZT—N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+=REE) - - = = -
Mr Ling Xiao BRERERZZ-N\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —A+-REZHA) - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FEBEE (RS- \F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —At-BEZ{E) - - = = -
Mr Miao Yong BEAE(R-Z-N\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —A+-REZHA) - - - - -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE 253 - - - 253
Dr Liu Xiao Feng BlEEeE+ 211 - - - 211
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 211 - - - 211
Dr Lau Wah Sum EREL(RNZT—+F
(resigned on 1 January 2017) —A—REM) - - - - -
675 642 - 51 1,368

The discretionary bonuses of the Directors are reviewed
and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board of Directors, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.

EENRRBEAHFHNZEeaRERAEE
HREEE EENEARRMATLERTS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

12

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year including one (2017: one) director
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining four
(2017: four) individuals during the year are as follows:

12

EERETZHNE(E)

AEEXNFTAEELEZSHEALERE
—Z(ZE—LtF: —R)EF KEFZMHE
ER AR RER - FREMNTH TS
(ZF—tF @B ALZMEwT :

2018 2017

—E-)N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

Salaries and other emoluments e REAMe 6,519 5,906
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL - =
Retirement scheme contributions RRET IR 300 634
6,819 6,590

The emoluments fell within
the following band:

MENFT5IEE :

Number of Individuals

EVIPN

Below HK$1,000,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

1,000,000 BTTIA T

1,500,001 BILE
2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 &LZE
2,500,000 % 7T
2,500,001 BILE
3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 &LZE
3,500,000 % 7T
3,500,001 & TE
4,000,000/ 7T

None of the Directors has waived their remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
did not incur any severance payment to any director for
loss of office or any payment as inducement to any director

to join the Company (2017: Nil).

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrisHi &R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT AREKBET

Current tax BENHAF 18

- PRC — 3,455 3,470
— Overseas - B 110 61
3,565 &,/56
Deferred tax (Note 32(b)) BB E (M 32(b)) 207 -
3,772 &,/56

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2017: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and
regulations, the PRC corporate income tax rate applicable
to the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is principally 25%
(2017: 25%). The operations of the Group’s certain regions
in the PRC have qualified for certain tax incentives in the
form of a preferential income tax rates ranging from 15% to
20% (2017: 15% to 20%).

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the applicable
rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

Pl 27 4 B 70 A 4 [ 3 8 SR B R - 4K
W E AT EBHEAB (=T
=) o

BRIEEEPRAEEERRRE  BARAK
SERFPBEZHBRARZHRCEMEREK
RIE BB (ZE—+HF :25%) « A&
EEFEETHER ZCEREETHEESR
&Y ZEEBEUMSHBEEARR - M
HRENAR15% E20% (—F—+F : 15% &
20%) °

S SN P8 BUE SR 4 I 2 (58 3L
W R AL AR AR EEE 2R
ERBREH -

7\
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HLFE

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax expense
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

FrisBiER (§)

AEBERASHE RGN 2 B
ﬁHEAK’EIZqﬂlm%Fﬁ%%ﬂRiﬁﬁﬁ 2

the corporate income tax rate in the PRC applicable to the EReREs =200 ¢

Group as follows:

2018
A
RMB’million

ok B 477 AR i

2017

—E—tF
RMB’million

ARBEERT ARBBET

Profit before income tax expense FMRETISTHE B A& 11,985 11,480
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% BIE25% (T —+5F : 25%)

(2017: 25%) FTEZTIE 2,996 2,870
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 63 54
Effect of different tax rates MEER 78 62 (26)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax ~ HBEFRA Z G2 (80) (184)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT HIFR Sz H 2 TR Fg 7 28

for tax purposes 220 186
Tax effect of share of profits less losses  JEEEEE A Al @ A REE 2 Fiis e 2

of associates (145) (132)
Tax effect of share of profits less losses BIEA B R REE 2 ST E

of joint ventures (61) (38)
Tax effect of deferred tax not recognised R AERIELFIE 2 F5 & 459 472
Tax effect of withholding tax Bk B AR B 2 TR

on dividends received or receivable 2GR 258 329
Income tax expense TSR 3,772 3,531

The domestic income tax rate used in the calculation
above is the PRC tax rate which is the jurisdiction where
the operations of the Group are substantially based. B o

188
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB4,634 million (2017: RMB4,760 million)
and weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year of approximately 8,072 million shares (2017:
8,072 million shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the
Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB4,722 million (2017: RMB4,845 million)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
approximately 8,635 million shares (2017: 8,620 million
shares) after adjusting for the effect of convertible bonds,
calculated as follows:

BixEAXREERF

BREARRFTBEADRBRERGALE
ZRFMARBA634BET(—T—+5F:
ARBAT0ORBIT) URFEFRNEERITER
RANETHE L8072 BER(ZT—+F -
8,072 A& FTE -

MATERESNZBIELARE - GRES
BATIRBAR R FRRELARER 2 &L
AREATREEBTL(ZZE—+tF: ARK
4,845 B8 7T ) & MAR HNHE T D EA) 8,635
ABER(=ZZ—+F:8620F8M)IZNUT

=5 -
Al -

(i) Profit attributable to owners of the Company (i) AP B REREGER (#58)
(diluted)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
Profit attributable to A AR R FE (L T
owners of the Company 4,634 4,760
After tax effect of effective BRI RS ERES
interest on the liability BEHSHBRTEE
component of
convertible bonds 88 85
Profit attributable to RARIRRFE(G R (BE)
owners of the
Company (diluted) 4,722 4,845

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SREXAREFER(E)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) TERMEFHE (EE)
(diluted)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
million shares  million shares
BER BER
Weighted average number R+-BA=+—81
of ordinary shares at TR NkE T8
31 December 8,072 8,072
Effect of conversion of AERES CBREE
convertible bonds 563 548
Weighted average number W+=—A=+—8/
of ordinary shares TR M8 (E)
(diluted) at 31 December 8,635 8,620

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 15 ZAASKREEGLIRE
THE COMPANY

(i) Dividends payable to owners of the Company (i) REZEMSARDTRRABKE
attributable to the year
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EBEER AREHET
Proposed final dividend attributable RAFIRREIEEIR 2
to owners of the Company for 2018 ZE-\FERERE (M3 @)
(note (a)) 1,858 -
Final dividend attributable to owners of 2 NS &Y
the Company for 2017 (note (b)) “E—F RS (FIFE (b)) - 1,742

7
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EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(i)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company

15  AAFRREMSERE (8)

(i) E-MBRFEERMEQITRROKE

attributable to the previous financial year, (R EEHER M)
approved and paid during the year
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—F
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EBEET AREBET
Final dividend in respect of the previous F—BFERRRERE
financial year, approved and (RAFERERT)
paid during the year 1,742 522

Notes: Pi%E -

@) At the meeting on 19 March 2019, the Board of (@) RZE-—NF=AT+LBHNEE
Directors proposed final dividend attributable to F EFeEBREAQFARR
owners of the Company in respect of 2018 of BEZZE—N\FREREFR
RMB23.0 cents per share amounting to a total 2B0ANRES  BEAEEHOHAR
of approximately RMB1,858 million. The amount ¥1,858 B ETT c ZEEIIERT
is based on approximately 8,080 million shares Z-NF=ZA+ABEETZH
in issue as at 19 March 2019. The financial 8,080 B B AR FTE o B it
statements do not reflect this dividend payable REARR B EER B IS AR 2% B BiR R
as the final dividend was proposed after the date B A RRBEZSVERE
of the statement of financial position and will be A FRZE—NERFRAFTFAE
accounted for in equity as an appropriation of LERER - ZEREEREES
retained earnings in the year ending 31 December T NF+ZA=T—HLEFER
2019 when it is approved at the 2019 Annual AR ERNZ DK
General Meeting.

(b) Final dividend attributable to owners of the (o) AARREREE =S —F AR

Company in respect of 2017 of RMB21.0 cents
per share amounting to a total of approximately
RMB1,742 million were approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on 24
May 2018. The amount is based on approximately
8,072 million shares in issue as at 20 March 2018
which was paid on 26 June 2018.

BASBKRA0ARES  A8A
HOARBA7T42BET  RED
R-E—\FRA-THBERTZ
REBFEREG EHE - ZEBHE
R-E—N\F=ZA-F+HDHETZ
#8072 A ERIRMETE + WER
TE—N\EXNAZFREXS

EmEERARLH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

16

N\

A\

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 P - BERRE
Equipment
Oiland gas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings  properties pipelines  machinery vehicles Others in progress Total
AR
BF RARME  RAREE  RERES HE B EBIE 28
RMBmilon ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'miion ~ RMB'miion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milion
AREEEL ARMEET ARMEET AREAEER AREAER AREEET ARMBET AREEET
Cost: A

Balances at 1 January 2017 i e 3824 12,669 38,259 62,009 3,086 1436 16911 138,194
Curency translaton differences EHEHZE ) 75) - ) {4 ) ) (90)
Additions HE 5 8 - % 4 1 14,181 14,39
Disposals =3 1) - - (346) (108) ? (188) (659)
Transfers & 383 - 11,097 4433 - 100 (16,013) -
Balances at 31 December 2017 RZ-+F+-R=t-AEH 4250 12677 49,356 66,118 3014 1544 14,885 161,844
Balances at 1 January 2018 NIT-)\E-A-REH 4,250 12677 49,356 66,118 3014 1,544 14,885 151,844
Curency tranglaton differences SHENER 2 199 - 2 5 1 5 24
Addtions AE 3 a4 - 336 109 I 1,855 8,657
Disposals iHE (126) (204) - (2,267) (321) (48) (690) (3,662)
Transfers e 129 - 705 5,544 - - (6,379) -
Balances at 31 December 2018 RIE-\ETA=T-RER 429 12,946 50,061 69,733 2,801 1,545 15,617 157,083

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 % - BERRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Equipment
Oilandgas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings ~ properties pipelines  machinery vehicles Others i progress Total
FHR
BT RARME  RMREE  REREE - A TRIE #E
RVMBmilon ~ RVMBmilon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'million
AREEETL ARMEET ARMEET AREEER AREEEn AREEET ARMEET AREEER
Accumulated depreciation ZithERE#H:
and depletion:
Balances at 1 January 2017 RZ5-tE-f-BLR 1057 11,440 12762 20,745 1,993 501 1837 5033
Curency ranslaton differences EHENZE i (65) @ (1) 0 (1) - (]
Charge for the year FERRH 147 28 1,148 3659 27 68 - 5487
Disposals iHE (13 - - (190) 29 (1) - (239)
Impaiment loss HEEE 2 - - 3 - 18 R 604
Balances at 31 December 2017 R=B—+E+-A=t-HE&H 1,211 11,613 13,906 24,536 2,189 585 2,069 56,109
Balances at 1 January 2018 W=%-\f-A-B&k 1211 11613 13,906 24,536 2,189 585 2,069 56,109
Cunency translaton differences EHERER 2 12 - 2 2 1 - 129
Charge for the year KREETH 151 20 1,559 3707 246 7 - 6,025
Disposals =3 (39) (204) - (1,075) (282) (14) - (1,563)
Impaiment loss g - - - 188 - - 22 0
Balances at 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+-A=1-HEH 1,326 11,82 15,465 21,358 2205 644 2301 61,120
Net book value: REFE:
Balances at 31 December 2018 RIS-NETA=T-B&R 2,964 1,125 34,59 4375 506 901 13,376 95,933
Balances at 31 December 2017 REE-tETA=t-B&R 3,039 1,064 35,450 41582 825 959 12816 95,735
7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

16

7\

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The buildings of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.

Other assets mainly comprises of containers, roads,
bridges and others.

As at 31 December 2018, the legal title registration of
certain of the Group’s properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB775 million (2017: RMB598 million)
is subject to certain administrative procedures to be
completed by the relevant local government authorities.
However, the Board of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that the risks and rewards of using these assets
have been transferred to the Group.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are
situated on leasehold land in the PRC which was granted
for use by the relevant government authorities to the Group
at nil consideration with no specific terms of usage.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held certain
equipment and machinery under finance leases expiring
from 2 to 3 years at an effective interest rate of ranging
from 5.04% to 5.32% (2017: 5.04% to 5.32%). At the end
of the lease term, the Group has the option to purchase
the leased equipment and machinery at a price deemed to
be a bargain purchase option. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. As at 31 December 2018, the net book
value of equipment and machinery held under finance
leases of the Group was RMB642 million (2017: RMB683
million).

194 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

In view of the fluctuations in LNG supply and prices during
the year, the Group performed impairment assessment
with respect to certain LNG processing plants, each of
which being identified as a cash generating unit.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment
of RMB126 million to construction-in-progress of a LNG
processing plant was recognised to reduce its carrying
amount to the recoverable amount of RMB26 million.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, impairment of
RMB126 million and RMB201 million were recognised with
respect to machinery and equipment and construction in
progress, respectively, of certain LNG processing plants to
reduce their respective carrying amount to the recoverable
amount totalling RMB1,455 million.

The estimate of the recoverable amount of these LNG
processing plants was determined based on a value in use
calculation, using a discounted cash flow model. Future
cash flows were adjusted for risks specific to these LNG
processing plants and discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate of 14.97% for the current year (2017: ranging from
14.4% to 17.8%).

16

W - BERRE ()

ERENLNG E R ERRE) - AREDR
HEFINGHIE (HEah—EAREEL
AT ) A TR (E T -

BE-_ZT—N\E+-_A=+—HILEE "
INGIIH s EREIRREARE 12688
TETFHER  UEHEEERET KOS58
AR¥2EETT - BE-_T—+tF+=A
=+—BLEFE " 25I5ETINGIIRK
ZHERRENERIRDHIERAREAR
B126BETRARK201BET ' UWKHE
ZREEESARETRESES LARK
1,455 BETT °

BRAZE NG TR AT U B £ 58 2 fd 5T Th 1A
R\ eRERAIREAEBETEETE ° K
FIREREBC S NG I TS E Rk 1
PR - WRAFEFERRAITIRE14.97%
WR(ZZE—tF  NF14.4% E17.8%)
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

17 ADVANCED OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS 17

The Group’s advanced operating lease payments mainly
represent land use rights and comprise:

A EERERE

REBZ AN EHERIR T ER T HER
% B

2018 2017
—2-N\F —T+F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARMEEL ARMEET

Balance as at 1 January R—A—HB&&k 3,782 3,833
Currency translation differences BT AR 1) -
Additions NE 414 197
Amortisation for the year AN EHEE (109) (109)
Disposals e (214) (139)
Balance as at 31 December R+-—A=1+—B#&% 3,872 3,782

These advanced operating lease payments are amortised
over the related lease terms using the straight-line method.

I EIEMN L HEFIR IR A EOERIER
HEHR T LASH -

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 MNEEBATIZIRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHEBRT ARBEST
Share of net assets EIEEESE 3,774 3,165
Goodwill GES 350 350
4,124 315

Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 41.

196 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18

Summarised financial information of a material associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

REFEAT Z21%E (8])

TREL—MEABE AR 2 M BER
T OReHREARNETEREL AR

reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated NREREGESPHEHREAREE :
financial statements, are disclosed below:
CNPC - Aktobemunaigas
Joint Stock Company
(“Aktobe”)
(I Aktobe )
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET

Gross amounts of the associate’s  Ef& A\ 5] 2 4%
Current assets MBNEE 2,030 2,933
Non-current assets FERBEE 14,347 15,353
Current liabilities MEEE (5,034) (4,947)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (8,317) (11,226)
Equity gy 3,026 2,113
Attributable to non-controlling interest ~ JE3EHI M AE RS FE( 72 (12)
Attributable to the associate’s ANl S

shareholders 2,954 2,125
Revenue A 11,778 9,804
Profit from continuing operations R EEB R 2,397 2,009
Post-tax profit or loss from ERIERECEEBRTEER

discontinued operations - -
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mies (276) (79)
Total comprehensive income FHEWN B 2,121 1,930
Attributable to non-controlling interest ~ JE¥EHI M AE RS FE( 79 49
Attributable to the associate’s B N A AR R (L

shareholders 2,042 1,881

7\
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

18

—NFET_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18 MEEATZIRE ()
Aktobe
2018 2017
B\ —T—t&
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EBEEBERT ARKBET
Reconciled to the Group’s HIRZEXREBRBEE AT 2 R
interests in the associate
Group’s interest (note) REE R () 25.12% 25.12%
Group’s interest in net assets of the FUARSERBE B EEFE
associate at beginning of the year ZHER 533 216
Total comprehensive income AEEELEEWEARE
attributable to the Group 513 472
Dividend received during the year FRERAE (304) (155)
Group’s interest in net assets FRANEEREEE DA
of the associate at end of the year BEFE I En 742 533

Note:

The effective equity interest of Aktobe attributable to the

Group is 15.07%, as the 25.12% equity interest in Aktobe
was held by a 60% owned subsidiary of the Group.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
// Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18 REtZATZIRE ()

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BRI TEZZHBERRIZEHER
material:
2018 2017
—e-N\F —Ttf

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBET

Aggregate carrying amount of ERITEE & R RIREFRE
individually immaterial associates in B < ARBREE
the consolidated financial statements 3,382 2,982
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBREZEHMENRI BT
share of those associates’
Profit from continuing operations FFE A T T 277 277
Post-tax profit or loss from ERIFRFECEEBRTEER
discontinued operations - -
Other comprehensive income HEtEmkas - -
Total comprehensive income 2HEWN B 277 277
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 NREBLEZEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
Share of net assets E(REEFE 2,831 1,879
Loans to joint ventures MEEPEER 39 39
2,870 1,918
Details of the principal joint ventures are set out in Note 42. AT EEERE ZFIBHNMIzE42 -
As at 31 December 2018, included in loans to joint J‘EA_ T-N\E+A=T—HREERLXE
ventures is an amount of RMB39 million (2017: RMB39 HERARKIIBEL(ZZE—LF : AR
million) which is unsecured, interest-free and recoverable %39 BEL) %cBAEEKR 2E8KA
on demand. RENRERER o
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the loans to joint T E-N\FER_F—+tF+_HA=+—
ventures are not past due and not impaired. EI M& BB E I E B ERE o

EmEERARLH 199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HLFE

19

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

19

REELEZIRE (R)

Dividends declared from joint ventures are approximately HE_Z—N\F+A=1+—HILFE"
RMB259 million (2017: RMB160 million) for the year ended BRETRZBRELNRBARE 259 Eé-%r_z(

31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the then non-
controlling shareholders of Xi‘an Qinggang Clean Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Qinggang”), Binhai Xinneng Co.,
Ltd. (“Binhai Xinneng”) and Jilin Jigang Clean Energy Co.,
Ltd. (“Jigang”) made unilateral capital injections. Upon

T—+F: ARE160EETT) ©

REBEE-ZF-\Ft-_A=+—BHLEFE"

ARBEEZEMRERAR(TEE]) » X%
REmMBEEHEMRBRAR(DEEH
REl) REMEEBRERERAB(TTED
Z”‘Hﬁﬂ BREREELETEEE - B3t

completion of such capital injections, the Company's Kz &% ARBIRES - BB
shareholding in Qinggang, Binhai Xinneng and Jigang BZREBLESNN - EZRBAR

decreased to 50%. The Directors consider the Company
have joint control over Qinggang, Binhai Xinneng and
Jigang. Accordingly, Qinggang, Binhai Xinneng and Jigang
are classified as joint ventures of the Company as at 31
December 2018.

There is no individually material joint venture which
significantly affects the results and/or net assets of the
Group at 31 December 2018.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material:

BB - BEee kT A HER KFE %H% l
o R-E-NF+_A=1+—8" B%-
BEHMENTBEDBAARRRSELE -

VEEANBEEZAELEHAEBRN -F
—\F+-_A=+—BZEEN REEF
BEEKEATE -

BRTES 2 ALY ABER

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—F
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EEBERT ARKBET
Aggregate carrying amount of ERITEE 2 & BLERERE
individually immaterial joint W5k < AR A
ventures in the consolidated
financial statements 2,870 1,918
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEBERGZEEELEZEEHE
share of those joint ventures’
— Profit from continuing operations - B EEE R 311 224
— Post-tax profit or loss from - BRERFEREEERERER
discontinued operations - -
— Other comprehensive income - B 2w - -
— Total comprehensive income - 2EREREE 311 224

7\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 MRHBASZIZE

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 40. BT ZEMB AR ZFFBEHMNMIFE40 -

The following tables list out the information related TRIIEFABILERRAREBBR QA
to PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd. (“Beijing ([HEREE]) - PBEABISHRIERAARE
Pipeline”), PetroChina Jiangsu LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu R (NI#LNG]) R REARANSEE
LNG”) and Jingtang Co., the three subsidiaries of the BEARIEZEG R ([FEERIE R ) 2=
Group which have material non-controlling interests R B ARIEEZER « LTINE5 285

(“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented

below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

BRI 2EMEM QR IHAT 2 S5

Beijing Pipeline

tREE

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—+F

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEEBERT ARKBET

NCI percentage FEEH B DL 40% 40%

Current assets MBNEE 1,181 3,392

Non-current assets EmENEE 41,505 40,958

Current liabilities MEEE (5,421) (4,717)

Non-current liabilities EREEE (7,384) (11,884)

Net assets BEFE 29,881 27,749

Carrying amount of NCI FE%E Il M e 2 AR TEI (B 11,948 11,095

Revenue WA 9,553 10,656

Profit for the year F N Al 3,788 5,087

Total comprehensive income 2HEN SRR 3,788 5,087

Profit allocated to NCI DECE FEFEHI MR R 2 A 1,461 2,012

Dividend paid to NCI BT FEIE I fE s 2 AR B 1,765 2,162

Cash flows generated from KEEBFSCHSRE

operating activities 7,107 5,986

Cash flows used in investing activities ~ REZEBKAZIREARE (2,072) (8,828)
Cash flows (used in)/ generated from MEE (FTA) FEzReReE

financing activities (6,403) 3,102
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20

—NFET_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20

(CONTINUED)

RIBABZi%E (&)

Jiangsu LNG
JI&E LNG
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’million ~ RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBET

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI
Dividend paid to NCI

Cash flows generated from

operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities

202 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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IHEHIERER A DL
//Ih@ﬁ?
FRBEE
mBAIE
FRBAE
BEME

FRIE MR S AR E (B

WA
F A= A
£Eﬂﬁlﬁn,w%ﬁi\
Z P MR R 2 s A
E1‘HH il 1R s 2 AR S

REEXBGABZRERE

REXBMAZRERE
BMEEBAZASRE

45% 45%
1,248 1,243
4,735 4,375

(535) (332)

(294) (1,571)

5,154 3,715
2,319 1,672
2,826 1,898
1,938 960
1,938 960
872 432
225 180
2,124 1,516

(286) (12)

(1,860) (879)
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SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20

(CONTINUED)

RIBABZi%E (&)

Jingtang Co.
REQTE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
NCI percentage JEEHI R A D 49% 49%
Current assets mBNEE 926 1,097
Non-current assets ERBNEE 4,910 4,888
Current liabilities BB E (1,114) @113
Non-current liabilities FEnRBEE (33) (19)
Net assets BEFE 4,689 3,853
Carrying amount of NCI eI SRR AR E (A 2,208 1,888
Revenue WA 2,371 1,751
Profit for the year F R A 1,257 858
Total comprehensive income FHEWN B 1,257 858
Profit allocated to NCI DECZE IR HI MR 2 % 616 420
Dividend paid to NCI B I SR S 2 RR B 206 -
Cash flows generated from KEEBRE2HERE
operating activities 1,599 1,672
Cash flows (used in)/generated from BEEW (FTR) Bz ReRE
investing activities (326) 121
Cash flows used in financing activities ~ Bt &/EBFIAZIREARE (1,476) (789)
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

21 INTANGIBLE AND OTHER NON-CURRENT 21

R REMIEREEE

ASSETS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EBEEBERT ARKBET
Intangible assets (note (i) mREE () 323 458
Prepaid construction costs SELNFES G 734 509
Loans to an associate (note (ii)) ERaialiHNEI- S =) 301 173
Loans to joint ventures (note (iii) m& B FEE R (HIEE i) 290 =
Other financial assets (Note 22) Hib e &EE (3E22) 127 352
Others 114 &3
1,889 1,525
Notes: P%E -
() The intangible assets mainly comprise goodwill, franchised 0} BZEAEFZ0ERE i RERE
rights and computer software costs. The movements in RN o IV EE 2 BBINT -
intangible assets are as follows:
2018 2017
ZE-N\E I
Goodwill Others Total Goodwill Others Total
HE Hth @t S Hft o
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB'milion  RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEBT AR¥EEBT AR¥EER ARKAET AREEET AREEER
At 1 January ®—A—H 243 215 458 243 260 508
Additions E - 32 32 - 10 10
Disposal HE G] (1) © - - -
Impairment loss BEEE (96) (7 (103) - - -
Amortisation for the year A EHESH - (55) (55) = (65) (69)
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H 139 184 323 243 215 458
(ii) As at 31 December 2018, loans to an associate are (ii) RZZE—N\F+_A=+—8 ' [—FH

unsecured, interest-bearing ranging from 4.28% to 4.35%
(2017: 4.28% to 4.35%) per annum and with remaining
maturity periods over 12 months but less than 2 years

(2017: 2 to 3 years).

(iii) As at 31 December 2018, loans to joint ventures are
unsecured, interest-bearing at 4.99% per annum and with
remaining maturity periods over 12 months but less than 2

years.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Hip &m&EE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—B-N\F —E)N\F “TtF
+=A=+-H —-A—-B +ZA=1+-H
Note RMB’million RMB'’million RMB'million
L ARBEET ARBEET ARBBEET

Equity securities designated EERRALEFARM (i, (i

at FVOCI (non-recycling): FHRSFEZRAES
(FRBEZER)
- Listed in Australia - PRARNE ki 7 7 -
- Listed in Hong Kong -REBLM 5 9 -
- Listed in the PRC - RPELET 115 262 -
~ Unlisted in the PRC - ReBE L - 74 -
127 352 -
Available-for-sale equity AHERAES (i)
securities:

- Listed in Australia - RANE £ - - 7
- Listed in Hong Kong -REBLT - - 9
- Listed in the PRC - RPE - - 262
- Unlisted in the PRC - R £ - - 74
- - 352

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position by the
measurement hierarchy are set out in Note 4.3(a).

The Group designated other financial assets at FVOCI
(non-recycling), as the investments are held for strategic
purposes. No dividends were received on these
investments during the year (2017: Nil).

Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) upon
the initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (see
Note 3(z)(i)).

Wi

(i)

REBRRAMEARRILAESRE D
BV EAD S BB B 2 BREE BN KT 7E4.3(0) ©

REDREBEREAEMFE - AUAEE
BEEMEREERMZAHESAR LS
mREFE (TAIEEEER) - AFEEL
BERZERERREFBRS (ZF—£5F
&) -

BT \F—A—BERERESNH
HMELREORE  IRHEESHEED
BN BEEEEARAFEFAHEMER
Wt E(TRIERE EEZR) ZRAEF
(RFEE3E@)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

23 INVENTORIES 23 #BE
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial HREVBRRARPFERE !
position comprise:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT AREBBHETT
Natural gas KAR 1,518 1,148
Materials for oil and gas properties Bl RARMERRARE BME
and natural gas pipelines 307 362
Crude oail in tanks and others TR EE [ M H At 40 49
1,865 1,559
24 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24 FEWRRTR
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E§ “E-N\E —T—+F
+=A=+—H —A—-B +ZA=1—-H
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEBETR AREBET AREBET
Accounts receivable, FEARERSR + HIBRE 1R
net of loss allowance (note) GiES) 2,459 2,536 2,846

Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment
was made to recognise additional ECLs on accounts
receivable (see Note 3(2)(i)).

RRER DA

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

Bzt : AN B BB REELFEIRE - BEIELD
HiYIFAEE - AREREUBR R Z BEINEHAS
BEE (RKEE3@() ©

BEREHR - BUARSRK (FRREEREE) 1%

accounts receivable, based on the invoice date and net of BRAMZIREDOITOT -
loss allowance, is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+tF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARBBHET
Within 3 months =X (EPSRYNA 1,990 1,957
Between 3 to 6 months =@AAZENEAR 76 116
Over 6 months NEA M = 393 773
2,459 2,846

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 24 FEUGERER (48)
The Group’s revenue from the sales of crude oil and REE B FRBHE RIBHEEREE R E B RS
rendering of terminal and pipeline services are generally WA —RREZEHEREFT30AE90 B H
collectable within a period ranging from 30 to 90 days from FUE - mHERARUIREZNHEER
the invoice date while the sales of natural gas are made THEHEO0 B - NEBFEHEER KA EWERK
in cash or on credit terms no more than 90 days. Further EEZEERRZE—PFFE - S5IRMEE
details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising 4.1(b) °
from accounts receivable are set out in Note 4.1(b).
PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT 25 FEfREHEMIKEHEE
ASSETS
2018 2017
—g-\F —F—+t%
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
Other receivables, net of credit losses ~ HAEWGKIE - IR EEEER 955 1,207
Prepayments to suppliers ) FE 7 2 (ST RO TR 3K 2,475 2,482
Amounts due from the intermediate FEW R R IR A RIFRIR
holding company 39 588
Loan to a joint venture MEETEER 200 -
Loans to third parties ME=FER 38 65
Dividends receivable FEWIIR B, 93 1
Value-added tax recoverable AT e B E T 1,692 2,012
Income tax recoverable AT e S 7 3
Other current assets HiwREh & E 360 282
5,859 6,640

The amounts due from the intermediate holding company
are RMB39 million (2017: RMB588 million), which are
expected to be settled within one year, and unsecured
and interest-bearing at 1.80% per annum (2017: 1.65% to
1.80% per annum).

Loan to a joint venture is unsecured, interest-bearing at
4.99% per annum and with remaining maturity period of
less than one year as at 31 December 2018.

FERFEIZERARREAARKIOBE T
—T—+F: A\R¥ESSSEET)  EHR
—FREE  AEEHRIEFRNE1.80%(=
T—4F  FREA1.65%F1.80%) 518 o

AAE R RBRIEN  REFI%4.90%
HERBTEBER-B—N\F+=A
=+—ALR—F -

7\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 HE&ERBELZEEERH
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) BERFESEEEBEHERE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKEET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEIR S 18,924 18,407
Short-term bank deposits RHASRI T K 1,550 3,443
Cash and cash equivalents He MREEERR 20,474 21,850

Cash at bank and bank deposits carry interest at
prevailing market rate at 0.39% per annum (2017:
0.33% per annum).

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash
are amounts of approximately RMB17,393 million
(2017: RMB20,671 million) denominated in RMB
which are deposited with banks in the PRC. The
conversion of these RMB denominated balances
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds
out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC Government.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
// Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o
FEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ —Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE
26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RERFAESEFEIEH ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) REITEBFEENEEYHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TEHNAEFERETEFAEANE
liabilities from financing activities, including both EEE  BRERASEENIERSLES
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from EYHEE  c EEEEANEE
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows ;H $E BioiBenerhiEeneg
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the DEANRKIBERE D E AR
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash iéj;;@; FTEAHIES THEAR -
flows from financing activities.
Obligations
Convertible under finance
Borrowings bonds leases Total
EL TERES MERERR H)
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEER AR%EER ARWEER
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-N\E-A-H 41,101 3,230 351 44,682
Changes from financing MEREREST:
cash flows:
Increase in borrowings El 13,811 - - 13,811
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (20,348) - - (20,348)
Capital element of ENBERE
finance lease rentals paid i) - - (145) (145)
Interest element of ENRERE
finance lease rentals paid HeMSEH - - (16) (16)
Interest paid EIHE (1,767) (54) - (1,821)
Total changes from financing BEREREZDAE
cashflows (8,304) (54) (161) (8,519)
Effect of foreign exchange =~ EXZ2B ¥
rate changes 661 - - 661
Other changes: Hirgg)
Interest expenses FERY 1,540 131 13 1,684
Transfer to accrued liabiities ~ BEZEEE 27 - - 237
Conversion of convertible bonds Bl a[E (&4 - (1) - (1)
Total other changes Hit@8as 1,777 130 13 1,920
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\%F
TZA=t+-8H 35,235 3,306 203 38,744

EmEERARLH 209
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FEMBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE
26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 HERASFEHIEAEHR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RMEITEBFFEENEEYHIR(E)
financing activities (continued)
Obligations
Convertible under finance
Borrowings bonds leases Total
&8 TERES RERERE @t
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETR ARBEER AREEER ARBEETR
At 1 January 2017 R=E—tF-F—H 32,505 3,156 500 36,161
Changes from financing MERLRELD:
cash flows:
Increase in borrowings fE &M 26,377 - - 26,377
Repayment of borrowings BEREE (17,182) - - (17,182)
Capital element of ENRERE
finance lease rentals paid i) - - (146) (146)
Interest element of ENEERE
finance lease rentals paid HeMSHH - - (24) (24)
Interest paid ERFIE (1,384) (54) - (1,438)
Total changes from financing RERTRELBEE
cashflows 7,811 (54) (170) 7,587
Effect of foreign exchange =~ EX#B¥E
rate changes (622) - - (622)
Other changes: Hitt @8
Interest expenses MER% 1,579 128 21 1,728
Transfer to accrued liabilities BRERIARE (172) - - (172)
Total other changes Htt#Ban 1,407 128 21 1,556
At 31 December 2017 R-E-—t&
TZA=t-H 41,101 3,230 351 44,682

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2018
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SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL 27 BX
Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
million HK$’ million
ZBRREE LR EE
BER BE®BTT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 2R ETE 0.01,F 7,2 EZiEHR
At 1 January 2017, R=E—tF—H—8"
31 December 2017 and “F—+F+-_A=+—8BK
31 December 2018 - N\F+=-—A=+—8H 16,000 160

Number of Nominal value

ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
million RMB’million
ZEREE ZREKREE
BER AR¥®EBEER
Issued and fully paid: BEBITREBEHAM
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each AR EE 0.01,8 T2 Zi#K
At 1 January 2017 and RZE—+F—H—HBXK
31 December 2017 —E—+F+-A=+—H 8,072 65
Issue of shares upon conversion B A A] BEIR(E AR BT TR (D
of convertible bonds (note) (B 5E) - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-—N\F+_A=+—H 8,072 65

Note: On 19 November 2018, 170,502 ordinary shares were

BEE

issued upon conversion of convertible bonds (see Note
31) and the Group's share capital increased by HK$1,705
(approximately RMB1,508) accordingly. The amounts were
not presented in the table above as the numbers therein

are rounded to the nearest million.

RZZ—N\F+—A+H 170,502 ]
T3 IR B B R AT S (F 5 A BT (LB
FE31) - A ANERE 2 B AL 11,7057
TL(HAREA,50870) - BRASELEE
ERE2Y  REAEHEENBAAZR

BiIcEE -

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES

7

212

28 Hibf#iE
Movements in components of other reserves (a) HRABEHEHREH
Group
A58
Employee Convertible
share-based Fair value Fair bond
Share  Contributed  compensation Merger reserve  value reserve equity  Translation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve (recycling) (non-recycling) reserve reserve Others earnings Total
EENRR AVERE  ATEHE T8
AERY (788 (F98E Bk
ROEE  REBH  BRRE  AHER EER) 35 BEE EiRf i REEA L]
RMBmiion ~ RVBmilon ~ RMBmion ~ RVBmilon  RMBmiion ~ RVBmilon  RMBmiion  RVBmilon  RMBmiion  RVBmilon  RMBmilion
AREEET ARMEET ARMEER ARMAET ARMEET ARMEER ARMAET ARMEER ARMEER ARMEET ARMEER
note () note fi ot i) note v) note (y) note fv) note (i) note (i)
Bt R[] Wiz i B3 Kk {0 Hiik i) et
Balances at 1 January 2017 RR-tE-f-BEh 32,358 109 3 22,057) 4 - 19 1,091 3942 21,83 31,787
Totel comprehiensive income for heyear  FRZENEEE = - (107) - - (2 - 4760 401
Transfer between reserves fElEmEE - 143 - - - - 690 633 -
Finel dvidend for 2016 Z5-ERERE - - - - - - - (52 (522)
Lapsed share options BAMERE - %) - - - - - o k| =
Aoquistion of Jngtang Co. WERERF - - (1906) - - - - - - 1906)
Balances at 31 December 2017 KWoB-tE+=A=t-REH 32,358 109 23820) 167 - 1% 1039 4632 25280 39,960
(Notg) (Kt
Impact on il applcation of HKFRS 9~ BRI FE 51T 86
Fo877% (167) 167 - - - (234) (234)
Adusted blances at W-F-NE-A-RgH
1 January 2018 (2%) 32,358 109 (23,820 - 167 19 1,039 4632 25,46 30,72
Totel comprehiensive income for heyear  FRZENEEE - - - 99) - 19 - 463 4654
Transfer betwean resenves fERER - - - - 2576 (2576) -
Final dividend for 2017 “R-LERERE - - - - - (1,742 (1,749
Issue of shares upon conversion RNEATERESERARA
of convertible bonds 1 - - - - - - 1
Balances at 31 December 2018 KW=B-NFT=A=t-REH 32,359 109 (23,820) - 68 195 1,158 7,208 25,362 4,6%
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 Mzt : ARBER=_Z—N\GE—HA—B#

and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transitions method chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 3(2).
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EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Movements in components of other reserves
(Continued)

28 Hibf#E (&)
(@) EHftfFEAEAKEE (H&)

Company
K07
Employee
share-based  Convertible
Share  Contributed compensation  hond equity Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
&8 LS
RitE#z B3R
RHEE L L fiRRE ERE RERA g
RMBmilon ~ RVB'miion ~ RMB'mion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'miion ~ RMB'million
ARKEET ARYEET ARWEET ARMEER ARMBET ARMAEER
note (| note (i) note (v
ik i) izt
Balances at 31 December 2016 W=F-AETZA=T-A
and 1 January 2017 k-5-tF-A-R&R 32,358 109 3 195 12,53 45,237
Total comprehensive Er2ENREE
income for the year - - - - 3,424 3,424
Final dhidend for 2016 ZE-ERERE - - - - (22) (22)
Lapsed share options BANERE - - %9 - kY -
Balances at 31 December 2017~ W=-tF+-A=t-ALH 32,368 109 - 1% 15417 48,139
Balances at 31 December 2017~ W=Z-tETA=1-A
and 1 January 2018 k=%-N\f-A-BER 32,358 109 - 195 15477 48,139
Total comprehensive Er2ENREE
income for the year - - - - 605 605
Final dividend for 2017 ZE-LERERS - - - - (1,742) (1,742)
Issue of shares upon converson - HNERTTERERERARA
of convertible bonds 1 - - - - 1
Balances at 31 December 2018~ WZE-NE+ZA=1-RfH 32,359 109 - 195 14,340 47,003

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Notes:

(i) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the share premium account may be applied by
the Company in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to members of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares.

(b) EHfttfFEIMEREDN
Pt 5t -

(i BREERE-NN\—FREDE -
MEBrRAARAERE BB
R - ARET BN K 31T T AR B
RZARBRETRD ©

7 \
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

KU

(b)

Nature and purpose of other reserves (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(V)

(vi)

(vil)

(viii)

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of
the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Group and the amount of the
Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the considerations and the aggregate
share capital of subsidiaries acquired under
business combinations under common control.

Prior to 1 January 2018, fair value reserve
(recycling) included the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale securities held
at the end of the reporting period in accordance
with HKAS 39. This amount has been reclassified
to fair value reserve (non-recycling) upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (see Note
3 (2)(i).

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investments designated as FVOCI under
HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting
period (see Note 3(h)).

The convertible bond equity reserve represents
the equity component of the convertible bonds at
initial recognition.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3(d)(ii).

Others mainly represent capitalisation of retained
earnings by subsidiaries and the statutory surplus
reserves. Pursuant to the Company Law of the
PRC, the Articles of Association and the resolution
of Board of Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC, the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of its net
profit to statutory surplus reserves. Appropriation
to the statutory surplus reserves may be ceased
when the fund aggregates to 50% of those
subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserves may be used to make good
previous years’ losses or to increase the capital of
those subsidiaries upon approval.
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EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

29

(c)

Distributability of other reserves

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of
other reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)
was RMB14,449 million (2017: RMB15,586 million).
After the end of the reporting period the Directors
proposed a final dividend of RMB23.0 cents per
ordinary share (2017: RMB21.0 cents per share),
amounting to RMB1,858 million (2017: RMB1,742
million) (Note 15). This dividend has not been

28 Hibf#E (&)

() TADIRHEAbFEE

R_ZE—NF+_A=+—8 " 7
MR RS E D IR 2 HAb#ER
THE(BEAERE-NN\—FQAE
(BB HE) BARKE14,440688
TT(ZZE—+tF: AR% 1558688
TL) c REEHIRE - EFEERD
BRESRLBR20ARES (=ZF
—+t&F: BR2I0ARE D) EA
R¥1,858BBIT(ZTE—tF : AR
17428 8T) (3E15) - R E

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting PGSR R ERR—BEE -
period.
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED FE{+ Bk & FERT B |
LIABILITIES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—tF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
Accounts payable FETER IR 2,791 2,858
Contract liabilities AHAEE 9,383 =
Advances from customers BRI - 8,481
Salaries and welfare payable R F € kEF 383 284
Accrued expenses FEETRS 14 26
Dividend payable FETR S 1,059 1,069
Interest payable FERTFI & 139 376
Construction fee and equipment FET3RRR B N AR AR
cost payables 10,361 10,279
Amounts due to related parties JE A< BE S 5 IR
— Non-controlling interests — FEfE e 1 1
— Others - EAh 236 14
Deferred income EELA - 400
Other payables H fth & 5B 2,988 2,781
27,355 26,569

N
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29

KU

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED 29

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method, adjustments were made to the opening
palances at 1 January 2018 to reclassify advances from
customers and deferred income to contract liabilities (see
Note 3(z)(ii)). As at 31 December 2018, the Group also had
non-current contract liabilities of RMB744 million (1 January
2018: RMB763 million) which were included under non-
current other liabilities and were expected to be recognised
as revenue in over 12 months but less than 5 years.

The Group’s contract liabilities represent primarily advances
received from customers. In certain regions of the PRC,
customers of the Group’s city gas business are required to
use integrated circuit cards and top up in advance before
the balances are deducted upon usage of natural gas.
Depending on the market conditions and the customers’
credit profile, the Group also require advance for certain
customers for sales of other natural gas products. These
advance payments from customers are recognised as
contract liabilities until the natural gas products are sold to
the customers. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the amount of RMB8,881 million recognised in contract
liabilities at beginning of the year has substantially been
recognised as revenue during the year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

FEfRRAR R R B 1R (4])

FUTEABRAVISREENE15RKAR
He Bk BT N\E—HA—BZH
MEEHIEH AR - R BRRELERA
BEHMOEZEAHNEE(RKEIRN) - K=
T—N\F+=-—A=+—8 AEEEEIFE
RBANEBBARETMBET(ZE—N
F—H—H: AR¥763EHET)  HEFA
JSERBEMEEAWTEEERAER T &
AEIRAEZHA -

AEBZENABERIBRERFPZBK -
EHRBEE TR - NEE 2R ESE
FAFEREKRERRNIALEE - TR RME
ARARBRIBES - RIMAREPEE
AR - REERHEREMRARERR TS
ERETEPHEANK - ZFREEFPZHE
NRBAEEERAARERCETERP L
FIERRASEHNAE  RBEE-_FT-N\F
T-A=1T—BLLFE  FIRGHNEER
RZARH 8,881 AE LD RNFANARER
RN

R D AT

HERESHAR  EARKURBEZAH 2 EH
DITEAT ¢

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —E—+4F

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEERT ARBBHETLT

Within 3 months =EAR 1,875 2,290
Between 3 to 6 months ={@RA=EA 124 109
Over 6 months ~EA A E 792 459
2,791 2,858

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables fall within the credit time
frame. The contractual maturity date of accounts payable
and accrued liabilities is within one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS 30 f&E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBEER
Short-term borrowings — unsecured EHEE - | 5,181 10,487
Current portion of long-term borrowings RHAE & ~ ENEAEE S 1,891 1,318
7,072 11,805
Long-term borrowings — secured REEE - BER 8 22
Long-term borrowings — unsecured REIEE - BEH 30,046 30,592
Less: Current portion of long-term B REVEE 2 EVEIE D
borrowings (1,891) (1,318)
28,163 29,296
35,235 41,101
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated BEZREBERUATERRE
in the following currencies:
2018 2017
—e-N\F —Ttf

RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT AREKBET

RMB AR 22,624 30,542
US dollar =TT 7,676 7,249
Hong Kong dollar BT 4,859 3,222
Japanese yen Hot 24 40
Euro BT 52 48

35,235 41,101

EmEERARLH
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=
FEMBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE
30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30 fEE(HE)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the borrowings of the R-BE—\FE-_FT—+F+-_A=1+—
Group were repayable as follows: A AEBZEBEREZINTER
Loans other
Bank loans than bank loans
IRITEN BRIBITERUMZER
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\FE —F—tF —E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARKBELT ARYBER ARKBEERT
Within one year —FR 3,638 3,386 3,534 8,419
Between one to two years —EWF 1,216 1,543 7,960 2,888
Between two to five years MZE R F 692 1,232 12,867 19,178
After five years FEFLAE 2,005 1,223 3,423 3,232
7,451 7,384 27,784 33,717
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMKREBR ZEEZRTEHFR - AT
contractual maturity for its borrowings. The information E2YERNIUAREE AN &FBHAE
presented is based on the earliest date on which the Group £ WRTAWHERERE (BEAS LT
can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted B
cash flow including principal and interest:
Loans other
Bank loans than bank loans
IRITEN BRIBITERUMZER
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\FE —F—tF —E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARKBEBT ARYBER ARKEBEERT
Within one year —FR 3,807 3,652 4,576 9,547
Between one to two years —EME 1,367 1,693 8,790 4105
Between two to five years MERF 1,014 1,434 14,247 20,249
After five years FFELAE 2,445 1,473 3,606 3,532
8,633 8,252 31,219 37,433

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS 31  T[ERES
2018 2017
“5-N\E Bt
Liability Equity Total Liabiltty Eouity Total
& B s B fEh B
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RVB'milion RMB'milion RMB'milion
AREEEn  ARMEER ARMBEER AR¥AEET ARMEER  AR%BER
Canmying amount ag at 1 January R-A-HZERE 3230 1% 3425 3156 1% 3351
Accumulated nterest expenses [REIRFIR400% 252
accrued at effective interest gk
rate of 4.08% 131 - 131 128 - 128
Accumulsted interest paid ERE:fHE (54) - (54) (4 = (34
Conversion of convertile bonds ey () - U] - - -
Carying amount as g i =
at 31 December LEmfE 3,306 195 3,501 3230 195 3425

On 13 July 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
issue convertible bonds due in 2019 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) with principal amount of RMB3,350 million to third
parties. The Convertible Bonds are denominated in RMB
bear interest of 1.625% and will be settled in US dollars.
The conversion price was HK$7.13 per share (translated
into HK$ at the fixed RMB to HK$ exchange rate of 0.8625)
as at the date of issuance and is subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments. The issuance of Convertible Bonds was
completed on 25 July 2016. The conversion price was
adjusted to HK$7.05 per share with effect from 15 June
2017 and further adjusted to HK$6.80 per share with effect
from 5 June 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was
no conversion of the convertible bonds into shares in the
Company by the bondholders.

On 19 November 2018, the Convertible Bonds with
principal amount of RMB1,000,000 were converted into
170,502 ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$6.80
per conversion share.

R-ZZBE—XREtA+=8 " KARZ—%H
RIBEHZE - B ARFRBRE =S ET
AeSBBARKIIB0OEETR-_Z—N
FRMzAERES ([TERES] - AR
BEETE M A B IR EH 12 1.625% 51 2 R A5 A
ELEE - NEITH -  BIREARERT7.138
TTEARE DB ITHETEERQ0.862510E
RBTT) WAMEH RESEFE - FITAIEIR
BHER_ZT—R"FLtA-T+HBTK - it
BEARAEZR7.068 T BT —LF N
AThBRAYN  Hi2BRAEREKR6.805
T B N\FANAREBER -

HE—F—LE+-A=T—AILFE &
AREHHE AR THAESRE AR

{/\ ®

RZZE-—N\F+—A+LB xeBAEAR
#1,000,000 7C 2 A R E 5 - BiRERE
TR EIRA% 6.80 8 JLE #AX 170,502 % i
H&O

7\
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FEMBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE
31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 31 TERES ()
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMAEE 2 ATERES 2R TENF
contractual maturity for its convertible bonds. The H o 2P BRI AEEES N 2&FA
information presented is based on the earliest date on HMAEE  WRRAFHARERE(BER
which the Group can be required to pay and represents the e RFE) :
undiscounted cash flow including principal and interest:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
Within one year —FR 3,403 54
Between one to two years —EMFE - 3,404
3,403 3,458
32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 HZEMBRARPZAES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current tax in the consolidated statement of (@) HZEMBERREKRBDZEHPHEES :
financial position represents:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
Tax payables in respect of MBARNATHRENS ZFIE :
subsidiaries in:
-PRC - 711 489
- Peru - WE 35 =
— Thailand — 2R 4 _
750 489
Withholding tax on dividend M AR KR E 2 TR
distributed by the subsidiaries 44 6
794 495

As at 31 December 2018, the Group also had
income tax recoverable of RMB7 million (2017:
RMB3 million) which were included under “prepaid
expenses and other current assets”.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 &ZAMBRARPZHESH(E)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CERAZELEHEEERER:
(i) Movement of each component of () FEEHEAZEFEESHAKS
deferred tax assets and liabilities D2 E
The movements in deferred tax assets/ FRNBECHBEE (BB Z
(liabilities) during the year without taking into BE)(WEEEEBER -G
consideration of the offsetting of balances AVAEEMARR) 0T -
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
Undistributed
profits of PRC
and overseas
Accelerated subsidiaries,
tax  associate and Deferred
depreciation joint ventures income Others Total
HEREA
KEAR
BenaR
il RELEY
ERE FABAE EEhs 2 g
RMB'millon RMB'milion RMB'millon RMB'million RMB'milion
AREEET  ARMBEET ARMEET  ARMEET  ARKEER
(Note)
(Bzk)
At 1 January 2017 R-E-+%-A-H (269) (285) 212 425 143
Currency translation differences  EMER =8 b 2 - 1 9
Credftedt/charged) to the NraBETES/ (k)
consolidated profit or loss 15 (100) 6 88 -
Charged to other e ERENR
comprehensive income - - - (39 (39)
At 31 December 2017 RoZ—+E+=A=+- 4 (39) 78 475 13
Impact on initial applcation S RRERMBREER
of HKFRS 9 20% 72 - - - 76 76
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\5-A-H (248) (392) 218 551 189
Currency ranglation differences  EME X £ - 4 - @ (6)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT (1) - - (47 (48)
Credftedt/(charged) to the NrAERTES/ (k)
consolidated profit or loss (109) (99) (15) 16 (207)
Credited to other REMZENEES
comprehensive income - - - 2 2
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\F+-f=1-H (358) (495) 263 540 (50)
Note: Upon the initial application of HKFRS 9, Mizr : BV FERB B BRE

the Group has recognised deferred tax
assets on the additional credit losses
recognised under ECL model (see Note

3@)(0)-

HERFEISR®E  AEED
RIBETEHREEEBERENE
REIMEBE BB ZELEH
BEE (RMEE3RI) °

i
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 ZF&HBKRERDZRES (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CEIZEZEREEERERE: (&)
(Continued)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) HEHBEREERE R
statement of financial position
2018 2017
—E-NF —TtF

RMB’million ~ RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBET

Representing: i
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE 1,242 1,188
Deferred tax liabilities EERIARE (1,292) (1,075)

(50) 113

7\
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

Operating lease commitments (a)

Operating lease commitments of the Group
are mainly for leasing of land and buildings and
equipment. Leases range from one to thirty years
and usually do not contain renewal options. Future
minimum lease payments as of 31 December 2018
and 2017 under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:

REHERE

REBZREHEAETERHEEL
WEhEBFUERE BHENF—FE
=tFZE - —RTBIEEOEN -
RZEBE-NER_Z—+F+_A
=t—B RETAIZHEIKLHE
ZARRZEREMNRNAT :

2018 2017

—E-NEF —F—+tF
RMB’million ~ RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBET

Not later than one year —FR 325 279
Later than one year and not FEZEZERFA
later than five years 503 581
More than five years AFEMRE 782 627
1,610 1,487
Capital commitments (b) EREE
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEERT ARKBET
Contracted but not ERTANERELRE -
provided for:
Other property, plant and HAunz - BE M
equipment 1,326 395
Authorised but not ERUEBRETH :
contracted for:
Qil field development costs HEREER 281 285
Other property, plant and HAnz - BE K&
equipment 2,479 5,490
2,760 5,775

EmEERARLH
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34

7\

224

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT
Leng Jiapu Contract

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract signed in 1997, the
Group agreed to acquire 70% of the production sharing
interest for RMB1,008 million and to fund its share of
cost of the development carried out for the realisation
of oil production (the “Development Operations”) in the
area as defined in the Leng Jiapu Contract (the “LJP
Contract Area”), at an estimated cost of US$65.5 million
(approximately RMB474 million) in the first two years of the
development period and be further responsible for 70% of
the development cost after the first two years, in exchange
for a 70% share in the oil production from the LJP Contract
Area.

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group shall bear
70% of the costs required for the Development Operations
in the LJP Contract Area which shall be allocated (after
deduction of local taxes and enterprise income tax) firstly
towards operating costs recovery and thereafter in the
proportion of 70% to the Group and 30% to PetroChina
towards investment recovery and profit.

The Leng Jiapu Contract provides twenty consecutive
years of production sharing from the date of
commencement of commercial production and will expire
on 31 December 2023.

In connection with the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group
has also entered into an Entrustment Contract with an
operational entity owned and operated by CNPC, whereby
the latter is entrusted to take up the responsibility as
an operator. Under the Entrustment Contract, a Joint
Development Management Organisation was established
for the performance of the contractual responsibilities
under the operatorship.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT 34 HHESPBREHE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Leng Jiapu Contract (Continued) RREEGE (&)
The summary of assets, liabilities and results for the year AEEEBASERRREGRZERCE
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in = BEREEMENGREMBRERERH
relation to the Group’s interest in the Leng Jiapu Contract AR
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E—N\F —ZT—+tF
RMB’miillion RMB’million
AREEERT AREBBHET
(i) Results for the year (i) REEHE£E
Income WA 979 762
Expenses 53 (850) (745)
(ii) Assets and liabilities (ii) EEREE
Non-current assets JEmENEE 375 471
Current assets MENEE 493 370
Current liabilities mENEE (81) (98)
Non-current liabilities e EIN=NE (60) =
Net assets BEFE 727 743
(i) Capital commitments (iii)y BEREIE
Contracted but not ERTAERIEL A
provided for - =
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 FtARS

CNPC, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is
a state-controlled enterprise directly controlled by the
PRC government. The PRC government is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company. Related parties include
CNPC and its subsidiaries (together, the “CNPC Group”),
other state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries which
the PRC government has control, joint control or significant
influence over, the entities which the Group is able to
control, jointly control or exercise significant influence
over, key management personnel of the Company and
CNPC and their close family members and any entity, of
any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group’s parent.

FEIABREE (ANRRZERBER) &8+ BIK
FEZZEGHZEBRE - PEBFASARAR
ZERRERTT - BB BRREP B A mERE R
HIB AR (5hs [himsE ) - P BEBA
2 KRZEHISENEATE HthEAF
CERREZMBLR - RKAEBEEHIZE
B KRZEFIRITEERAZEZLE - AR
ARFRORREZIREEABRKEFLZ
ERREKE ~ X —EEEZERKERT]
(REEZ—87)AAKEZHARRMEE
E2EEABRR
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35

226

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

In addition to the related party information shown
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant related party
transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business
between the Group and its related parties during the years
and balances arising from related party transactions at the
end of the years indicated below:

(a)

Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures

The Group has extensive transactions with other
companies in the CNPC Group. Due to these
relationships, it is possible that the terms of
the transactions between the Group and other
members of the CNPC Group are not the same as
those that would result from transactions with other
related parties or wholly unrelated parties.

The principal related party transactions with the
CNPC Group and associates and joint ventures of
the Group which were carried out in the ordinary
course of business, are as follows:

(i) The Group entered into (i) the Leng Jiapu
Contract with the CNPC Group in 1997
and (i) certain supplemental agreements,
including a sixth supplemental agreement
on 29 November 2017 for connected
transactions for the three years ending 31
December 2020, for the purpose of renewing
the terms of the previously signed master
agreement and supplemental agreements.

Under the Leng Jiapu Contract and the
master agreement, a framework for a range
of products and services to be procured
from the CNPC Group to the Group and vice
versa including oil and gas products, general
products and services, financial services and
rental services is provided.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 FAltARS(48)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates (@) HEFHEE BEATREGELEZ
and joint ventures (Continued) X5 (18)
() (Continued) () (&)

Provision of products by the CNPC
Group to the Group amounted to
approximately RMB32,913 million
(2017: RMB30,984 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Provision of services by the CNPC
Group to the Group amounted to
approximately RMB4,432 million
(2017: RMB7,667 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Provision of products by the Group
to the CNPC Group amounted to
approximately RMB4,477 million
(2017: RMB5,450 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Provision of services by the Group
to the CNPC Group amounted to
approximately RMB16,058 million
(2017: RMB10,591 million), which
mainly includes natural gas pipeline
transmission services and LNG
gasification and unloading services
provided by the Group, for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

)

The Group has entered into agreements
for the sales of natural gas with certain
associates and joint ventures of the Group
amounting to approximately RMB118 million
(2017: RMB113 million) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The above transactions in (i) and (ii)
constituted connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, amounts
due from and to CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures of the Group, which
are unsecured and interest-free, except
borrowings, loans to an associate, loans to
joint ventures and obligations under finance
leases, are included in the following accounts
captions and summarised as follows:

—NFET_A=+—HILFE

35 FRABEARS(E)

(a) EHEAHEE BEQARARSELEZ
X5 (&)

(i)

(i)

REBETLHE - WAERE
THERARAREELEHER
AR REBEZE-_Z—/\F+=
A=+—BLEFEHAARK
1M8AEBIL(ZZ—tF : AR
113 BETT) °

() R () Bz2RSRE LT
HAE 14AZEBREER S

R-FB-NFR-_F—tHF
TZA=1+—B  BERER
%EP‘}HHEI AEEZBE
T&/\é&riz KR (BR fE

E -EBEXT—HBEQAR - ®
AT EBELERBMERERE
AN BERBE RS S - BEETA

THgEEE AL BT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEEBRT ARKBET
Intangible and other EmRREMIEREEE
non-current assets 1,009 387
Accounts receivable FE U AR X 591 462
Prepaid expenses and FERNRREMREEE
other current assets 239 588
Accounts payable and FEBRR R BT A E
accrued liabilities 4,617 4,226
Borrowings BE 20,779 27,212
Obligations under BE T ERIE
finance leases 114 217

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

35 FRABEARS(E)

Key management compensation (b) FEEEEZME:
2018 2017
=t B
RMB’miillion RMB’million
AREEERT ARBHETL
Salaries and allowances e Lie 6 6
Retirement benefits — defined RIRER - RERKEE
contribution scheme - 1
6 7

Transactions with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Kunlun
Gas, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compay,
has acquired the equity interest in Jingtang Co.
previously owned by PetroChina pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the acquisition agreement
dated 28 September 2017 and entered into
between Kunlun Gas and PetroChina.

Apart from the aforementioned transactions and
the transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures, the Group has transactions with
other state-controlled entities include but not limited
to (i) sales and purchases of goods and services;
(i) purchases of assets; (i) lease of assets; and (iv)
bank deposits and borrowings.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

(c)
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36

7\

230

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker which is determined as the Executive
Directors of the Company.

The Group organises its business around products and
services. From the products and services perspective, the
Group is engaged in a broad range of petroleum related
activities and derives its revenue from its four operating
segments: Exploration and Production, Natural Gas Sales,
LNG Processing and Terminal and Natural Gas Pipeline.

The Exploration and Production segment is engaged in
the exploration, development, production and sales of
crude oil and natural gas. The Natural Gas Sales segment
is engaged in the wholesales and retail sales of various
natural gas and LPG products. LNG Processing and
Terminal segment is engaged in the processing, unloading,
storing, gasification and entrucking of LNG. Natural Gas
Pipeline segment is engaged in the transmission of natural
gas through pipeline.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s profit/(loss)
before income tax expense, share of profits less losses of
associates and joint ventures (“segment results”).

Segment assets exclude deferred and current taxes,
other financial assets, investments in associates and joint
ventures (“segment assets”), as all of which are managed
on a central basis.

Corporate income and expenses, net, mainly refers to
interest income earned from cash and cash equivalents,
net exchange gains/losses, general and administrative
expenses and interest expenses incurred at corporate
level.

Corporate assets mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents held at corporate level.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Neither the Group’s revenue is derived from nor the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the place of domicile of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue of
approximately RMB20,535 million (2017: RMB16,041
million) is derived from one (2017: one) customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. The revenue is attributable to the Exploration
and Production, Natural Gas Sales, LNG Processing and
Terminal and Natural Gas Pipeline segments.

ACQUISITION

2017 business combination under common control

As mentioned in Note 2(b) to these consolidated financial
statements, the acquisition of Jingtang Co. has been
accounted for in accordance with AG 5. Accordingly,
the assets and liabilities of Jingtang Co. acquired by the
Group have been accounted for at historical cost and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for periods
prior to the combination have been restated to include the
financial position and results of operation of Jingtang Co.
on a combined basis. The final consideration of RMB1,906
million payable by the Group has been treated as an equity
transaction.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Future details of
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in Note 3(2).

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2019 and will be
submitted to the shareholders for approval at the 2019
Annual General Meeting to be held on 6 June 2019
(Thursday).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

40 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 FEREBAS

ARG ZE—NE+—A=+—HZEE[
BAR(BMABREEAR) ZEBMT :

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are limited liability companies at 31 December 2018, are as

234

follows:
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRARARRA/ AREEL
WEARER R ifEA 2 EEERE REAAM
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in the PRC
EhEBE  LEREERA
Beckbury International Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") USS1 Limited liabifty company 100.00% (note {))
ABRAEE %7 ERERAT (R&0)
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Peru
EREHA  LEREERH
SAPET Development Corporation (“SAPET") United States of America 100 ordinary shares Limited liabilty company 50.00% (note (i)
x4 o par value BRELAH (P (i)
100REARERE
SAPET Development Peru Inc. United States of America 100 ordinary shares Limited liabilty company 50.00% (note (i)
x4 o par value BRELAH (P (i)
100REARERE

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
// Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

40 EEMBAE(F)

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRARRE/ ALREEL
WEARER R ifEA 2 EEERER REAAM
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Thailand
EREHE  LERBERH
Gentral Place Gompany Limited Hong Kong 160 ordinary shares Limited liabilty company 100.00%
Br 160 3R ERELAT
Sino-U.S. Petroleum Inc. United States of America US$1,000 Limited liabilty company 100.00%
*H 1000%7 ERERRA
CNPCHK (Thailand) Limited Thailand Baht100 million Limited liabilty company 100.00%
78 100885 ERELAT
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Azerbaijan
EMEREYR  LEREERM
Fortunemate Assets Limited BV US$1 Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
ABRAES 1% ERELAT (RszE ()
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan
ERERFAGE  EEREERA
CNPC International (Gaspian) Limited BvI US$100 Limited liabilty company 60.00%
AERAER 100%7T BREERA
Natural gas business
RREEH
Kunlun Gas PRC RMB8,560 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
ERMtA e AR S60EET ERELAT (RizE ()
Xinjiang Xinjie Co., Ltd. PRC RMB4,370 million Limited liabiity company 98.50% (note (i)
HEMRERNBRAT e ARE4SI0BET ERERLA (& ()
ERRARRNERAR PRC RMB2,082 milion Limited liabilty company 77.88% (note ()
i ARE2082EET BREEAA (Rzq)
GNPG Shennan Oil Technology Development PRC RMB1,102 million Limited liabiity company 100.00% (note (i)
Co,, Ltd. hE ARE1102BET ERERRA (& ()

AR RAREARIREERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

40

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

40 EEMBAE(F)

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRARARRA/ AREEL
WEARER R ifEA 2 EEERE REAAM
Natural gas business (Continued)
AREEH ()
Kunlun Energy Investment Shandong PRC RMB1,500 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
Company Limited HE ARE150EET BREAAA (FrzEQ)
ERiRRE (LR)ARAT
Huagang Gas Group Company Limited PRC RMB1,500 milion Limited liability company 51.00% (note ()
ZEMREEARAT e AR S00BET ERERRA (RfzE ()
mIIARRERERLR PRC RMBI00 millon Limited fiabilty company 51.00% (note ()
GlEd ARB0EET ERELAR (&)
HEERERERRAT PRC RMB500 millon Limited liabilty company 94.00% (note {)
il AR#S0EET ERELAT (R )
EmthesERAR PRC RMB195 milion Limited fiabilty company 100.00% (note ()
i AEB19%EET ERERLA (RszE ()
KunLun Energy (Liaoning) Company Limited PRC RMB192 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note ()
EmtR(EE)ARAA e AREAREET ERERRA (RszE ()
RRsREEERAT PRC RMB48 milion Limited liabiity company 100.00% (note ()
GlEd AR BEET ERELAR (&)
Emeh (H8) ARAA PRC RMB105 millon Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note ()
il AEB105BET ERELAT (K )

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
/ Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

40 EEMBAE(F)

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRARRE/ ALREEL
WEARER R ifEA 2 EEERER REAAM
Natural gas business (Continued)
AREEH ()
(Gangzhou Gas Limited Gompany Petrochina PRC RMB200 million Limited liabity company 51.00% (note (i)
BN RERAT e AR%200BET ERERLA (& ()
Jiangsu LNG PRC RMB2,951 million Limited liabilty company 55.00% (note (])
TELNG hE ARE2951BET BREMAA (Riz0)
Jingtang Co. PRC RMB3, 150 million Limited liabilty company 51.00%
RERT hE ARESI50EET BREERA
PetroChina Dalian LNG Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,600 million Limited liabilty company 75.00% (note ()
hRBAERIEARRARAA e ARE2600EET ERERAA (&)
Beiing Pipeline PRC RMB20,480 milion Limited liabilty company 60.00% (note (i)
IrER e AE%20480887T ERERRA (RizE ()
Petrochina Tianjin Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd. PRC RMB255 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
hRBRERAREEARAR e ARE 255 BET EREfLF (W)
Notes: BfaE -
() Shares are held directly by the Company. 0} HAARIEERERD
(i) In accordance with the share purchase agreement dated (i) BEAHA—ZSZ—FNAN\B 2ERH

8 September 2001, the Group has the rights to variable
returns from its involvement with SAPET and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over SAPET. As
a result, SAPET is accounted for as a subsidiary of the

Company.

Since SAPET Development Peru Inc. is wholly-owned by
SAPET, it is also accounted for as the subsidiary of the

Company.

& ASEGRENFESESAPET £55m =
BB R - WHEE 1B BEE SAPET
BAEMNEIMEEZEO®R Bt
SAPET #R BA AR 2B AR °

E SAPET Development Peru Inc.
SAPET 2B %A - MEMERER/ARAFZ
MEAR o

EmEERARLH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

41 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

At 31 December 2018, the Group had interest in the
following principal associates:

41 FEBEAT

RZZE-NF+-A=+—R0 ~EERA
TEEMENREAER

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to

Name of associates establishment registered capital legal entity the Group

L/ BRIRMERT/ AREEL

BELNTER R ifEA 2 EEERER BHAY

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan

ERERFAGE  EEREERA

Aktobe Kazakhstan 8,946,470 Joint-stock company 15.07% (note (i)

IR iA common shares RAHIAR (Rf3EG)
0f 1,500 tenge each
(note (i)
8,946, 4708
BREE1,502X
B (3 ()

Natural gas distribution in the PRC

EPEAERAR

China City Natural PRC RMB,000 million Limited liabilty company 49,00% (note (i)

Gas Investrment Group Co,, Ltd. e ARE10008ET BREAAH Bz (i)

TP R R R A BARAR

Notes: BoaE -

() Issued and paid up share capital of Aktobe consists ) Aktobe B 21T & 12 % 78 B 15 8,946,470
of 8,946,470 ordinary shares and 943,955 preference [i% I 38 A% f2 943,955 AR 1B o ik o 18 5T AR A
shares. The preference shares give their holders the right THEHREAENZERRBFAE (M3
to participate in general shareholders’ meetings without BRBERERE) -
voting rights generally.

(ii) The effective equity interest of Aktobe attributable to the (ii) FR A Aktobe 2 25.12% i i A 35 F

Group is 15.07% as the 25.12% equity interest in Aktobe
is held by a non-wholly owned subsidiary in which the
Group holds a 60% equity interest.

(iii) Shares held directly by the Company.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES 42 TEEGELHE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had interest in the RZE—)N\F+-_A=+—8 KEBERU
following principal joint ventures: TEEZEGELERARER -
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of joint ventures establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
ML/ ERIRMERE/ ARERE
RELELR R iER 2 HE EERREH EREAM

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Oman

EMSHR - LEREERA

Mazoon Petrogas (BVI) Limited BV 50,000 ordinary Limited liabilty company 50.00% (note)
shares of US$1 each BERERAR (Bz)

EBRAES 50000 R EHRAE

1ETERR

Production of petro-chemical products in the PRC

RPEEERRLIER
EERMEHERAT PRC RMB223 milion Limited fiabilty company 25,00% (note)
e AR%223BET ERERAA (H&E)

Natural gas business

RREEH

Qinggang PRC RMB337 million Limited liabilty company 50.00%

B hE ARESTBET ERERAF (note)
(RzE)

Binhai Xinneng PRC RMB229 million Limited liabiity company 50.00%

k2 hE ARE29EET BREMAR (note)
(HfzE)

Jigang PRC RMBG57 million Limited liabilty company 50.00%

i e NREBTHET EREAAT (note)
(&)

Note: The shares of the above principal joint ventures are held izt EEEARECENRDBARRREER

directly by the Company. B

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

43 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 43 ATEBEMBIRAER

FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B 5T ARBEERT AREBETL
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in associates REtE R R 218E 931 931
Investments in joint ventures REBEREZIRE 973 80
Investments in subsidiaries R BRRZZE 53,629 54,520
Loans to a subsidiary m) — fEIffT /B A BE 3K 4,211 -
59,744 515,581
Current assets REEE
Prepaid expenses and TER R H A7 ED
other current assets BE 4,817 7,993
Cash and cash equivalents RekIReFEER 1,995 4,426
6,812 12,419
Total assets BEE 66,556 67,950
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable 7R 7 B R PE AL AR AR
to owners of the Company Li#E
Share capital &N 27 65 65
Retained earnings BAFE T 28 14,340 15,477
Other reserves HAni e 28 32,663 32,662
47,068 48,204

240 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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44

COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

ATEERBRRR (&)

2018 2017
B\ —T—+&
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B 5T ARBEERT AREBETL
Liabilities 8f&
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable and FERTRRFR
accrued liabilities fEET A& 1,557 1,463
Short-term borrowings MHIEE - 3,200
Convertible bonds A s (E A 31 3,306 =
Income tax payable FERTFTIS R 21 15
4,884 4,678
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term borrowings REEE 14,604 11,838
Convertible bonds A e (E A 31 - 3,230
14,604 15,068
Total liabilities BEE 19,488 19,746
Total equity and liabilities ERhkEBEHEE 66,556 67,950
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,928 7,741
Total assets less current liabilities @AEERRBEE 61,672 63,272
IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 44 HERRZEZRAL

PARTY

At 31 December 2018, the Directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Sun World and CNPC which are incorporated
in the BVI and established in the PRC respectively.
PetroChina, an intermediate holding company, produces
financial statements available for public use.

RZE—NF+_A=+—H ' EERE
AARBEEE QA R&EKZERATASUN
World X BIARE B - 75 Bl R B 5 B
SFPBEFMKL - FEAH - A—HEE
ERAR] - REAIRARATER 2 TR
% o

EmEERARLH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ=Z—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 45 &HEZE-T—/\f+-A=+—HIL%
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EEMEM{BIERERRIERT « FER
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ERENTTERE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, BEZSUBHEREMBE AR
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new SEBMZIEER] « FERRE  REE
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective —E-NF+ZA=+—BLFEDNRE
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have not W RN EZERERET - 2587
been adopted in these financial statements. These include VAR AT gE B AR SR BARRE 2 (85T o
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RUT B 2 BB NS THHIB AN

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
ERMBHmEEAE 165  HE —E-NF—HA—H
HK(FRIC) 28, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
EE (ERMBRERBLZES) RBF 235 - FrEHEEn T HTE T —T-NF—HA—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
ERUBHREREN S -—HFE_ T+t FRARAZFERS —ZE-h&F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
BEAGHERE 285 (BRI ) - RS AR R EREz RAER —E-NF—HA—H

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretation is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this
standard may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available to the
Group, and further impacts may be identified before the
standard is initially applied in the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ending 30 June 2019. The Group
may also change its accounting policy elections, including
the transition options, until the standard is initially applied in
that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 3(i), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending
on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into
some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

45

B8E—_T—-/)\FE+-A=+—HL%E
EEEMELRENMIEST - FHER
BRENTIREE (L)

AEBEAFEZEER]  MENLRER
MEEAPRBHELZCRE - 25 @ A%
B2 BRI S RIS 16 57 A] REETAR
EUBHRRELEAFEZETER - AH
FEZE-THBIARWT - BEHEEM
BHREERE16RNFETEANTK B
N RMAREANERFERIENR - REA
RIET RIETRNFEERAEBRAE
B EEEEANSERARAEERE_T
—NFRNA=ZTHIENEA T RT RS
Al ATRERIMEMBE - ERMERIVITE
RRZA B RER - NEB IR B2 E HLE
BHEFHEER  BRBREEE -

BERMBHELRE 165 - HE

MM AT E - AEBERAISEES
BAMEHERKERSE  UREEESR
RARBELR P AR - AREESLEA
TMERAMARIZETHE -

EmEERARLH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —=F

45

244

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition
of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as
a lessee of leases for property, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
// Annual Report 2018
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BE—_F-/\F+-A=+—HIL*F
FE A M8 3 R 4 3y 18357 - FEEdl
RERIITTRERSE (1R)

ERMRRELRF 165 - HE (F)
BHEBWHREERE 16 RIS KRB

B HHARBHEOSR SN REZHATRN

AR e A —BRBFEMBREELF
165% - AEARTBEIBEHEMEZEH

Bk XERBRETENMAR - AEA
RABRUREREHESHRETERME
BN - IRZEXFE B E - ABE AR
BRERBREERRNREERLAERE
BE REEIAEENEHRE] EE - R
NTHERZEERBER - AHEAKERE
EREA ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?iﬂ’]ﬂ%ﬁaﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiz
& MIENBHARZGELERDREL
SHAOMEENHERXNRBARE - R
BERMEETE  AEAREEN S &5
B AN EES (BEB A 1218 A sIA
M EEEEEENEE EAExﬁi/RT
M RSO BN R IR R EER -

M BREEIF16R/BEETEAEH
ERME BERREBEERBIBAEEH
E)ABEANERENE - BHERTS
AREAKEREERBBOAMEN - h¥
ERVMBENIERRERF IR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BLEZ=Z— \F+—A=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
are entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and
will not restate the comparative information. As disclosed
in Note 33(a), at 31 December 2018 the Group's future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB1,610 million for leasing of land
and buildings and equipment, the majority of which is
payable either between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date or in more than 5 years. Upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and
the corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted
to RMB1,315 million and RMB5,187 million (including
a reclassification adjustment of RMB3,872 million from
advanced operating lease payments) respectively, after
taking account the effects of discounting, as at 1 January
2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements from 2019 onwards.

45

B8E—_T—-/)\FE+-A=+—HL%E
EEEMELRENMIEST - FHER
BRENTIREE (L)

EBMRRELRF 1658 - HE (B

ERMBREEME 16N T —NF—A
— A2 RFRBRNFERE LR - MEFEHM
BRELFE 165N - AREEIER
EREEDAHRRBEARRAEREEH
ENEFRE - AREERMERESXE
ABEHRZKFIINA MR EAE MR
SERE165FPHENTES - 1o A%
B EENEREEE  ARBHEstE
AEANEMHERKEEEERE -

AEB B RAE BN BIRE LR E 1657
MERAEIEETENE YR —_T—hEFE—
A—B#UZEANRIFERR AR
VEHAE WA GELRER - ki
B@fiEE N N\F+_A=1+—
B St REFURRENS A%
EMTAREKEEHETHRRRERE
HREAEARE1610B8TT EP RO K
HERREAHE —ZERAFANIRAFRE
5 o IS HRME B MEERIFE 16571% -
HEaERARERAREENRIESR K
ARITEEER BR=ZF—hF—A—
BORIFABREAREISISEETRARK
5187 BB L (BERBEMNKEEHERIEAA
R¥387T2BBILZEFHEAE) -

SrERHEREREREEEIN  AEEE
B RAB BT RS LR F 167K T
EHRBEFHBL TERK - AT - Eligst
BRzEHNEPREHAKEE —_FT—NF
B2 EGEMBRREREATE -
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Reserve Quantities Information

INFORMATION ON EXPLORATION AND

PRODUCTION SEGMENT

In accordance with the Listing Rule 18.18, this section provides
supplemental information on oil and gas producing activities of the

Group.

Proved Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates

The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated proved
developed reserves and proved reserves as at December 2016,
2017 and 2018. The tables are formulated on the basis of reports
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton and Ryder Scott
Company, independent engineering consultancy companies.

AERAMREE ERR 2 EF

RIE EMARRIE 1818 16 - NETFRH B RS B
REERBOFMITER

AR BT

TRFHARBRE—FRF  _T—tR_F
—N\FE+ Azt EAEAEFEE NFRRE -
7 E R TR BB T2 EA R 2 8 DeGolyer and
MacNaughton F1 Ryder Scott Company #& &4 2 R &

CRUDE OIL F#
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
YREAC BAE% %
&2 (45 2 (&5
(million barrels) (million barrels)
(BER) (BER)
Reserve as at RZZE—RF
31 December 2015 +-A=+—HZF= 69.5 84.3
2016 Revision —E—NEFEF (1.5) (0.4)
2016 Production —ENFEE (15.6) (15.6)
Reserve as at RZZ—RF
31 December 2016 TZA=t—HZ#=E 52.4 68.3
2017 Revision -l S H) 10.3 10.0
2017 Production T FES (13.4) (13.4)
Reserve as at RZZE—+F
31 December 2017 TZA=t—HZ#= 49.3 64.9
2018 Revision —2—\F1EFT 11.8 8.9
2018 Production —T-)\FE= (13.8) (13.8)
Reserve as at RZZE—N\F
31 December 2018 TZA=t—HZ#= 47.3 60.0

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Reserve Quantities Information
HEEE

NATURAL GAS RARR
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
KA B g %A
f#E (&5 2 (&5
(million cu feet) (million cu feet)
(BBYZAR) (BEBYAR)
Reserve as at RZZE—RF
31 December 2015 +-A=+—HzkFH= 182,605.4 209,907.5
2016 Revision ZE—RFBE] 66,155.8 63,508.0
2016 Production —E—RFEE (31,291.0) (31,291.0)
Reserve as at RZE—R
31 December 2016 +TZA=+—HZ&=E 217,470.2 2421245
2017 Revision ZE—+FEF] 18,814.9 (284.2)
2017 Production —ET+FES (32,307.8) (32,307.8)
Reserve as at RZE—+F
31 December 2017 +-A=+—HZzFH=E 203,977.3 209,532.5
2018 Revision ZE-N\FEF] 4,012.4 11,762.5
2018 Production —E-)\FEE (33,389.9) (33,389.9)
Reserve as at RZE—N\F
31 December 2018 +TZA=+—HZ&=E 174,599.8 187,905.1
Definition: B
The petroleum reserves are classified as follows: BHREEDHEWT

Proved oil and gas reserves — Proved oil and gas reserves are
those quantities of oil and gas, which by analysis of geoscience
and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty
to be economically producible — from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions,
operating methods, and government regulations — prior to the
time at which contracts providing the right to operate expire,
unless evidence indicates that renewal is reasonably certain,
regardless of whether deterministic or probabilistic methods are
used for the estimation. The project to extract the hydrocarbons
must have commenced or the operator must be reasonably
certain that it will commence the project within a reasonable time.

K hwFEE — RRABRBERBRERARES
RKEEMBIE A (BRIFBBEREIEREZENRE
WSEER) - BEMEB BN I REBENDN
BRAMEE SRR MG - UIRERKE - (EREK
FFE Bl 6 - B AR IERETE £ A SRR A 2 R] 5RO
RHBE - BRACFHIREDNEIERE AT
EESNGERREANRBER -

N
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Reserve Quantities Information
HESE

(i)

(i)

(iv)

7\

248

The areas of the reservoir considered as proved includes:

(A) The area identified by drilling and limited by fluid
contracts, if any, and (B) Adjacent undrilled portions of the
reservoir that can, with reasonable certainty, be judged
to be continuous with it and to contain economically
producible oil or gas on the basis of available geoscience
and engineering data.

In the absence of data on fluid contracts, proved quantities
in a reservoir are limited by the lowest known hydrocarbons
(LKH) as seen in a well penetration unless geoscience,
engineering, or performance data and reliable technology
establishes a lower contact with reasonable certainty.

Where direct observation from well penetrations has
defined a highest known oil (HKO) elevation and the
potential exists for an associated gas cap, proved ail
reserves may be assigned in the structurally higher
portions of the reservoir only if geoscience, engineering,
or performance data and reliable technology establish the
higher contact with reasonable certainty.

Reserves which can be produced economically through
application of improved recovery techniques (including,
but not limited to, fluid injection) are included in the proved
classification when:

(A) Successful testing by a pilot project in an area of the
reservoir with properties no more favorable than in the
reservoir as a whole, the operation of an installed program
in the reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or other evidence
using reliable technology establishes the reasonable
certainty of the engineering analysis on which the project
or program was based; and (B) The project has been
approved for development by all necessary parties and
entities, including governmental entities.

Existing economic conditions include prices and costs
at which economic producibility from a reservoir is to be
determined. The price shall be the average price during
the 12-month period prior to the ending date of the period
covered by the report, determined as an unweighted
arithmetic average of the first-day-of-the-month price for
each month within such period, unless prices are defined
by contractual arrangements, excluding escalations based
upon future conditions.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(i)

ARAERABRENREEE

(A) SEHBITE N ag o EBE (A )R
X (B) RIB R AE F TR E# Al & HEE
AT LA RRAE R0 — FE 4878 A 38 5% SR A0 i R,
FRAPIT AT AR R ED 1D -

FRZMENTEER  RIFMWE - TRHK
REMRASRMEESEFERESE
7 RUJH S A 2 TR PR 6 8 O AR 1B A2 4B P
THRERASKEE (LKH) ME °

EEBTRERBACHERSRASHE
= (HKO) R B EHBAAR AR LR - Al
BRIFHE ~ Ti2skRINE M R Al SER T iEE
FEFEREE  BRRALBEFEND
IREMREBERE -

BB ERREREE M (BREENRNE
M) IARERLNFERRERARE
25 - i

(A —Bm R (YR TN EE e m R E )
B S BRTA B AUBR AT  H SR AR L
H SR B T 77 SRAE SR AT kA A A] SE R A
H B R IRAATR B M7 =PTRIBR Ti200A
BEASENGE KB ZBBEEEMBELEA
TRER(BREBAER)HEETHE -

BANKEGRE 22 HE — B REEELE
EREDNERMAA - FRIFHERLE * &
B EEEAREHE LB U+ = EA
BB FHER - DEEAZBEANEEA
F-REBNRINEEMFHE - BT
ERAR AR B ERRFTHEE o



Developed oil and gas reserves — Developed oil and gas reserves
are reserves of any category that can be expected to be
recovered:

(i) Through existing wells with existing equipment and
operating methods or in which the cost of the required
equipment is relatively minor compared to the cost of a
new well; and

(i) Through installed extraction equipment and infrastructure
operational at the time of the reserves estimate if the
extraction is by means not involving a well.

Undeveloped oil and gas reserves — Undeveloped oil and gas
reserves are reserves of any category that are expected to be
recovered from new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing
wells where a relatively major expenditure is required from
recompletion.

(i) Reserves on undrilled acreage shall be limited to those
directly offsetting development spacing areas that are
reasonably certain of production when drilled, unless
evidence using reliable technology exists that establishes
reasonable certainty of economic producibility at greater
distances.

(i) Undrilled locations can be classified as having undeveloped
reserves only if a development plan has been adopted
indicating that they are scheduled to be drilled within five
years, unless the specific circumstances, justify a longer
time.

(iii) Under no circumstances shall estimates for undeveloped
reserves be attributable to any acreage for which an
application of fluid injection or other improved recovery
technique is contemplated, unless such techniques have
been proved effective by actual projects in the same
reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or by other evidence
using reliable technology establishing reasonable certainty.

Reserve Quantities Information

HEAH

ERZFHRFE — EREBRBERBHESR
AT HAFRNFEE

() MARBREMEET % EFREERT
R R AR AR ER R — O AT
ERAR - AT IR A R R AP E TR AR
=2 &

(i)  EBEBEERITFERIE AT A EITH
R NAREMRHC ZENFRREM
ERER MG A FARAEE -

AEEARHEE - RFAEARFEEEA A ERE
BERFHPRL  ABEHFERSENRE
HAEREOFE

) RERENFEERNEZIMRRAEEER
B B-EEEEERETH - [RIFEEE
R SERATRE R —E LB R R RS
FRTAE -

i MHERKNRBEBSEXRAAIELFA(E
HERFE TARKRKRREERIN) #EH - RE
BT A DA RFAERE

iy FENRAARFEENGTHTERERERR
B ASH MR AR R - B
FERZF HT B BB TE AR R b S B LB R /Y
ERIER - BAKAERITEEE —T
EEMNEMBIRERABM
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Reserve Quantities Information

Results of Operations for Exploration and Production EiRELERBLEEEE

Segment
RMB’million
ARBBEER
For the year ended BE-ZE-)\fF
31 December 2018 +=ZA=1t—HLEE
Gross revenue BN 2,068
Less: Inter-company adjustment W A AIE R -
Revenue from external customers REINPE P 2 WA 2,068
Segment results RIBELE 466
Share of profits less losses of: FE(R = R R g 18
— Associates — Bt AT 581
— Joint ventures — 5EDE 203
Profit before income tax expense BR PTG & A AT S A 1,250
Segment results included: RIRSEEBIE
— Interest income — FEWA 7
— Depreciation, depletion — & - BREREH
and amortisation (295)

— Interest expenses

— MEXH

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Reserve Quantities Information

Results of Operations for Exploration and Production Ei#REZ4ERBLEEE ()

Segment (Continued)

HEAH

RMB’million
ARBBET
For the year ended BE-Z—tf
31 December 2017 +=-A=+—HILEE
Gross revenue BUA 1,505
Less: Inter-company adjustment WA RIE R _
Revenue from external customers REINPE P 2 WA 1,505
Segment results RIBSELR 114
Share of profits less losses of: FE(R & R e 18
— Associates — B R A] 490
- Joint ventures — 5EDE 216
Profit before income tax expense BRAT1S & R AT A 820
Segment results included: RIRFEE B
— Interest income — FEMA 6
— Depreciation, depletion — & - BREREH
and amortisation (225)

— Interest expenses

— MEXH

(1)

“T)N\FFERE \
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Reserve Quantities Information

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and

Production:

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and

Development Activities

MEWE - BREEEEE ZHE

YIRS - By REERA BB E £ 2 LA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARKBEER
The Group AEHE
Property acquisition costs I EE RN - =
Exploration costs EERA AN - -
Development cost FEE AR 167 63
Total 4t 167 63
Equity method investments B ERE
Share of costs of property DR E AT R
acquisition, exploration and BEDPENEWE
development of associates and BNER R AR
joint ventures 652 633
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